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While the forward looking statements about PSEG’s expectations made For more information, please refer 1o PSEG reports that are filed
throughout this report are based on information currently available and periodically with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
on reasonable assumptions, actual results could be materially different.

Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future earnings.

2002 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

$in mitlions, where applicable 2002 2001 % CHANGE
Total Revenues $ 8,390 $ 7055 19
Net Income

(GAAP - as reported) $ 265 $ 770 (68)
Earnings Per Share

(GAAP - as reported) $ L7 $ 370 (68)
Pro Forma Net income

{See Consolidated Statements of Operations)* $ 786 $ 776 1
Pro Forma Earnings Per Share

{See Consolidated Statements of Operations)* $ 376 $ 3713 1
Common stock shares outstanding —average (thousands) 208,813 208,226 -
Dividends paid per share $ 216 $ 216 -
Book value per share-year-end $ 1770 $ 2010 {12)
Market price per share-year-end $ 3210 $ 8219 {2)
Total Assets $ 25,742 $ 25156 2

*2002 - Excludes after-tax charges of $541 million, or $2.59 per share comprised
of charges of $120 miltion, or $0.58 per share, related 1o the cumutative effect of
a change in accounting principle, $51 million, or $0.24 per share, related to dis-
continued operations, and $370 million, or $1.77 per share, related to fosses from
Argentine investments. 2001~ Excludes after-tax charges of $15 miliion or $0.07
per share related to discontinued operations and after-tax gains of $9 million or
$0.04 per share due to the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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Twelve months ending 12/31/02

PAREMT Revenues: $8.4Bn
COMPANY Pro Forma Net Income:  $786MM*
ROE: 19.7%*
Assets: $25.78n
@ PSEG WHOLESALE Revenues: $3.7Bn
Power ENERGY Earnings: $468MM
Assets: $7.0Bn
<> £ R : 9B
@ PS@G DELIVERY eve.nues $5.9Bn
Earnings: $201MM
Assets: $12.4Bn
PSEG ENERGY Revenues: $0.7Bn
Energy Holdings INVESTMENTS & Pro Forma Earnings: $138MM*
INTERNATIONAL Assets: $6.8Bn

*Excludes after-tax charges of $541 million,
or $2.59 per share as previously discussed.

Note that intercompany amounts are elimi-
nated in consolidation.
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[J GAAP Results
{7 Pro Forma Results I

Dear Shareholder:

Your company continued to demonstrate its fundamental
strengths - financially and operationally—in a year marked
by great turbulence in the energy and financial markets.
As we enter our 100th year as a public company, the strong
values rooted in our traditions and business practices have
never been more apparent. They define who we are-and
distinguish us from others.

The events of 2002 tested the strength and character of the
energy industry, and indeed, of U.S. business. Scandals,
investigations, and several notorious cases of outright fraud
dominated the headlines. Electricity prices trended sharply
lower in many markets.

Against this backdrop, | am especially proud of your com-
pany’s continued solid performance in 2002. Our balanced
mix of energy businesses and investments again produced
strong results: $786 million, or $3.76 per share of common
stock. This excludes various charges of $541 million, or $2.59
per share. Including these charges, reported earnings were
$245 million, or $1.17 per share.

We also demonstrated again the strength of our commitment
to your common stock dividend even as several of our com-
petitors reduced or eliminated their dividends. PSEG has paid

PSEG Annual Earnings Per Share
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2002 - Excludes after-tax charges of $541 milltion, or $2.59 per share as previ-
ously discussed. 2001- Excludes after-tax charges of $15 million or $0.07 per
share related to discontinued operations and after-tax gains of $9 million or
$0.04 per share due to the cumulative effect of a change in accounting prin-
ciple. 2000 - Excludes after-tax charges of $12 million, or $0.06 per share,
related to discontinued operations. 1999 - Excludes an after-tax extraordinary
item of $804 million, or $3.67 per share, due to the write-down of PSE&G's
electric generating facilities due to deregulation and $13 million or $0.05 per
share, related to discontinued operations. 1998 - Excludes after-tax charges
of $12 million, or $0.05 per share, refated to discontinued operations.

a dividend every year since 1907 through some of the most
tumultuous periods in our nation’s history. This clearly testi-
fies to the strength of our company’s long-standing record
of delivering shareholder value.

Despite the loss of anticipated income from certain interna-
tional investments, our three major subsidiaries combined
to produce an attractive financial result for the year. These
businesses are: PSEG Power, our large wholesale energy
supply business in the Mid-Atlantic U.S. and adjacent regions;
PSE&G, our New Jersey electric and gas utility; and PSEG
Energy Holdings, the parent of PSEG Resources, our energy-
related investment vehicle, and of PSEG Global, which owns
and operates energy generation and distribution facilities in
a number of domestic and international markets.

PSEG Power —one of the nation’s largest independent power
producers—had an outstanding year. A major contributing
factor was its success in contracting with third-party suppli-
ers in New Jersey’s Basic Generation Service (BGS) auction
in February 2002. These contracts are in effect for the twelve
months beginning August 2002, and thus are expected to
have a positive impact on PSEG Power’s revenues though
July 2003.

PSEG Power participated in the BGS auctions that were
successfully held in February 2003 to secure the electricity
requirements of New |ersey utility customers. It was a
direct bidder in the auction to serve the needs of large
business customers statewide, and an indirect provider in
the auction to serve smaller businesses and residential
customers. Both auctions demonstrated New Jersey’s lead-
ership in developing highly competitive, open and robust
electric markets that benefit utility customers, while also
providing significant opportunities for suppliers. PSEG Power's
results in the auction process support our overall business
plans and earnings objectives.

Basic to any power generation business is sustained oper-
ation, especially during hot weather. PSEG Power’s nuclear
stations achieved a combined capacity factor of nearly
94% in 2002, a company record, and our fossil stations
also performed exceptionally well. All units were available
throughout the summer.

PSEG Power continued to benefit from strong fundamentals-

its strategic location, diverse fuel mix and balance of
base load, load-following and peaking generation facilities.

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER
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By integrating generation and plant dispatch with trading
and marketing, PSEG Power utilizes a portfolio business
model to optimize profits while mitigating risks.

We have a disciplined approach to growth. We have delayed
some construction projects, while being highly selective
with regard to assets that may be available in the market -
both in terms of price and strategic opportunity. In 2002,
we acquired two power plants totaling over 1,000 megawatts
in Connecticut. These provide a significant entry to the New
England market, and complement the position we have been
building in New York State.

PSE&E - one of the nation’s largest combined electric and
gas utilities — also produced very solid results in 2002.
Cost-containment measures more than offset the effects of
mild weather in the first quarter. Colder weather late in

the year, combined with the impact of a $90 miilion gas dis-
tribution hase-rate increase, provided higher gas margins
in the fourth quarter. This rate increase was the first of its
type in a decade.

In May 2002, PSERG filed a $250 million electric distribution
base-rate case — also the first in ten years - to enable us to
continue to deliver the high standard of safe, reliable service
that our utility customers have come to expect. The rate
increase we are seeking would help restore PSE&G's returns
to a more acceptable level, while still leaving distribution
rates below where they were in 1999. Under New jersey’s
energy market restructuring law, new rates will go into
effect on August 1, 2003. As with the gas case, we expect a
reasonable and fair outcome in the electric case.

In 2002, PSEG Energy Holdings had a difficult year, largely
owing to highly unfavorable business environments affecting
PSEG Global’s operations in Argentina and its interest in
the Tanir Bavi power plant in India. We decided to exit these
operations and our retail energy-services business known
as PSEG Energy Technologies. PSEG Energy Holdings recorded
charges amounting to $2.59 per share primarily associated
with these activities, including the complete write-off of
our Argentine operations. The Tanir Bavi plant was sold in
October 2002.

On a positive front in 2002, PSEG Global had higher contri-
butions from investments in California and Chile. More
broadly, PSEG Global streamlined operations, cut $30 million
in ongoing operational costs, and refocused its strategy

to increase returns on existing investments. For at least the
next two years, we do not anticipate making any new
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PSEG’s total return for the last five years has outpaced three major market indices.

This chart shows the value on December 31 of each year of $100 invested on
December 31,1997 {assumes reinvested dividends).

investments at PSEG Global, other than modest amounts for
completing projects with existing capital commitments.

PSEG Resources had its best year ever in 2002 - reflecting
the solid position it has built as a strong and steady earnings
contributor. Investment-grade energy leases are the largest
component of PSEG Resources’ portfolio.

Energy markets were affected in 2002 not only by setbacks
to market-based reform internationally, but by a broad
loss of investor confidence in the U.S. The Dow Jones Utility
Average fell 26.8% in 2002, and our stock 23.9%. The bright
spot in this otherwise very disappointing result was the
rebound in our stock’s value in the last months of the year.

As 2002 unfolded, we took significant steps to strengthen
our balance sheet, improve our cash position and preserve
our solid credit ratings. From Labor Day to year's end, we
issued more than $1.1 billion of new equity-type securities,
including $460 million of preferred securities that are manda-
torily convertible to common stock in 2005; $460 million of
common equity in November; and $180 miilion of preferred
securities in December. Proceeds of the equity sales were
used to reduce short-term debt.

We further bolstered our liquidity in December 2002 by
closing on a three-year revolving credit facility for $350
million on favorable terms. Our short-term committed debt
capacity was approximately $2.5 billion at year-end 2002 -

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER
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with about $600 million of short-term debt and letters of
credit outstanding against those facilities. We have modest
long-term debt maturities in 2003. Looking ahead to the
remainder of the year and beyond, we are very comfortable
with our liquidity position.

We also strengthened our cash position through capital-
spending reductions of approximately $500 million, achieved
by curtailing or extending certain construction projects pre-
viously planned for 2003. Capital spending has also dropped
with the completion of other projects in 2002, and shouid
be approximately $1.1 billion less in 2003 than the prior year.

We anticipate reducing leverage further in 2003 based on
the positive cash flow position we foresee during the year.
After 2004, we expect to generate cash flows well in excess
of capital expenditures and dividends combined.

Be assured that the decisions to issue new equity, and take
other steps to enhance liquidity, were thoughtful ones.
We believe they were prudent in light of the market pres-
sures facing companies in our sector to strengthen their
capital structures.

PSEG's philosophy is one of long-term value creation. Based
on our company’s strong fundamentals, even in today’s
turbulent energy markets, we expect our earnings per share
in 2003 to be consistent with our earnings in 2002 excluding
any one-time events. in the immediate years thereafter,
we anticipate better prospects for attaining our company’s
long-term 7% growth target as market conditions improve.

Trends in energy markets were hardly all negative in 2002.
Market-based pricing is now firmly established in the power
grids of the Mid-Atlantic/Northeastern U.S. where we prin-
cipally compete. In New Jersey specifically, energy market
restructuring has brought a healthy measure of wholesale
competition, as witnessed by the success of the BGS auctions.

Tough markets are the true test of a company. They bring
challenges, but also offer opportunities. Solid earnings from
continuing operations and the strong cash flows produced
by our business in 2002 are strong fundamentals on which
to build. They enabled us to steer safely through rough
seas in 2002. They provide a solid platform as we continue
to chart a long-term course in the energy marketplace.

Our strategy in 2003 is premised on
managing several key chalienges:

PSEG Power's major goals are to term up
a substantial portion of its capacity and energy,
continue to explore acquisition opperiunities
and complete the efficient construction
of four combined-cycle plants.

PSE&G’s objective is to achieve
adequate electric rate relief, while continuing
to improve productivity and service quality
for both electric and gas customers.

PSEG Energy Holdings” mission is to
maximize cash flow and earnings
from existing assets, while continuing to
assess its overall business outlcok.

These are realistic objectives. As we pursue them, we will
remain steadfast in striving to safeguard and strengthen the
reputation our company has earned for safe, reliable utility
operations, community support and involvement, and envi-
ronmental stewardship. 2002 was our best year ever for
workplace safety, a key objective.

In 2003, we will be marking PSEG’s 100th year as a public
company. Ultimately, our success is a tribute to our employ-
ees, past and present. It is due to them - to their dedication,
skills and experience in a broad range of energy and busi-
ness disciplines — that PSEG has been able to successfully
adapt to new competitive conditions.

PSEG continues to have bright prospects for long-term suc-
gess in the energy marketplace. it is with confidence that
we look forward to building on 100 years of achievement,
as we continue to strive for excellence and to deliver share-
holder value.

=T %00

E. James Ferland
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
Public Service Enterprise Group Incorporated
FEBRUARY 14, 2003
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PSEE POWER

By just about any dimension, PSEG Power is a powerhouse.
We are one of the nation’s largest merchant generation
companies — a leader in producing, supplying and market-
ing electric power, the lifeblood of the modern economy.

taunched three years ago as an independent company
through New |ersey’s energy market restructuring, PSEG
Power continues to make great strides in building a highly
competitive, profitable position.

In 2002, PSEG Power produced strong results in the face of a
very tough, volatile energy market— in the most difficult year
our industry has experienced in decades.

Soft markets affect us too— as they do all suppliers. Yet PSEG
Power continues to reap the benefits of strong fundamentals.
We are building our success on a number of key ingredients,
including:

O a critical mass of low-cost generating capacity;

O a strategic location in the heart of heavily populated areas
of the Mid-Atlantic/Northeast U.S.;

O a diverse asset base, with substantial positions in nuclear,
coal, natural gas and oil-fired generation across the
market spectrum;

0 efficient plant operations — as demonstrated in 2002 by
the Salem, Hope Creek and Peach Bottom nuclear gen-
erating stations operating at close to 94% of combined
capacity, and all units, including our fossil-fuel plants,
being available to run throughout the summer;

0 an asset-based energy trading, marketing and risk man-
agement operation focused on optimizing the value of
our generation assets.

At PSEG Power,

trading is not about speculation.




Location matters. Most of PSEG Power’s generating units are
located in the heart of the “load pocket” along the U.S. east-
ern seaboard where electric demand is heavy. That gives our
plants an advantage in meeting the market's needs.

Diversity matters, too. PSEG Power's generation fleet is diver-
sified not just by fuel source, but by technology and market
segment, too. Steam, nuclear, combustion turbine, com-
bined-cycle and pumped storage technologies are part of
the mix. We have units geared to serve the market under a
full variety of conditions — from base load to load-following
to peaking. This diversity increases our ability to manage
commodity risk and price volatility. It also better equips us
to match the dispatch of our plants with the requirements
of the market.

Efficiency is vital to extracting value from physical assets like
power plants. Over the last five years, we have set many new
company records in plant operations. In 2002, our nuclear
facilities achieved their highest annual output ever, while
keeping safety in the forefront—where it should and must be.
We completed the refueling of our Salem 1 nuclear unit in
27 days — its shortest completion time ever for a scheduled
refueling. Our Hope Creek nuclear unit achieved a similar
milestone in 2001,

Energy trading has become associated in the public mind
with scandals and abusive practices at some firms—and a
number of other companies exited or curtailed their trading
operations in 2002. Our experience with energy trading

is quite different. Qur energy trading operation is based
on hard physical assets — and utilizes the experience and
knowledge that comes from operating those assets. >

PSEG POWER



Energy trading is not a stand-alone operation at PSEG Power,
but is integrated with power production into one business.
We manage the dispatch of our plants—and market their
output- as a total portfolio, rather than simply operating
our plants as separate manufacturing units. This greatly
increases our flexibility in managing the economics of buy-
ing and selling fuels, electricity and other energy-related
commodities.

We have consistently proven that our portfolio model offers

a far better way for a company with our size, diverse asset
base and load to consistently produce solid earnings. It
greatly enhances the options available in marketing our
output, meeting fuel requirements, managing market volatil-
ity and mitigating risk. There are rigorous management
controls in place that anchor our energy trading operation in
sound business practices. We also utilize a corporate risk-
management function that is independent of trading activity.

PSEG Power’s portfolio includes substantial natural gas

as well as generation assets. As part of New Jersey’s energy
market restructuring, the gas storage and transportation
contracts that were formerly managed by PSE&G were trans-
ferred to PSEG Power in May 2002. This step enhances PSEG
Power’s portfolio and creates significant new opportunities
for value creation.

PSEG Power has more than 13,000 megawatts of operating
capacity: enough power to light approximately 10 million
homes. Most of this capacity is concentrated in P|M, the
nation’s leading market-based power pool, serving more
than 25 million people in all or parts of Pennsylvania,
New |ersey, Maryland, Delaware, Ohio, Virginia, West Virginia
and the District of Columbia.

PSEG Power is pursuing a moderate growth strategy as we
seek to replicate our success in PJM by building positions in
adjacent power pools. We call this larger market the Super
Region, an area extending from New England to the Carolinas
and west to Indiana. We are especially focused on opportu-
nities in New England and New York.

In 2002, we acquired two strategically situated power plants
in Bridgeport and New Haven, Connecticut, with a combined
capacity of over 1,000 megawatts - including coal, natural
gas and oil-fired generation that further adds to the diversity
of our fleet.

Also under development are plans to build a dedicated gen-
erator lead from our power plant in Bergen County, New
Jersey, to a midtown Manhattan substation, to begin serving
the New York City market in 2005.

PSEG Power carefully scrutinizes investments for all of our
plant assets. We have reduced our planned capital spending
by approximately $200 million in 2003 by extending the
construction schedule for the power plants we are build-
ing in Linden, New Jersey; Lawrenceburg, Indiana; and
Bethlehem, New York. This step frees resources for paying
down debt, while also better aligning the completion dates
for each plant with prospects for an improved market.

PSEG Power provides a leading example of how an inde-
pendent power producer can succeed in tough energy
markets. Our record also demonstrates that business suc-
cess and environmental stewardship go together.



PSEG Power’s commitment to protecting the environment
includes redeveloping existing power plant sites with new,
cleaner and more efficient electric generation and emissions
control equipment. In 2002, PSEG Power began operation of a
new 546-megawatt unit at our Bergen generating station—
the second of two large units at the site utilizing clean,
gas-fired, combined-cycle technology. PSEG works in part-
nership with environmental organizations on numerous

projects to conserve natural resources, including the Estuary
Enhancement Program in the Delaware Bay region — one of
the largest coastal restoration projects in the nation.

With these and other achievements, PSEG Power is building
a strong platform for leadership in safety, reliability, environ-
mental achievement and shareholder value.

by managing a diverse porticlic of assets

Our stable business mocel
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PSE&G is closely identified with the qualities that define lead-
ership in the utility industry: Top-tier safety and reliability.
Strong regulatory and community relationships. Responsive,
dedicated customer service. Bedrock qualities like these
mean even more in taday’s rapidly changing financial and
energy markets and explain PSEQG's consistency in deliver-
ing solid cash flow and earnings over many years.

PSE&G is New |ersey’s largest utility, and one of the nation’s
ten largest combined electric and gas utilities, serving
one of the most diverse and densely populated markets in
the U.S. New Jersey is a key engine of America’s economic
growth - relatively small in size, but with a high concentra-
tion of knowledge-based industries, an educated workforce,
and globally linked transportation systems. Delivering

the power to drive this economic engine is the unremitting
focus of PSE&G’s people and systems— and basic to our
success for 100 years. “To develop the state of New Jersey
and make it a better place to live” — the commitment that
drove Thomas McCarter to found our company in 1903 and
build it over many years — continues to drive the men and
women of PSE&G today.

PSE&G provides essential utility services for 2 million electric
and 1.6 million gas customers in a corridor encompassing
two-thirds of the state’s population, its six largest cities, and
close to 300 suburban and rural communities. It is no small
task to maintain this extensive pipes-and-wires network at
the highest standards of safety and reliability— and to achieve
these standards cost-effectively.

PSE&G’s record in getting the reliability/cost equation right
is among the best in the nation. In 2002, PSE&G received
the prestigious ReliabilityOne award for superior electric
system reliability in the Mid-Atlantic region— a result based
on an expert study of more than 100 utilities nationwide
during the previous year. PSE&G has consistently delivered
top-ranked safety and reliability at the lowest cost of any
major utility in New ]ersey.

Making things work for utility customers means being respon-
sive and caring. PSE&G’s associates, who handle over 75
million customer transactions annually, put these words into
action every day. In 2002, PSE&G continued its high level

of customer service, again ranking in the top quartile of the
nation’s utilities. In addition, PSE&G’s WorryFree appliance
repair service expanded its product offerings in 2002 to
include heating and air-conditioning replacement systems,
enhancing the success and growth of that business.

People —the men and women of PSE&G — are the reason
our company maintains its industry leadership position.
Technology provides them with vital tools. PSE&G has intro-
duced a number of state-of-the-art systems designed to
improve service and reliability, including a wireless data
and communication system to identify power outages more
quickly and accurately and speed restoration times. Other
new systems are being developed and deployed to manage
work processes, identify equipment problems before they
become more serious, schedule maintenance, and monitor
labor performance and costs.

PSERG also has an advanced technology research effort
under way to use transformer sensors to detect and predict
equipment problems or related security issues. We will con-
tinue to invest in technology wherever it helps us to drive
operational efficiency, achieve cost savings or enhance cus-
tomer service.

As a regulated utility, another important factor in PSE&G's
success has been our ability to fulfill our fundamental service
obligations as efficiently as possible. This remains true as
New Jersey continues a process of electric market restructur-
ing that has delivered real savings to utility customers.

The transition to a competitive energy market has gone
smoothly in New Jersey—in contrast to the process in California
and some other states. As mandated by New Jersey’s energy
market restructuring law, the Electric Discount and Energy
Competition Act (EDECA), PSER&G’s electric customers have
received rate discounts aggregating 13.9% since 1999 - for a
cumulative savings of $1.4 billion. >



It means being a solid,

steady, consistent performer.

We've done thet tor 100 years.
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Market-based pricing for electricity, a key component of full
retail competition, comes into effect in New Jersey in August
2003, with the completion of the four-year transition period
provided by EDECA. This milestone coincides with a pro-
posed electric base-rate increase — the first in ten years -
to reflect over $1.7 billion that PSERG invested during this
decade in new and replacement infrastructure to deliver
essential services, as well as the costs of heightened security
and other expenses. The proposed $250 million rate increase
would restore PSERG'’s return on equity to more traditional
levels consistent with running a first-class utility system. Even
with this increase, the average residential customer would
still be paying lower distribution rates than when market
restructuring began in 1999,

In early January 2002, the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities
granted PSE&G a rate increase, averaging 3.5% for our gas

customers, to cover the cost of transporting natural gas and
maintaining our gas infrastructure and systems. This was the
first natural gas base-rate increase to customers in a decade.

A notable feature of PSE&G's culture and practice is main-
taining positive, productive union-management relationships.
In 2002, PSERG and Local 601 of the Utility Workers Union
of America (UWUA) successfully negotiated a three-year con-
tract. Local 601 represents approximately 1,300 meter reading,
collection and customer service employees.

For PSE&G, investing in New |ersey begins with the utility
network — and the highly skilled and dedicated workforce
needed to maintain it— and with making things work for
customers, But the investment goes well beyond this. PSE&G
has long worked to help foster the economic health of New
Jersey’s cities and their residents.

In Camden, a city of 80,000 across the Delaware River from
Philadelphia, PSE&G began a pilot program in 2002 to pro-
vide electric discounts to spur small business development
along the city’s waterfront. PSE&G is also developing a com-
prehensive technology program that provides connectivity
among the city’s public schools, libraries and community-
based organizations.

Advancing educational opportunity is vital to building strong
communities — and essential to helping develop the diverse
talent pool we need to be successful for the next hundred
years. In 2002, PSE&G announced a partnership with Mercer
County Community College (MCCC) for a new degree program
in utility technology. Blending academic courses and work
experience, the program prepares graduates for positions
as entry-level technicians — with the prospect of rewarding
careers in the utility industry or related fields. PSE&G is also
partnering with Trenton Central High School on a comple-
mentary program that will improve students’ skills and serve
as a natural bridge for them to take advantage of the com-
pany’s collaboration with MCCC.

Protecting the environment and redeveloping New [ersey’s
cities are flip sides of the same coin. PSE&G enthusiastically
supports “Smart Growth” economic development to conserve
open space, limit sprawl and protect New Jersey’s vital nat-
ural resources. Smart Growth is the centerpiece of promising
public and private sector efforts to focus new development
to take advantage, where possible, of existing infrastructure -
the network of roads, public utilities and other facilities
supporting the entire econamy. It offers a better, more bal-
anced way for New |ersey to grow — without leaving any
area behind.

By investing in people, infrastructure and communities,
PSE&G has played an instrumental role in New Jersey’s
progress for 100 years. This commitment to making things
work for New |ersey continues as we embark on our
second century of service.

PSE&G
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PSEG Energy Holdings has a balanced portfolio of energy
businesses and investments. The portfolio is diversified geo-
graphically - with a significant U.S. as well as international
presence — and diversified by business type as well.

The two principal businesses in the portfolio complement
one another: PSEG Resources invests primarily in financial
transactions, specifically energy-related leveraged leases,
and PSEG Global owns and operates generation and dis-
tribution assets. PSEG Resources’ passive investments help
balance the higher risks associated with PSEG Global’s
operating assets in several foreign countries.

In 2002, PSEG Energy Holdings dealt with significant chal-
lenges in South America, and wrote off PSEG Global’s equity
investment in Argentina. While events in that country and cer-
tain other markets were disappointing, PSEG Energy Holdings
continued to benefit by, strong results from PSEG Resources
and from the balance of its portfolio at PSEG Global.

PSEG Resources is a proven performer~with a track record of
delivering solid, steady income and earnings. This business
has earned more than A$600 million since being created in
1985, and had a record year in 2002.

Most of PSEG Resources’ investments are in solid assets.
As a further step to mitigate risk, PSEG Resources has struc-
tured lease arrangements with the goal of protecting its
equity position. Such arrangements proved instrumental
in enabling PSEG Resources to fully recover its investment
in two United Kingdom power plants that had become
financially distressed. The leases for these facilities were
successfully terminated in December 2002.

PSEG Global made difficult but necessary adjustments in
2002 with the decisions to exit its operations in Argentina,
sell its interest in the Tanir Bavi power plant in india and
write off a portion of the goodwill from its Brazilian opera-
tions. PSEG Global is focused on improving the profitability
of its existing investments — with capital spending limited to
current commitments. By curtailing new investments at PSEG
Global and PSEG Resources in 2003, PSEG Energy Holdings
reduced capital spending by approximately $300 million.
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In 2002, PSEG Global reduced one element of business
uncertainty by renegotiating long-term contracts to supply
power to the state of California from three peaking facilities,
with a combined capacity of 340 megawatts. The first of
these power plants began operation in 2001, and the second
in 2002. The settlement has enabled construction to proceed
on the third facility, which is scheduled to start supplying
power in 2003. Earnings from PSEG Global's California assets,
which include several other power plants, offset losses at
two Texas facilities in 2002 stemming from low power prices.
We anticipate that market conditions in Texas will improve
over the long term.

Several factors mitigate the risks associated with PSEG
Global’s portfolio. Its operating facilities are diversified across
the generation and distribution sectors and by geography
as well. Three-quarters of the portfolio’s earnings are from
countries with investment-grade ratings. Of PSEG Global’s
net generation capacity of approximately 3,500 megawatts
operating or under construction, 60% is sold under long-
&@@h@\fo “";g @Eﬁ\@g@go term contracts. Exiting under-performing assets — especially
= in Argentina — will also reduce PSEG Global’s exposure
going forward.

PSEG Energy Holdings has also decided to exit the retail
energy service business of its PSEG Energy Technologies
- (PSEG ET) subsidiary. PSEG ET's investments in Demand Side
PEIE Management {DSM) - a business that enables utilities to serve
customers more efficiently— have continued to be profitable
and will be retained. At the end of 2002, the DSM business
e g became a component of PSEG Resources.

PSEG Energy Holdings and its subsidiaries faced a challeng-
ing environment in 2002, but by making tough decisions,
emerged tighter and leaner.

A reasoned and critical analysis of PSEG Global’s portfolio will
continue, and may selectively involve the sale of certain assets
to enhance shareholder value. A disciplined asset-manage-

ment philosophy will also remain essential, as PSEG Energy
Holdings strives to increase returns on its existing assets.
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CORE VALUES

The proof of good corporate citizenship comes in doing -
in living by commitments, keeping promises and practicing
good values — not merely giving lip service to them. At PSEG,
good values aren’t a matter of the latest fad or fashion, but
go to the heart of why our company has reached our 100th
anniversary — and why we remain strong today.

Commitment to Employee Safety. PSEG’'s foremost commit-
ment is to the health and safety of our employees—an
essential element of success in a business built on working
with gas and electricity safely around the clock. Our accom-
plishments in meeting this safety commitment are the result
of the outstanding individual and team efforts of employees
throughout our company.

In 2002, PSEG’s employees enjoyed their safest year ever -
building on the previous year’s best-ever performance. Over
the last six years, the severity and frequency of accidents
have fallen by more than two thirds. A notable achievement
in 2002 was the dramatic improvement in safety perform-
ance by PSEG Power’s fossil operations.

PSEG also continues to make great strides in building a
safety culture that knows no borders —encompassing all our
operations around the globe. In Peru, for example, the large
distribution company that we operate — Luz del Sur- has
reduced its accident rate by 45% over three years.

Security goes hand in hand with health and safety. PSEG

is playing a leadership role in responding to the challenges
of a post-9/11 world — drawing on our safety culture and
experience in emergency preparedness and response. Our
security template has been adapted for use by all of New
Jersey’s utilities, and subsequently, by many of the state’s
industries. It is now being used nationally, Comprehensive
security measures have long been in place at PSEG’s nuclear
facilities, and have been further enhanced. We continue to
work closely with federal, state and local authorities, as well
as with our industry peers, to plan and coordinate security
matters as needed.
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Commitment to Community. PSEG has a strong, active
tradition of community support and involvement. In New
Jersey, PSEG spends nearly $4 million annually supporting
communities as well as economic and area development
activity. These dollars can accomplish more because of our
grassroots involvement in building strong partnerships with
community groups. In Newark’s South Ward, for example,
PSEG has built a coalition with 125 local organizations to
galvanize revitalization efforts. Partnering with many United
Way organizations, PSEG helps bring diverse people and
resources together to address vital health and human serv-
ice needs — over and above the dollars provided through
corporate fund raising.

Community involvement isn’t just “top down” at PSEG, but
is reflected in the volunteer activities and contributions of
many PSEG employees. The people of PSEG are making a
difference in their communities — supporting and contribut-
ing their skills to youth groups, school boards, emergency
service units and other organizations. A particular focus
of employee volunteerism is the annual March of Dimes
WalkAmerica campaign to support medical research and
programs to improve the health of babies. In 2002, our
employees raised $172,000 for the March of Dimes - the
most of any utility nationwide. PSEG actively encourages
and supports our employees’ volunteer involvement - not
only in New Jersey, but in communities elsewhere around
the nation and world where we do business. >

After the Sarbanes-Oxley Act became law last July 30,

we were one of the first Fortune 500 companies
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Commitment {o the Eavironment. PSEG is also an industry
leader in advancing environmental responsibility— and back-
ing advocacy with action. A decade ago, PSEG was the first
company in the nation to accept the 1993 Climate Change
Challenge, under which we set and achieved a goal of sta-
bitizing greenhouse gas emissions at 1930 levels by the year
2000. In 2002, PSEG entered into an agreement with the
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (N)DEP)
that calls for a 15% reduction from the 1990 baseline in

the carbon dioxide emissions rate at our New |ersey-based
fossil-fuel power plants during the next five years. We

also reached a settiement in 2002 with the NJDEP and U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) to dramatically
cut emissions from our coal-fired generating stations in
New Jersey. PSEG is also a forceful advocate of more rigor-
ous, uniform national policies to control and limit power
plant emissions. Carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases
are included in this multi-pollutant approach.

In 2002, PSEG’s environmental leadership was recognized
by Scientific American magazine, which named PSEG to its

annual list of 50 top contributors to science and technology
providing a vision for a better future. The magazine’s board
of editors specifically cited PSEG’s “constructive, progressive
attitude toward reducing emissions that pose hazards as

pollutants or as greenhouse gases.”

PSEG has a strong commitment to cleaner water as well as
cleaner air. We pioneered the use of recycled, treated waste-
water for power-plant cooling, and in 2002 further extended
the use of this technology at our Bergen generating station
in New Jersey. The new treatment system saved about 10
million gallons of city water per month during an especially
dry period in 2002. In addition to conserving municipal
water, it has completely eliminated the need to withdraw or
discharge water from the nearby Hackensack River.

PSEG Power is also playing a leadership role in a new
public-private partnership launched in 2002 to promote
wetlands restoration in New Jersey, New York and the Mid-
Atlantic region. The program complements PSEG's Estuary
Enhancement Program, which since 1996 has helped restore
wetlands and fish habitats in Delaware Bay.



Cemmitment to Corporate Integrity and the Investing Public.
The events of 2002 made clear that credibility in the market-
place ultimately rests on integrity — and that integrity is the
only sound foundation for any business. This foundation is
strong and well established at PSEG.

The principle of conducting our business ethically is not new,
but is central to the reputation PSEG has earned over 100
years. That principle has been formalized in recent years to
make sure it endures.

PSEG’s current formal code of business conduct, the Standards
of Integrity, is in keeping with this century-long tradition.
The standards embody our commitment to conduct our busi-
ness honestly, ethically and in full compliance with the law.
They apply to all directors, officers and employees — with
communications and training provided to ensure they are
fully understood by all. There is a Certificate of Compliance
process that periodically requires associates to certify their
compliance with the standards. Directors must certify their
compliance annually.

While some other companies were making extensive changes
to comply with new corporate governance standards, PSEG
already had a very strong governance framework in place.
PSEG was one of the first public companies in the U.S. to file
the new disclosure certifications that require executives to
sign and confirm the accuracy of their company’s financial
statements, PSEG is determined to safeguard and maintain
the good, simple values of fair and honest dealing that
anchor our company’s reputation.

Good values make good business sense. PSEG's abiding
philosophy is that if we are successful in living by our core
values, we will assuredly be successful in fulfilling our
ultimate business purpose: to deliver value to our share-
holders. PSEG’s core commitment to our investors, like
our other core values, is both a fundamental responsibility
and trust. By continuing to honor these values, we will
build the surest foundation for another successful 100 years.

CORE VALUES
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E. James Ferland
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer;
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of PSE&G,
PSEG Energy Holdings, PSEG Power and PSEG Services

Robert E. Busch
President and Chief Operating Officer of PSEG Services;
Senior Vice President—Finance and Chief Financial Officer of PSE&G

Frank Cassidy
President and Chief Operating Officer of PSEG Power

Robert ]. Dougherty, Jr.
President and Chief Operating Officer of PSEG Energy Holdings

Ernest ¥. Drewvy has been a director since 1993. Was Chief Executive
Officer of industries and Technology Group, Westinghouse Electric
Corporation, from July 1997 to December 1997. Was a member, Board
of Management of Hoechst AG, Frankfurt, Germany, a manufacturer
of pharmaceuticals, chemicals, fibers, film, specialties and advanced
materials, from january 1995 to |une 1997. Was Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of Hoechst Celanese Corporation of
Somerville, New |ersey from May 1994 until January 1995, and was
President and Chief Executive Officer from January 1988 to May 1994.

£. [ames Feriand has been a director since 1986. Has been Chairman
of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of PSEG since July
1986; Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of PSE&G since
September 1991; Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
PSEG Energy Holdings since June 1989; Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of PSEG Power since June 1999; and Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of PSEG Services since November 1999.

Albert R, Zamper, jr. has been a director since December 2000,
Has been Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
of The CIT Group, Inc. of Livingston, New Jersey, a commercial finance
company, since July 2002. Was President and Chief Executive Officer of
The CIT Group, Inc. from February 2002 to june 2002. Was President
and Chief Executive Officer of Tyco Capital Corporation from june 2001
to February 2002. Was Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of The CIT Group, Inc. from |anuary 2000 to June 2001,
and President and Chief Executive Officer of The CIT Group, Inc. from
December 1989 to December 1999.

Reymond V. Gilmartin has been a director since 1993. Has been
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Merck
& Co., Inc. of Whitehouse Station, New Jersey, a global pharmaceutical
firm that discovers, develops, manufactures and markets human and
animal health products, since November 1994, Was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Merck & Co., Inc. from June 1994 to November 1994,

Alfred C. Keeppe
President and Chief Operating Officer of PSE&G

Thomas M. O°Flynn
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Executive Vice
President - Finance of PSEG Services; Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of PSEG Power and PSEG Energy Holdings

Patricia A. Rado
Vice President and Controller; Vice President
and Controller of PSE&G, PSEG Power and PSEG Services

R. Edwin Selover
Senior Vice President and General Counsel; Senior Vice President
and General Counsel of PSE&G and PSEG Services

Was Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Becton Dickinson and Company from November 1992 to June 1994.

Conrad [, Harper has been a director since May 1997. Has been of
counsel to the law firm of Simpson Thacher and Bartlett of New York,
New York since January 2003. Was a partner in the law firm of Simpson
Thacher and Bartlett from October 1996 to December 2002, and from
October 1974 to May 1993. Was Legal Adviser, U.S. Department of State,
from May 1993 to June 1996.

Willlara V. Kickey has been a director since October 2001. Has been
President and Chief Executive Officer of Sealed Air Corporation of
Saddle Brook, New [ersey, a manufacturer of food, protective and
specialty packaging materials and systems, since March 2000, and
its President since 1996. Has served in management positions with
increasing levels of responsibility with Sealed Air Corporation since
joining the company in 1980.

Shirley Anw Jacksen has been a director since june 2001, Has been
President of Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute since july 1999. Was
Chairman of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission from 1995 to
1999. Was Professor of Thearetical Physics at Rutgers University
and concurrently served as a Consultant in semiconductor theory
to the former AT&T Bell Laboratories from 1991 to 1995.

Martlyn M. Plaltz has been a director since 1980. Has been a partner
of P and R Associates of Summit, New Jersey, a communications firm,
since 1968,

Richard J. Swift has been a director since 1994. Has been Chairman
of the Financial Accounting Standards Advisory Council since January
2002. Was Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
of Foster Wheeler Ltd., of Clinton, New |ersey, a firm providing design,
engineering, construction, manufacturing, management, plant opera-
tions and environmental services, from April 1994 to October 2001




STOCKHOLDER INFORMATIOWN

tock Exchange Listings
New York (PSEG common and preferred, and PSE&G preferred)
Trading Symbol: PEG

Annual Meeting

Please note that the annual meeting of stockholders of Public
Service Enterprise Group Incorporated will be held at the
New Jersey Performing Arts Center (NJPAC), One Center Street,
Newark, New Jersey, on Tuesday, April 15, 2003 at 2 p.m.

Stockholder Services

Please include your account number or social security number
in any inquiry you may have about stock transfer, dividends,
dividend reinvestment, direct deposit, missing or lost certifi-
cates, change of address requests, or for any other account
specific request.

Stockholder Services on the Internet

Please visit the PSEG Stockholder Services site:
www.pseg.com/investorinfo/stockholder

On this site you can get historical stock prices, dividend infor-
mation, instructions on how to transfer shares, downloadable
forms, information on direct deposit, certificate safekeeping,
and information on additional stockholder services.

How to contact Stockholder Services
Toll free: 800-242-0813

(weekdays, 10 a.m.-3:30 p.m. ET)

Fax: 973-824-7056

E-mail: stkserv@pseg.com
www.pseg.com/investorinfo/stockholder

Mailing address:
Stockholder Services

PSEG Services Corporation
P.0. Box 1171

Newark, NJ 07101-1171

Security Analysts and Institutional Investors
For information contact:
Director—{nvestor Relations 973-430-6564

Proxy E-Delivery ‘

Log on to www.pseg.com/edelivery to enroll for free delivery
of future Annual Meeting documents. When copies of the Proxy
Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders are distributed
in connection with future Annual Meetings, you will receive an
e-mail alert that the materials are ready to be viewed elec-
tronically. This e-mail will also provide instructions on how to
vote your shares electronically. If you enroll, you will not
receive copies of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report to
Stockholders in the mail.

Transfer Agents

The transfer agents for the common and preferred stocks are:
Stockholder Services

PSEG Services Corporation

P.0. Box 1171

Newark, NJ 07101-1171

Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company
17 Battery Place, 8th Floor
New York, NY 10004

Enterprise Direct

PSEG offers Enterprise Direct, a stock purchase and dividend
reinvestment plan. For additional information, including a plan
prospectus and an enroliment form, call or send us an e-mail
with your current mailing address.

Dividends

Dividends on the common stock of PSEG, as declared by the
Board of Directors, are generally payable on the last business
day of March, June, September and December of each year.
Regular quarterly dividends on PSE&G’s preferred stock are
payable on the last business day of March, June, September
and December of each year.

Direct Deposit of Dividends

No more dividend checks delayed in the mail. No waiting in
bank lines. Your quarterly common and preferred stock divi-
dend payments can be deposited electronically to your personal
checking or savings account. More information, including
instructions and a downloadable form, is available on our web-
site or by contacting us by phone. It's a free service.

Beposit of Certificates

To eliminate the risk and cost of loss, shareholders can
deposit their certificates with the company and still receive
a paid dividend.

Common Stock—Market Price and Dividerd Per Shars
2002 2001
HIGH Low DIv. HIGH LOwW DIV.
First Quarter $46.80 $4046 $.56  $48.50 $36.88 $.54
Second Quarter 47.25 4130 .54 51.55 4180 .54
Third Quarter 43.50 2800 .54 50.00 40.21 .54
Fourth Quarter 3238 2000 54 44.20 3870 S4

The number of holders of record of Public Service Enterprise
Group Incorporated common shares as of December 31, 2002
was 114,473

23




KEY TRENDS

Nuclear Combined Capacity Factor
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2002 was the strongest year
ever for PSEG Nuclear.

PSEG Safety Performance

OSHA Recordable Incidence Rates
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FEWER ACCIDENTS ¥

Safely continues to be our number

one concern and accidents are down
as a result.
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Customers consistently rate us
high in customer satisfaction.
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Our commitment to a cleaner environ-
ment is backed up by actions.




FINANCIAL REVIEW

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (MD&A)

OVERVIEW OF 2002 AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Overview

PSEG

PSEG’s subsidiaries consist of a mix of energy-related businesses that together are designed to produce a
balanced energy market strategy. Because the nature and risks of these businesses are different, and because they
operate in different geographic locations, the combined entity is intended to produce consistent earnings growth
in a manner that will mitigate the adverse financial effects of business losses or an economic downturn in any one
sector or geographic region.

During 2002, PSEG’s strategy to maintain a diverse portfolio of energy-related businesses helped it to achieve
results from its ongoing operations that were well within the revised earnings guidance of $3.70 to $3.90 per share
provided to investors in July 2002, and within 6% of the original earnings guidance provided at the beginning of
2002. Management believes that this portfolio approach will help to balance changes in the earnings profiles for
PSEG’s individual subsidiaries, providing a foundation for PSEG’s earnings in 2003 and supporting PSEG’s attempt
to achieve its targeted long-term 7% annual growth rate as market conditions improve. However, even with this
portfolio approach to the business, greater volatility in earnings and cash flows will occur due to the continuing
evolution of the energy industry, both in the United States (US) and internationally.

Over recent years, PSEG has realigned its organizational structure to address the competitive environment
brought about by the deregulation of the electric generation industry and has transitioned from primarily being a
regulated New Jersey utility to operating as a competitive energy company with operations primarily in the
Northeastern US and in other select domestic and international markets. As the unregulated portion of the business
continues to grow, financial risks and rewards will be greater, financial requirements will change and the volatility
of earnings and cash flows will increase. As of December 31, 2002, Power, PSE&G, and Energy Holdings comprised
approximately 27%, 48% and 27% of PSEG’s consolidated assets and contributed approximately 60%, 26% and
18% of PSEG’s results for the year ended December 31, 2002, excluding the charges discussed below.

During 2002, the financial markets experienced significant pressures, particularly relating to increased credit
and liquidity concerns in the energy industry. In response, PSEG took significant steps to strengthen its balance
sheet. Early in 2002, PSEG began issuing approximately $80 million of common stock on an annual basis through
its dividend reinvestment program. In September 2002, PSEG issued $460 million of participating units. In the
fourth quarter, PSEG issued $458 million of common stock and $180 million of preferred securities. Altogether,
PSEG issued over $1.1 billion in equity and equity-linked securities since September 2002 and used the proceeds
primarily to reduce short-term debt. For further information regarding the issuances of these equity and equity-
linked securities, see Note 10. Schedule of Consolidated Capital Stock and Other Securities.

In addition to these equity issuances, PSEG took steps to significantly reduce its capital expenditures, which were
at a peak in 2002. Early in 2002, PSEG announced that Energy Holdings is limiting future investments to contractual
commitments, primarily those needed to complete the development of generating plants currently under construction,
and recently revised the timeline for the completion of several of Power’s generating station construction projects.

The equity issuances and revised capital expenditure program discussed above enabled PSEG to accelerate
its planned reduction of its leverage ratio in the fourth quarter. Going into 2003, PSEG’s leverage ratio was 0.61
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to 1 as calculated under its credit agreements. This ratio included an after-tax charge in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) of approximately $297 million related to its pension plan, the result of the accumulated benefit
obligation of the pension exceeding the value of its pension assets.

PSE&G

PSE&G operates as an electric and gas public utility in New Jersey under cost-based regulation by the New
Jersey Board of Public Utilities (BPU) for its distribution operations and by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) for its electric transmission operations. As such, the earnings of PSE&G are largely determined
by the regulation of its rates. PSE&G expects stable earnings and cash flows in the future as it continues its
transmission and distribution and sale of electric energy and gas service in New Jersey.

PSE&G’s success will be determined by its ability to maintain system reliability and safety, effectively manage
costs and obtain timely and adequate rate relief. The risks from this business generally relate to the regulatory
treatment of the various rate and other issues by the BPU and the FERC. In 2002, PSE&G obtained a successful
outcome to its gas base rate case, its first in ten years, transferred its gas supply contracts and gas inventory to Power
and filed for an increase in electric rates to be effective August 1, 2003. That will mark the end of PSE&G’s four-year
transition period, completing its transition to a transmission and distribution business.

Power

Power is focused on a generation market extending from Maine to the Carolinas and the Atlantic Coast to
Indiana (Super Region). Power’s strategy is to continue to market its capacity through Basic Generation Service
(BGS) related contracts and other bilateral contracts in New Jersey and its target market. Utilizing a generation
portfolio diversified by fuel source, technology and market segment, Power seeks to balance its generating capacity,
fuel requirements and supply obligations through integrated energy marketing and trading, enhance its ability to
produce low cost energy through continued strong nuclear operations and pursue modest growth based on market
conditions. Power integrates its electric generation production with its wholesale energy marketing and trading
activities and risk management function. '

During 2002, record capacity factors at its nuclear facilities, coupled with Power’s ability to use energy trading
to manage the risk of its obligations, enabled Power to meet its fixed price demands under the BGS related contracts
with economic supply. Power also added to its generating capacity in the Northeast and established a foothold in
the New England Independent System Operator (ISO) through its acquisition of two power plants totaling
approximately 1,000 MW. Also, Power enhanced its portfolio by becoming a gas commodity supplier to PSE&G
under a Basic Gas Supply Service (BGSS) contract.

In response to low energy prices, Power has scaled back its new project anticipated growth, shifting its
emphasis more towards potential acquisitions, and has adjusted its generating station construction schedules to
better align with anticipated market prices.

Power entered into contracts for the period beginning August 1, 2002 and ending July 31, 2003 with various
successful bidders in the New Jersey Basic Generation Service (BGS) Auction. Power was also a participant in
the recent BGS auction held in February 2003. Power entered into hourly energy price contracts to be a direct
supplier of certain large customers for a ten-month period beginning August 1, 2003 and expiring May 30, 2004.
Power also entered into contracts with third parties who are direct suppliers of New Jersey’s Electric Distribution
Companies (EDCs). Through these seasonally-adjusted fixed price contracts, Power will indirectly serve New
Jersey’s smaller commercial and residential customers for ten-month and 34-month periods beginning August 1,
2003 and expiring on May 30, 2004 and May 30, 2006, respectively. Power believes that its obligations under these
contracts are reasonably balanced by its available supply.

Energy Holdings

During 2002, a rﬁerger was consummated at Energy Holdings to change the form of the business from a
corporation to a limited liability company. Energy Holdings succeeded to all the assets and liabilities of PSEG Energy
Holdings Inc. in accordance with the New Jersey Limited Liability Company Act. As part of the reorganization, PSEG
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Resources Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PSEG Resources LLC (Resources), a newly formed New Jersey
limited liability company. This reorganization was completed to further improve efficiencies within the tax reporting
process.

Energy Holdings, through PSEG Global Inc. (Global), invests in, owns and operates generation and distribution
facilities in select international and US markets. The generation plants sell power under long-term agreements as
well as on a merchant basis while the distribution companies are rate-regulated enterprises. Through Resources,
Energy Holdings invests in energy-related financial transactions, including leveraged leases, which are designed
to produce predictable earnings at reasonable levels.

As a result of the worldwide economic downturn and the adverse development of several risks at certain of
its investments, in 2002 Energy Holdings refocused its strategy from one of accelerated growth to one that places
emphasis on increasing the efficiency and returns of its existing assets, and, going forward, intends to limit its
spending to contractual commitments. In 2002, Energy Holdings recorded the financial impact of these events as
it wrote-down its investment in Argentina, discontinued the operations of PSEG Energy Technologies Inc. (Energy
Technologies) and a generating facility in India, and recorded goodwill impairment charges. Global will also
selectively review its portfolio and seek to monetize, at reasonable values, investments which may no longer have
a strategic fit. Resources has shifted its focus from new investments to monitoring its current investment portfolio,
primarily energy-related leveraged leases. In 2002, the credit profile of several of the lessees deteriorated. In
November 2002, Resources terminated its two lease transactions with affiliates of TXU-Europe, recovered its
invested capital and recorded a modest gain on the termination. See Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About
Market Risk — Credit Risk for further discussion.

Future Outlock

PSEG

PSEG develops a long-range growth target by building business plans and financial forecasts for each major
business (PSE&G, Power, Global and Resources). These plans and forecasts incorporate specific, rather than
generic, project investments. Key factors which influence the performance of each business, such as fuel input costs
and forward power prices, are also incorporated. Sensitivity analyses are performed on the key variables that drive
the businesses’ financial results in order to understand the impact of these assumptions on PSEG’s projections. Once
plans are in place, PSEG management monitors actual results and the key variables and updates the financial
projections to reflect changes in the energy markets, the economy and global conditions. Management believes this
monitoring and forecasting process enables it to alter operating and investment plans adequately and appropriately
as conditions change.

Looking ahead, PSEG forecasts 2003 results of $3.70 to $3.90 per share for continuing operations, comparable
to results for 2002, excluding losses from Argentine investments. This earnings per share guidance is expected to
be achieved through results from PSEG’s ongoing operations which is expected to offset the effects of the common
equity issuance in November 2002 and the use of a more conservative financing structure as PSEG issued more
costly common and preferred equity and fixed-rate debt to replace low cost commercial paper, discussed above.
Subsequent to 2003, PSEG seeks to attain its 7% long-term annual growth rate target in earnings per share.

Several key assumptions in PSEG’s 2003 business plan are: Power will continue to be successful in securing
BGS-related contracts and managing its obligations under such contracts with available supply; PSE&G will have
a successful outcome to its recently filed electric rate case seeking an approximately $250 million increase in electric
rates beginning in August 2003 and benefit from more normal weather; Global, with significant cost-cutting measures
in place and limited spending planned over the five year planning horizon, will experience improvements in earnings
through its focus on increasing the return on its existing assets; and Resources, with less exposure to its investment
in the KKR Associates L.P. (KKR) leveraged buyout funds, will continue to be a steady contributor to earnings and
cash flows. In the later years of the business plan, PSEG expects energy and capacity prices to increase as the current
overbuild situation dissipates and reserve margins in the Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland power pool (PIM), the
Midwest and Texas return to more reasonable levels.
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During 2002, the energy segment of the financial markets experienced significant volatility and, in the third
quarter, the fair value of Power’s and Energy Holdings’ long term debt decrease significantly. The fair value of Power’s
and Energy Holdings’ long-term debt rebounded in the fourth quarter of 2002, returning to more reasonable levels.
PSEG’s business plan assumes that the fair value of its securities and the securities of its subsidiaries will continue
to be valued at reasonable levels, enabling PSEG continued access to capital over the long-term. However, even if
volatility returns to the marketplace and the value of PSEG’s securities or its subsidiaries’ securities are negatively
affected, PSEG believes that it has sufficient liquidity.to continue to meets its business plans. PSEG’s business plan
also assumes a stable financial marketplace and a reasonable return on its pension plan funds and Nuclear
Decommissioning Trust (NDT) Funds which have total investments of approximately $3 billion. Changes in the value
of these funds will affect PSEG’s earnings, equity balance and the required amount of funding.

As a result of PSEG’s forecasted operating cash flows and the changes in future capital expenditures,
PSEG expects to have funds available to maintain its current dividend policy and have positive cash flow for
each of the next five years. PSEG expects to use this free cash flow to continue to enhance its financial profile
by reducing leverage. PSEG anticipates that its leverage ratio will decline modestly by the end of the year due to
capital expenditures being primary funded with cash from operations, earnings for 2003 exceeding dividend
requirements and also the required adoption of SFAS 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”
(SFAS 143), which will benefit earnings, and therefore equity. The impact of SFAS 143 is not reflected in PSEG’s
2003 earnings guidance and is expected to more than offset the pension related charge to equity discussed above
in Overview.

Dividend payments on common stock for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $2.16 per share and totaled
approximately $456 million. Although PSEG presently believes it will have adequate earnings and cash flow in
the future from its subsidiaries to maintain common stock dividends at the current level, earnings and cash flows
required to support the dividend will become more uncertain as its business continues to evolve. Future dividends
declared will necessarily be dependent upon PSEG’s future earnings, cash flows, financial requirements, alternate
investment opportunities and other factors. PSEG’s payout ratios were 58% in 2002 and 2001, excluding charges
discussed above. PSEG would consider increasing the dividend if the payout ratio fell below 50% and could be
sustained at that level.

PSE&G

PSE&G’s success will be dependent, in part, on its ability to obtain a reasonable and timely outcome to its
recently filed electric rate case, as well as its ability to continue to recover the regulatory assets it has deferred and
the investments it plans to make in its electric and gas transmission and distribution systems. The proposed rate
increase would significantly impact PSE&G’s earnings and operating cash flows. The non-depreciation portion of
the requested rate increase ($232 million) would have a positive effect on PSE&G’s earnings and operating cash
flows. The depreciation portion of the requested rate increase ($18 million) would have no impact on PSE&G’s
earnings, as the increased operating cash flows would be offset by higher depreciation charges. The outcome of
these matters cannot be predicted, but are expected to be material to PSE&G results of operations, financial condition
and net cash flows.

Power

A major risk of Power’s business is that the competitive wholesale power prices that it is able to obtain are
sufficient to provide a profit and sustain the value of its assets. It is also subject to credit risk of the counterparties
to whom it sells energy products, the successful operation of its generating facilities, fluctuations in market prices
of energy and imbalances between obligations and available supply. Power is currently constructing projects, which
will increase capacity from approximately 13,000 MW to 16,000 MW, net of planned retirements through 2005.

Power’s success as a BGS provider will depend, in part, on its ability to meet its obligations under its full
requirements contracts with the BGS suppliers profitably. Power expects to accomplish this by producing energy
from its own generation and/or energy purchases in the market. Power also enters into trading positions related
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to its generation assets and supply obligations. To the extent it does not hedge its obligations, whether long or short,
Power will be subject to the risk of price fluctuations that could affect its future results, such as changes in the
expected price of energy and capacity that Power sells into the market, increases in the price of energy purchased
to meet its supply obligations, the cost of fuel to generate electricity, the cost of emission credits needed for
environmental compliance, and the cost of congestion credits which are used by Power to transmit electricity and
other factors. In addition, Power is subject to the risk of substandard operating performance of its fossil and nuclear
generating units. To the extent there are unexpected outages at Power’s generating facilities, changes in
environmental or nuclear regulations or other factors that impact the production by such units or the ability to
generate and transmit electricity in a cost effective manner, it may cost Power more to acquire or produce electricity.
These risks can be exacerbated by, among other things, changes in demand in electricity usage, such as those due
to extreme weather and economic conditions.

Power’s future revenue stream is uncertain because Power cannot accurately predict revenues beyond the
termination of the ten-month BGS contracts. However, this uncertainty has been partially mitigated by a portion of the
BGS demand being contracted for a 34-month period. Also, certain of Power’s new projects, such as its investments
in the Lawrenceburg and Waterford projects under construction in Indiana and Ohio, the plants Power acquired in 2002
from- Wisvest Corporation in Connecticut and its development of the Bethlehem Energy Center in New York are also
subject to the risk of changes in future energy prices as Power has not entered into forward sale contracts for the majority
of the expected generation capacity of these facilities. Power also expects that capacity prices will increase over its five
year planning horizon as the overbuild situation in the Super Region dissipates as older, less efficient units are retired
in the region.. Also, since the majority of Power’s generation facilities are concentrated in the Northeast region, changes
in future energy supply and demand and energy-related prices in this region could materiaily affect Power’s results. Also,
changes in the rules and regulation of these markets by FERC, particularly changes in the ruies in the power pools in
which Power conducts business and ability to maintain market based rates, could have an adverse impact on Power’s
results. Lastly, in accordance with the Final Decision and Crder (Final Order), issued by the BPU in 1999 relating to
PSE&G’s rate unbundling, stranded costs and restructuring proceedings, Power will cease collection of Market Transition
Charge (MTC) revenues at the end of the transition period in 2003. Power expects MTC revenues will amount to
approximately $115 million in 2003. As a result of these variables and risks, Power cannot predict the impact of these
potential future changes on its forecasted results of operations, financial position or net cash flows; however, such impact
could be material.

In addition, Power’s earnings projections assume that it will continue to optimize the value of its portfolio
of generating assets and supply obligations through its energy trading operations. This will depend, in part, on
Power’s, as well as its counterparties’, ability to maintain sufficient creditworthiness and to display a willingness
to participate in energy trading activities at anticipated volumes. Potential changes in the mechanisms of conducting
trading activity could positively or negatively affect trading volumes and liquidity in these energy trading markets
compared to the assumptions of these factors embedded in Power’s business plans. Power marks to market derivative
instruments designated as trading activities and includes the resulting unrealized gains and losses in earnings. The
vast majority of these contracts have terms of less than two years and are valued using market exchange prices
and broker quotes. Energy trading provides the opportunity for greater returns, but it also is more risky than a
regulated business and can be adversely impacted by fluctuating energy market prices and other factors. Power
utilizes what it believes to be a conservative risk management strategy to minimize exposure to market and credit
risk. For further information, see MD&A—Accounting Issues, Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and Note 12. Risk Management of the Notes. As a result of these variables, Power cannot
predict the impact of these potential future changes on its forecasted results of operations, financial position or net
cash flows; however, such impact could be material.

Energy Holdings

Global will focus on improving the profitability of its generation and distribution investments. Resources, with
recent investments and less exposure to its investment in the KKR leveraged buyout funds, expects to continue
to be a steady contributor to earnings and cash flows.
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Global

While Global realized substantial growth prior to 2002, significant challenges began developing during the
fourth quarter of 2001 and continued into 2002. These challenges include the Argentine economic, political and
social crisis, the soft power market in Texas, recent developments in India and the worldwide economic downturn.
The financial effects of several of these challenges are behind Energy Holdings as a result of the charges recorded
in 2002. Global has recently reached a settlement with The AES Corporation (AES) related to certain of Global’s
investments held for sale in Argentina. Similarly, Global has completed the sale of its investment in Tanir Bavi
Power Company Private Ltd. (Tanir Bavi) Power Company Private Ltd. (Tanir Bavi) in India at its reduced carrying
value, receiving proceeds of approximately $45 million in October 2002. Global has refocused its strategy from
one of accelerated growth to one that places emphasis on increasing the efficiency and returns of its existing assets
and intends to limit its spending to contractual commitments. Global is also selectively reviewing its portfolio and
will seek to monetize, at reasonable values, investments which may no longer have a strategic fit. As part of this
review, Global recently entered into a memorandum of understanding to sell its interest in Prisma, a generation
business in Italy, to its partners for approximately $69 million. The sale is expected to close in the first half of 2003,
contingent upon successful project financing.

Energy Holdings’ success will be dependent, in part, on its ability to mitigate risks presented by its international
strategy. The economic and political conditions in certain countries where Global has investments present risks that
may be different than those found in the US including: unilateral renegotiation or nullification of existing contracts,
changes in law or tax policy, interruption of business, risks of nationalization, expropriation, war and other factors.
Operations in foreign countries also present risks associated with currency exchange and convertibility, inflation
and repatriation of earnings. In some countries in which Global has interests, economic, political and monetary
conditions and other factors could affect Global’s ability to convert its cash distributions to US Dollars or other
freely convertible currencies. Although Global generally seeks to structure power purchase contracts and other
project revenue agreements to provide for payments to be made in, or indexed to, US Dollars or a currency freely
convertible into US Dollars, its ability to do so in all cases may be limited.

The international risks discussed above can potentially be magnified due to the volatility of foreign currencies. The
foreign exchange rates of the Venezuelan Bolivar and Brazilian Real materially weakened in 2002 due to various political
and economic factors. This resulted in a reduction in Global’s investment and equity balances and resulted in
comparatively lower contributions from Global’s distribution investments in US Dollar terms. While Energy Holdings
still expects certain of its investments in Latin America to contribute favorably to its earnings in the future, the political
and economic risks associated with this region could have a material adverse impact on its remaining investments in
the region.

The table below reflects Energy Holdings’ investment exposure in Latin American countries:

Investment Exposure Equity Exposure
December 31, December 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001
(Millions)
Argentina. .. ................ $ — 3632 5 — $632
Brazil ... .................. 436 467 234 298
Chile............... .. ... ... 578 542 475 465
Peru ... ... ... ... L. 454 387 455 388
Venezuela. . .. ............... 51 53 51 53

The investment exposure consists of Global’s invested equity plus equity commitment guarantees. Equity
exposure is equal to Global’s investment net of foreign currency translation adjustments, refiected in OCI.

Venezuela

As of December 31, 2002, Global had $49 million, or less than 1%, of its assets invested in the Turboven
generation facilities in Maracay and Cagua, Venezuela. This project was fully funded by equity. Venezuela is
undergoing a period of significant political instability, as participation in prolonged work stoppages and violent street
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protests have caused a drastic reduction in economic activity. Following its 45% decline against the US Dollar in
2002, the Venezuelan currency, the Bolivar, has declined further in value in 2003, and additional declines are
possible. Turboven’s earnings and cash flows are expected to be atfected by the prospects of reduced economic
activity and increased exchange rate volatility. Although Turboven’s power purchase contracts are indexed to the
US Dollar, the sharp decline in economic activity and in the exchange rate make the local sales price of Turboven’s
energy supplies less attractive to local manufacturers. Turboven’s revenues have already declined and are expected
to remain below previous levels due to weakening demand for the products manufactured by Turboven’s customers,
which includes a utility and certain industrial companies.

Brazil

As of December 31, 2002, Global owns a 32% interest in Rio Grande Energia (RGE), a distribution company
in Brazil. The carrying value of this investment as of December 31, 2002 was $211 million, net of pre-tax cumulative
translation adjustments of $225 million. For a discussion of the impairment of a portion of the goodwill balance
at RGE due to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142), see Note 2.
New Accounting Standards of the Notes.

The Brazilian economy is in a period of slowed growth that has resulted from the high public and private sector
debt levels, as well as increased interest rates used by the Central Bank of Brazil to control rising inflation and
to support the value of the Brazilian Real following its 34% decline in 2002.

In January 2003, a new government administration assumed office and has a stated goal of reducing the effect
of currency devaluations and wholesale prices as inputs to final consumer prices for electricity. Additionally, the
new administration’s energy industry policy is to cancel future privatizations of state-owned energy companies and
increase federal government control and coordination of energy industry policies previously controlled by state and
regional entities.

The current regulatory regime adjusts consumer electric tariffs based on a multiple-factor formula that includes
recovery of wholesale inflation for previous periods, as well as an additional entitlement to pass through deferred US
Dollar costs. This current regulatory structure would result in an increase of approximately 40% in the tariffs RGE
would charge its customers starting in April 2003. Failure to receive a reasonable tariff increase, unfavorable
developments relating to potential changes in the regulatory structure and/or greater exertion of price controls by the
Brazilian government could have a materially adverse impact on Energy Holdings’ ability to earn a reasonable return
on its investment and could materially impact its ability to recover its investment balance, including a potential
impairment. Other risk factors that could affect future revenues and cash flows from Energy Holdings’ investment
in RGE are continued high interest rate levels, currency devaluation, extended recession and slow economic growth.

Texas

As of December 31, 2002, Global had $222 million, net of derivative valuations, invested in a 50/50 joint
venture which operates two 1,000 MW gas-fired combined-cycle electric generating facilities in Texas, including
approximately $73 million of loans earning an annual interest rate of 12%. The loan structure was put in place to
provide Global with a preferential cash and earnings flow from the projects after third-party debt service. Losses
from Texas Independent Energy L.P. (TIE) were greater than expected due to lower energy prices resulting from
over-supply of energy in the Texas power market for the year ended December 31, 2002. Global expects this trend
of lower energy prices to continue until the 2004-2005 time frame when market prices are expected to increase,
as older less efficient plants in the Texas power market are expected to be retired and the demand for electricity
is expected to increase. However, no assurances can be given as to the accuracy of these estimates.

Continued weakness in the Texas power market will put pressure on TIE’s ability to meet financial covenants
in its loan documents. Discussions are underway with the projects’ lenders to improve flexibility in meeting these
covenants. Potential remedies may include modest additional equity investments by Global in the Texas facilities.
Total project level non-recourse debt of $527 million at the Texas facilities is due over the next five years. These debt
maturities include $210 million in 2006 and $213 million in 2007. In the event the project-level debt cannot be repaid
or refinanced at the project level, Global may consider certain alternatives including additional equity investments.
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Resources

Over the longer term, Resources’ earnings and cash flow streams are dependent upon the availability of suitable
transactions and its ability to continue to enter into these transactions. Based on current market conditions and
Energy Holdings intent to limit capital expenditures, it is unlikely that Resources will make significant investments
in the near term. Resources faces risks with regard to the creditworthiness of its counterparties, as well as the risk
of a change in the current tax treatment of its investments in leveraged leases. The manifestation of either of these
risks could cause a materially adverse effect on Energy Holdings’ strategy and its forecasted results of operations,
financial position, and net cash flows. For discussion of the five counterparties to these leases, including Resources’
aggregate gross investment of $749 million, or $455 million, net of deferred taxes of $294 million, as of
December 31, 2002, with those who have been downgraded to below investment grade by at least one of the rating
agencies, see Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Energy Technologies

Energy Technologies is a business that principally constructs, installs, and maintains heating, ventilating and
air conditioning (HVAC) equipment and related services. Energy Technologies is comprised of 11 HVAC and
mechanical operating companies. In June 2002, Energy Holdings adopted a plan to sell its interests in the HYAC/
mechanical operating companies which is expected to be completed by June 30, 2003. Also, the Demand Side
Management (DSM) business previously conducted by Energy Technologies and which Energy Holdings decided
to retain during the third quarter of 2002, was transferred to Resources as of December 31, 2002,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

PSEG

PSEG’s business consists of four reportable segments, which are Power, PSE&G, Global and Resources. The
following is a discussion of the major year-to-year financial statement variances and follows the financial statement
presentation as it relates to each of its segments.

PSEG’s results of operations are primarily comprised of the results of operations of its operating subsidiaries,
PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings. For a more detailed discussion of the changes referenced for PSEG, see the
applicable results of operations discussion for each respective subsidiary registrant.
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Net income for the period ended December 31, 2002 was $245 million or $1.17 per share of common stock,
both basic and diluted, based on approximately 209 million average shares outstanding. Excluding certain after-tax
charges of $541 million or $2.59 per share for the year ending December 31, 2002, results were $786 million or
$3.76 per share. The charges relate to the asset impairment of investments in Argentina and losses from operations
of those impaired assets, discontinued operations of Energy Technologies, and a generating facility in India, and
goodwill impairment charges related to the adoption of SFAS 142.

Earnings (Losses)
Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Millions)

POWEL . . o o e $ 468 $394 $313

PSE&G. . . .. 201 230 369
Energy Holdings:

Resources. . . ... . i e 78 71 75
Global . . .. ... . . (302) 100 40
Other (A). . . .. e (8) 4) (13)
Other (B). . . ... (YA} 135 (8)
Subtotal . . . ... ... 416 776 776
Loss from Discontinued Operations, including Loss on Disposal . . (&28) (15) 12)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle (C). . . . _(120) 9 =
Total PSEG Net Income. . .. ..... ... ... . ... . ........ $ 245 $770 $764
Total PSEG Excluding Charges (D). . ... ................. $ 786 $776 $776

Contribution to Earnings Per Share

(Basic and Diluted)
Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Power. . ... . . $224 $1.89 $1.46
PSE&G. . . . e e 0.96 1.11 1.71
Energy Holdings:

ReESOUICES. . . . . o e 0.37 0.34 0.35

Global . . ... .. (1.44) 0.48 0.19
Other (A). .. .o (0.04) (0.02) (0.06)
Other (B). . .. oo i e e (0.10) (0.07) (0.04)

Subtotal . . . ...... ... ... e 1.99 3.73 3.61
Loss from Discontinued Operations, including Loss on Disposal . . . . . . (0.24) 0.07) (0.06)

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle (C). ... .... (0.58) 0.04 —

Total PSEG NetIncome. . .. . ... .. i $1.17 $3.70 $ 3.55

Total PSEG Excluding Charges (D). . ... ... .. $3.76 $3.73 $ 3.61

(A) Other activities include amounts specific to Energy Holdings, Energy Technologies, Enterprise Group
Development Corporation (EGDC) and intercompany eliminations. Specific amounts include interest on
certain financing transactions and certain other administrative and general expenses at Energy Holdings.

(B) Other activities include amounts specific to PSEG and intercompany eliminations. Specific amounts
include interest on certain financing transactions and certain other administrative and general expenses
at PSEG (parent company).

(C) Relates to the adoption of SFAS 142 in 2002 and the adoption of SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133) in 2001.

(D) Amount for 2002 excludes after-tax charges presented in the summary table below of $541 million or
$2.59 per share for the year ended December 31, 2002. For 2001 and 2000, these amounts reflect Income
Before Discontinued Operations and Cumulative Effects of Changes in Accounting Principle.
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The after-tax charges relating to the items discussed above are'summarized in the following table:

Year Ended
December 31, 2002

(Millions) Per Share Impact

Global

Argentina — EDEERSA (A) Project and Assets Held for Sale to AES
Write-down of Project Investments $370 $1.77
Goodwill impairment 36 0.18

Total Argentina 406

India — Tanir Bavi
Discontinued Operations
Goodwill impairment

Total Tanir Bavi

Brazil — RGE
Goodwill impairment

Subtotal for Global

Energy Technologies
Discontinued Operations
Goodwill impairment

(A) Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de Entre Rios S.A. (EDEERSA)

Excluding the charges discussed above, earnings for the year ended December 31, 2002 were largely consistent
with the prior year. This is primarily due to higher margins at Power due to its successful participation as an indirect
supplier of energy to New Jersey’s utilities resulting from the recent BGS auction. The BGS-related contracts, which
went into effect on August 1, 2002 had a meaningful effect on PSEG’s earnings, particularly during the fourth quarter
when Power served its contractual obligations with low cost energy during the colder months. The strong performance
of Power’s nuclear generation facilities, which operated at a combined capacity factor of 94% during 2002, accounted
for 60% of Power’s generation output, providing low cost energy to meet its demand and delivering solid margins.
PSE&G also improved earnings, due to stronger margins from gas rate relief, more favorable weather effects as
compared to the prior year and a cost containment effort which reduced operating expenses during 2002. These positive
factors were offset by higher interest costs at PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings, the absence of certain tax benefits
realized by PSE&G in 2001 and comparatively lower contributions from investments at Energy Holdings, particularly
the loss of earnings from Energy Holdings’ Argentine investments, continued weakness in the Texas markets and a
lower gain from the Eagle Point Cogeneration Partnership (Eagle Point) transactions.

Basic and diluted earnings per share of PSEG’s common stock (Common Stock) was $3.70 for the year ended
December 31, 2001, an increase of $0.15 per share, or 4.2% from the comparable 2000 period, including $0.12
of accretion as a result of PSEG’s stock repurchase program, discussed in Liquidity and Capital Resources. In
addition, PSEG’s increased earnings for 2001 as compared to 2000 resulted from improved energy trading margins
from Power, Global’s withdrawal and sale of its interest in the Eagle Point, acquisitions and expanded operations
at Global, new leveraged lease investments at Resources and strong performance of Power’s nuclear facilities. These
increases more than offset the effects of unfavorable weather conditions at PSE&G, two BPU mandated 2% rate
reductions effective in February 2001 and August 2001, which reduced Power’s revenues and the effects of the
securitization transaction that occurred on January 31, 2001.
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PSEG

Operating Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Operating Revenues increased by $1.3 billion or 19%, due primarily
to Power’s BGS or commodity revenues subsequent to July 2002 not being eliminated in consolidation by PSEG.
Under the BGS contract, which terminated on July 31, 2002, Power sold energy directly to PSE&G, which in turn
sold this energy to its customers. These revenues were properly recognized on each company’s stand-alone financial
statements and were eliminated when preparing PSEG’s consolidated financial statements. For the new BGS
contract period which began on August 1, 2002, Power entered into contracts with third parties who are direct
suppliers of New Jersey’s EDCs and PSE&G purchases the energy for its customers’ needs from such direct
suppliers. Due to this change in the BGS model, these revenues are no longer intercompany revenues and therefore
are not eliminated in consolidation. For the year ended December 31, 2002, PSEG’s elimination related to
intercompany BGS and MTC revenues decreased by approximately $798 million as compared to 2001 due to this
change. Also related to this change in the BGS model, PSE&G, in 2002, began selling energy purchased under
non-utility generation (NUG) contracts, which it had previously sold to Power, to third parties. As a result, for the
year ended December 31, 2002, PSEG’s revenues related to NUG contracts increased by approximately $82 million.

The remaining increase was due primarily to a $516 million increase from Power primarily related to the new
BGS related revenues from third party wholesale electric suppliers which went into effect August 1, 2002 and
revenues from off-system gas sales, partially offset by lower MTC revenues and lower net trading revenues as
discussed further under the Power segment discussion. Also contributing to the increase was a $111 million increase
at Energy Holdings driven by higher electric revenues at Global, relating to acquisitions and projects going into
operation and higher leveraged lease income at Resources, partially offset by lower investment earnings, as
discussed below under Energy Holdings’ segment discussion. Additionally, increases were partially offset by a $172
million decrease in revenues from PSE&G primarily due to a decrease in gas distribution revenues, resulting
partially from an average cost reduction of more than 10% in the cost of gas, in addition to other items discussed
below under the PSE&G segment discussion.

Operating Revenues increased by $534 million or 8% for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared
to 2000 due to a $204 million increase at PSE&G, primarily due to increased gas distribution revenues due to higher
gas costs experienced in 2001, discussed further below in PSE&G, a $177 million increase at Power, primarily
due to increased BGS revenue which resulted from customers returning to PSE&G in 2001, discussed further below
in the Power segment discussion, and a $166 million increase at Energy Holdings primarily due to revenues related
to various majority-owned acquisitions and plants going into operation in 2001 at Global, the gain on the withdrawal
and sale of Global’s interest in Eagle Point and improved revenues from higher leveraged lease income from new
leveraged lease transactions at Resources, partially offset by lower net investment gains at Resources and lower
energy supply revenues, discussed further below under the Energy Holdings segment discussion.

Operating Expenses

Energy Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to the prior year, Energy Costs increased approximately
$1.1 billion or 41% due primarily to the fact that PSE&G no longer purchases electric energy directly from Power,
as discussed above in Operating Revenues, but rather from third party wholesalers. In 2001, and through
July 31, 2002, PSE&G incurred energy costs related to electric energy transactions between it and Power.
Accordingly, these costs were properly recognized on each company’s stand-alone financial statements and were
eliminated when preparing PSEG’s consolidated financial statements. Amounts attributable to this change totaled
$880 million between the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The remaining increase was due to a $352 million increase at Power primarily related to increased energy
purchases and third party wholesale electric supplier contracts, discussed further below in Power, and a $92 million
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increase at Energy Holdings, relating to acquisitions and projects going into operation at Global, discussed further
below in Energy Holdings. These increases were partially offset by a $229 million decrease at PSE&G due primarily
to decreased gas costs which resulted from lower demand, discussed further below in PSE&G.

Energy Costs increased $251 million or 10% in 2001 as compared to 2000 due to a $91 million increase at
Power, largely due to increased volumes under the BGS-related contracts, discussed further below in Power,
increases at PSE&G, primarily due to $167 million increase in gas costs related to increased demand and higher
prices for gas, as discussed further below in PSE&G. These increases were partially offset by an $11 million decrease
at Energy Holdings due to a decision to exit the energy supply business, partially offset by higher costs relating
to acquisitions.

Operations and Maintenance

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Operations and Maintenance expense increased $55 million or 3%
as compared to 2001 due primarily to increases caused by scheduled outages at certain of Power’s electric generating
stations, and an increase at Energy Holdings of $46 million, primarily due to costs associated with acquisitions
and projects going into operation. This increase was partially offset by a $14 million decrease at PSE&G primarily
due to decreased labor and professional service costs and partially offset by higher DSM amortization, discussed
further below in PSE&G, and other charges of $12 million at PSEG.

Operation and Maintenance expense increased $135 million or 8% in 2001 as compared to 2000 due primarily
to increases of $56 million at PSE&G, partially relating to the deferral of costs incurred during 2000 in connection
with deregulation that PSE&G expects to recover in future rates, $52 million of higher expenses at Power, primarily
relating to projects going into operation during the second quarter of 2000, and a $29 million increase at Energy
Holdings, primarily related to costs associated with acquisitions late in 2000 and during 2001.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Depreciation and Amortization increased $75 million or 15% as
compared to 2001, primarily due to increases of $39 million at PSE&G, mainly due to a full period’s recognition
of amortization of the regulatory asset related to stranded costs for securitization, $13 million at Power, primarily
due to increases from Bergen 2 being placed into service in 2002 and the absence of a prior year reversal of cost
of removal reserves in 2002, and $19 million at Energy Holdings, primarily related to costs associated with
acquisitions and projects going into operation. :

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Depreciation and Amortization increased $146 million or 42% as
compared to 2000 primarily due to the amortization of the regulatory asset recorded for stranded costs, which
commenced with the issuance of the transition bonds on January 31, 2001, and $10 million at Energy Holdings
related to costs associated with acquisitions late in 2000 and during 2001. These increases were partially offset
by a $41 million decrease at Power, primarily due to a reduction in the accrual for the estimated cost of removal
of Power’s generating stations. There was an additional increase of $13 million at PSEG primarily due to asset
additions made in 2001.

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes is comprised of the Transitional Energy Facility Assessment (TEFA) at
PSE&G. Taxes Gther Than Income Taxes increased $10 million or 8% in 2002 as compared to 2001. This increase
was primarily due to a reduction of $7 million in the prior year’s TEFA recorded in 2001 and an increase of $3 million
in the 2002 TEFA due to increased sales. Legislation enacted in January 2002 freezes the TEFA unit rate surcharges
at the 2001 levels through 2004 and then reduces the rates over the next three years, phasing out the TEFA by 2007.

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes decreased $14 million or 10% in 2001 as compared to 2000. This décrease
was due primarily to a reduction of $7 million in the prior year’s TEFA recorded in 2001 and a reduction of $7 million
from lower net taxable sales subject to the TEFA combined with a reduction in the TEFA rate.
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Other Deductions

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Other Deductions increased by $64 million as compared to 2001,
primarily due to a $61 million increase in foreign currency transaction losses at Energy Holdings.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Other Deductions increased by $12 million as compared to 2001,
primarily due to a $9 million increase in foreign currency transaction losses at Energy Holdings.

Interest Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Interest Expense increased $61 million or 8% as compared to 2001
primarily due to higher amounts of debt outstanding at PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings used to support various
projects and acquisitions and for other general corporate purposes, partially offset by decreases at PSE&G due to
lower debt levels.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Interest Expense increased $151 million or 26% as compared to 2000
due primarily to the securitization debt issued in January 2001 at PSE&G. The increases in Interest Expense were
also due to generally higher levels of debt at PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings used to support various projects
and acquisitions and for other general corporate purposes.

Preferred Securities Dividends

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Preferred Securities Dividends decreased approximately $15 million
primarily due to PSE&G’s redemptions of $448 million of preferred securities in March and June of 2001, partially
offset by the issuance of $460 million of participating units and $180 million of trust preferred securities at PSEG
in September 2002 and December 2002, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Preferred Securities Dividends decreased approximately $22 million
primarily due to PSE&G’s redemptions of $448 million of preferred securities in March and June of 2001.

Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Income Taxes decreased $133 million or 35% as compared to 2001
primarily due to lower pre-tax income partially offset by adjustments in 2001 reflecting the conclusion of the
1994-96 1RS audit settlement and the actual filing of the 2000 tax return.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Income Taxes decreased $115 million or 23% as compared to 2000.
The decrease was primarily due to lower pre-tax income, adjustments in 2001 as a result of closing the audit for
the 1994-96 tax years and the actual filing of the tax return for 2000.

PSE&G

Operating Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s Operating Revenues decreased $172 million or 3%, primarily
due to a decrease of $155 million in gas distribution revenues. This decrease was due to lower commodity revenues
resulting from an average cost reduction of more than 10% in the cost of gas (approximately $125 million). Also
contributing to the decrease were lower sales to interruptible customers resulting from the lower cost of gas
(approximately $88 million) and lower off-system sales revenues (approximately $26 million). These decreases
were partially offset by increased gas base rates and increased volumes, primarily due to residential usage driven
by favorable weather conditions (approximately $75 million) and increased appliance service revenues
(approximately $14 million). In addition, electric transmission and distribution revenues decreased $17 million,
primarily due to a 4.9% rate reduction implemented in August 2002 under the Final Order and rate reductions in
February and August 2001 totaling 4%, (approximately $123 million) which were recorded as reductions in MTC
revenues. Also affecting 2002 performance were decreases in NUG sales at market prices (approximately $15

FINANCIAL REVIEW 37




million), lower DSM sales due to revenue adjustments in 2001 (approximately $19 million) and lower fiber optic
revenues due to unfavorable market conditions (approximately $7 million). These were offset by increased BGS
revenues, primarily due to customers returning to PSE&G from third party suppliers (approximately $104 million),
and higher distribution volumes for residential and commercial customers (approximately $37 million) due to
favorable weather conditions.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, PSE&G's Operating Revenues increased $204 million or 3%, primarily
due to increased gas distribution revenues of $153 million due to higher gas costs experienced in 2001. Customer
rates in all classes of business had increased in 2001 to recover a portion of the higher natural gas costs. The
commercial and industrial classes fuel recovery rates vary monthly according to the market price of gas. The BPU
also approved increases in the fuel component of the residential class rates of 16% in November 2000 and 2% for
each month from December 2000 through July 2001. These increased revenues were partially offset by lower sales
volumes in the fourth quarter of 2001 than the comparable period in 2000, primarily resulting from warmer weather.
Also contributing to the higher revenues were increases in electric distribution and appliance service revenue
(approximately $39 million) and increased electric commodity sales volumes (approximately $17 million) offset
by rate reductions. The MTC tariff rate decreased 2% in February 2001, effective with the implementation of
securitization. Effective August 1, 2001, PSE&G implemented another 2% rate reduction as required by the Final
Order, which brought, at that time, the total rate decrease to 9% since August 1, 1999. These rate reductions
amounted to approximately $100 million in 2001, an increase of approximately $40 million as compared to 2000,
and were funded through the MTC component of rates, which, along with BGS revenues, was remitted to Power
through Energy Costs.

Under the BGSS, BGS and Levelized Gas Adjustment Clause (LGAC in 2001), PSE&G's electric and gas
costs in excess of (or below) the amount included in current commodity rates, are probable of being recovered from
(returned to) customers through future commaodity rates. PSE&G defers (records) costs in excess of (or below) the
amount included in current commodity rates. Therefore any increase or decrease in PSE&G’s electric and gas
commodity revenue is offset by a corresponding increase or decrease in gas costs on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. PSE&G’s electric and gas commodity revenues consist of BGS revenues, MTC revenues, NUG
revenues, gas firm commodity revenues and gas interruptible revenues.

Operating Expenses

Energy Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s Energy Costs decreased $229 million or 6% due primarily
to a decrease in gas costs of approximately $230 million which resulted from lower commodity sales volumes
(approximately $125 million), lower volumes from interruptible customers due to lower rates (approximately
$88 million) and lower off-system sales volumes (approximately $18 million). Also contributing to the decrease
were lower electric costs due to the MTC rate reductions discussed above in Operating Revenues (approximately
$123 million) and decreased NUG energy sales due to lower rates (approximately $15 million). Offsetting these
decreases were increased electric energy costs due to higher commodity sales volumes from customers returning
from third party suppliers and a scheduled increase in the shopping credit (approximately $104 million) and higher
amounts paid to Power relating to the amortization of the excess electric distribution depreciation reserve, a
component of MTC (approximately $30 million).

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Energy Costs increased $1.0 billion as compared to 2000 primarily
due to higher electric energy costs (approximately $845 million) resulting from higher sales volumes and from
PSE&G purchasing electricity from Power subsequent to August 2000. Also contributing to the increased Energy
Costs were increased gas costs primarily due to higher natural gas costs (approximately $167 million). The increase
was partially offset by lower natural gas purchases due to lower sales volumes resulting from warmer weather in
the fourth quarter of 2001 as compared to the same period in 2000. Due to the LGAC, gas costs are increased or
decreased to offset a corresponding increase or decrease in fuel revenues with no impact on income.
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Operations and Maintenance

Operations and Maintenance expense decreased $14 million or 1% in 2002 as compared to 2001 primarily
comprised of decreased labor costs (approximately $9 million), decreased use of professional and contract services
(approximately $7 million), lower charges for administrative and general services (approximately $7 million) and
lower equipment rental (approximately $8 million). These decreases were offset by increased DSM amortization
(approximately $14 million) and increased miscellaneous accounts receivable reserves (approximately $3 million).

Operations and Maintenance expense decreased $30! million or 23% in 2001 as compared to 2000 primarily
due to the elimination of $357 million in Operations and Maintenance expenses resulting from the transfer of the
generation business to Power in August 2000. The decrease was partially offset by the deferral of costs incurred
during 2000 in connection with deregulation that PSE&G expects to recover in future rates.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased $39 million or 11% in 2002 as compared to 2001 primarily
due to a full period’s recognition of amortization of the regulatory asset related to stranded costs for securitization
(approximately $37 million). Also contributing was an increase in depreciable fixed assets (approximately
$13 million) and higher depreciation expense recorded in accordance with increased gas base rates for plant assets
(approximately $7 million). The increases were partially offset by higher amortization of the excess electric
distribution depreciation reserve (approximately $22 million).

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased $84 million or 29% in 2001 as compared to 2000 primarily
due to approximately $180 million of amortization of the regulatory asset recorded for stranded costs, which
commenced with the issuance of the transition bonds on January 31, 2001. This increase was partially offset by
the elimination of $77 million of Depreciation and Amortization expense resulting from the transfer of the
generation business to Power in August 2000.

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes increased $10 million or 8% in 2002 as compared to 2001. This increase
was primarily due to a reduction of $7 million in the prior year’s TEFA recorded in 2001 and an increase of $3 million
in the 2002 TEFA due to increased sales. Legislation enacted in January 2002 freezes the TEFA unit rate surcharges
at the 2001 levels through 2004 and then reduces the rates over the next three years, phasing out the TEFA by 2007.

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes decreased $14 million or 10% in 2001 as compared to 2000. This decrease
was due primarily to a reduction of $7 million in the prior year’s TEFA recorded in 2001 and a reduction of $7 million
from lower net taxable sales subject to the TEFA combined with a reduction in the TEFA rate.

QOther Income

Other Income decreased $83 million or 75% in 2002 as compared to 2001, due primarily to PSEG’s settlement
of an intercompany loan from PSE&G in 2001 (approximately $65 million) and lower interest income on investments
(approximately $16 million). This was offset by a gain on disposal of properties (approximately $6 million).

Other Income decreased $62 million or 36% in 2001 as compared to 2000, due primarily to PSE&G’s
intercompany loans to PSEG and Power in 2001 (approximately $65 million) and decreased interest income
(approximately $125 million). The intercompany loan was a step in PSE&G’s recapitalization as a result of the transfer
of its generation business to Power. This was offset by lower gains on disposal of properties (approximately $3 million).

Interest Expense

Interest Expense decreased $44 million or 10% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001,
due to the redemption of short-term debt in the third quarter of 2001 and lower interest rates in 2002 (approximately
$14 million), the redemption of a floating rate note in 2001 (approximately $8 million), the maturity of long-term
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debt (approximately $14 million), the repurchase of Pollution Control Bonds (approximately $3 million), the
carrying costs on the deferred repair allowance (approximately $7 million) and NJ state accrued tax interest
adjustments (approximately $2 million). These decreases were partially offset by higher securitization bond interest
expense (approximately $7 million) related to Transition Funding’s securitization bonds.

Interest Expense increased $53 million or 13% in 2001 as compared to 2000 primarily due to interest of
approximately $176 million on the bonds issued by Transition Funding on January 31, 2001. These were partially
offset by $118 million in lower interest resulting from the reduction of short-term and long-term debt with the
proceeds from the securitization bonds and the transfer of generation-related assets to Power.

Income Taxes

Income taxes increased $26 million or 29% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001
primarily due to prior period tax adjustments recorded in 2001 reflecting the conclusion of the 1994-96 IRS audit
settlement and the actual filing of the 2000 tax return.

Income taxes decreased $318 million or 78% in 2001 as compared to 2000. These decreases were primarily
due to lower operating income due to the transfer of the generation business in 2000. In addition, taxes decreased
due to normal adjustments as a result of closing the 1994-96 IRS audit and upon filing the actual tax return for
the year 2000.

Power

Operating Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Power’s Operating Revenues increased $1.2 billion or 50% primarily
due to the inclusion of $804 million of gas revenues relating to its BGSS contract and off-system gas sales resulting
from the operations under the Gas Contracts transferred from PSE&G in May 2002. Also contributing to the increase
was a $560 million increase in BGS related revenues, primarily due to the new BGS related revenues from third
party wholesale electric suppliers which went into effect August 1, 2002 which was partially offset by lower MTC
revenues of $98 million mostly due to a 4.9% rate reduction in August 2002 and two 2% rate reductions in August
2001 and February 2001. Also offsetting the increases were lower net trading revenues of approximately $83 million
due to lower trading volumes and prices during 2002 as compared to 2001.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, Power’s Operating Revenues increased $177 million or 8% primarily
due to an increase of $180 million in BGS revenue which resulted from customers returning to PSE&G in 2001
from third party suppliers as wholesale market prices exceeded fixed BGS rates. At December 31, 2001, third party
suppliers were serving less than 1% of the customer load traditionally served by PSE&G as compared to the
December 31, 2000 level of 10.5%. Also, net revenues from energy trading increased by $57 million or 78% for
the year ended December 31, 2001. Partially offsetting this increase was a net $40 million decrease in MTC
revenues, relating to two 2% rate reductions, discussed above, offset by a pre-tax charge to income related to the
recognition of MTC revenues in 2000.

Operating Expenses

Energy Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Power’s energy costs increased $1.1 billion or 127% compared to
2001 primarily due to increased energy purchase volumes and third party wholesale electric supplier contracts of
approximately $297 million and $738 million of increased gas purchases to satisfy Power’s BGSS contract with
PSE&G. Alsocontributing to the increase were higher network transmission expenses of $102 million. These higher
expenses were partially offset by a $67 million decrease in NUG purchases. Additionally, the record capacity factor
of its nuclear units enabled Power to produce low cost generation for much of its supply needs.
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For the year ended December 31, 2001, energy costs increased $91 million over the 2000 period. The increase
was largely due to increased volumes under the BGS-related contracts. The higher volumes produced, coupled with
increased fuel costs, mainly natural gas, contributed to the increase. These increases were partially offset by low
cost generation from the continued strong performance of Power’s nuclear generation facilities.

Operations and Maintenance

For the period ended December 31, 2002, Operations and Maintenance expense increased $35 million or 5%
as compared to the same period in 2001 due primarily to increases caused by scheduled outage work at electric
generating stations.

Operation and Maintenance expense increased $52 million or 8% in 2001 as compared to 2000. Contributing
to the increase were higher expenses relating to projects going into operation during the second quarter of 2000.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the period ended December 31, 2002, Depreciation and Amortization expense increased $13 million or
14% as compared to the same period in 2001 due primarily to increases from Bergen 2 being placed into service
in 2002 and the absence of a prior year reversal of cost of removal reserves in 2002.

Depreciation and Amortization expense decreased $41 million or 30% in 2001 as compared to 2000. The decrease
was primarily due to a reduction in the accrual for the estimated cost of removal of Power’s generating stations.

Interest Expense

Interest Expense decreased $21 million or 15% for the year ended December 31, 2002 from the comparable
period in 2001 primarily due to improved financing rates and the repayment of intercompany notes, which resulted
in a decrease in expense of $83 million. Offsetting these reductions were $94 million of increased interest expense
associated with the issuance of the $2.4 billion of senior notes including $600 million issued in 2002, $124 million
of pollution control bonds and increased non-recourse financing associated with Lawrenceburg and Waterford,
offset by capitalized interest relating to various construction projects of $32 million.

Interest Expense decreased $55 million or 28% for the year ended December 31, 2001 from the comparable
period in 2000 primarily due to the repayment of the $2.8 billion 14.2% promissory note to PSE&G, issued to finance
the acquisition of PSE&G’s generation business.

Income Taxes

Income Taxes increased $63 million or 25% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 2001, and
increased $42 million or 20% for the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to 2000. The increases for both
years were due primarily to increases in pre-tax income.

Energy Holdings

Operating Revenues

Energy Holdings’ revenues increased $111 million, or 17%, to $749 million in 2002 from $638 million in
2001. This increase was driven by higher electric revenues at Global and higher leveraged lease income at
Resources, partially offset by lower investment earnings, as discussed below.

Energy Holdings’ revenues increased $166 million, or 35%, to $638 million in 2001 from $472 million in
2000. Increases totaling $235 miltion at Global and Resources, described below, were partially offset by $67 million
of lower Energy Supply Revenues, as Energy Holdings exited that business in 2000.
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Global

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the operating revenues increase of $1035 million or 27% at Global
was due primarily to the acquisitions in the second half of 2001 of Sociedad Austral de Electricidad S.A. (SAESA)
($79 million), a Chilean distribution company and Empresa de Electricidad de los Andes, S.A. (Electroandes)
($46 million), a Peruvian hydroelectric generation and transmission company. Global’s operating revenues also
increased $57 million due to the generation facility located in Rades, Tunisia commencing operation in the second
quarter of 2002. Also contributing $49 million to the increase in revenues was Skawina CHP Plant (Skawina), a
generation facility in Poland, in which Global purchased a majority ownership in the second quarter of 2002.
Revenues increased at the GWF Power System LP (GWF) energy peaking plants by $20 million as the Hanford
and Henrietta Peaking Plants became operational in the second quarter of 2001 and 2002, respectively. Revenues
further increased by $12 million due to improved earnings from RGE as new regulatory changes allowed RGE to
recover from customers prior tariff charges previously expensed. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease
of $43 million at Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad De Entre Rios S.A. (EDEERSA) due to the economic crisis
in Argentina. Reduced earnings of $21 million at the GWF San Francisco Bay Area facilities and of $26 million
at TIE, both as a result of lower energy prices in those markets, partially offset the revenue increases as well. Also
partially offsetting the increase in revenues at Global were $31 million of losses at Prisma, including operational
losses and an impairment to reduce the investment to its net realizable value, net of $11 million of interest income
on a Euro-denominated loan owed by the project. Prisma is currently held for sale to Global’s partner in this joint
venture, and the sale is expected to be completed in the first half of 2003. In addition, in 2001, Global recorded
$75 million for the gain on the sale and withdrawal from the Eagle Point facility compared to the $47 million
recorded for the withdrawal in 2002, resulting in a reduction of approximately $28 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, revenues in the Global segment increased $227 million primarily due
to $128 million of revenues related to various majority-owned acquisitions and plants going into operation in 2001.
Global’s revenues also increased from the gain of $75 million on the withdrawal and sale of Global’s interest in
Eagle Point and was partially offset by a loss in equity earnings of $17 million, which was recorded in 2000 and
not recorded in 2001, as a result of the withdrawal. In addition, revenues benefited from an increase of $45 million
in interest income related to certain loans and notes, and approximately $29 million of increased revenues relating
primarily to improved earnings of certain non-consolidated projects. These increases were partially offset by lower
revenues due to a reduction in earnings related to the adverse effect of foreign currency exchange rate movements
between the US Dollar and Brazilian Real.

Resources

Resources’ operating revenues increased $6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to
2001, primarily due to an increase of $44 million from higher leveraged lease income. The increase was mostly
offset by lower net investment gains (losses) of $39 million, of which $37 million resulted from other than temporary
impairments of non-publicly traded equity securities within certain leveraged buyout funds and other investments,
and $8 million resulted from a net decrease in the gains on the sale of properties subject to leveraged leases. For
further discussion of other than temporary impairments, see Note 12. Risk Management — Equity Securities. There
was also a net increase of $6 million associated with the change in the carrying value of publicly traded equity
securities in certain leveraged buyout funds. The decreases in the values of the publicly traded equity securities
in 2002 and 2001 were $10 million and $16 million, respectively.

Of the $44 million increase in leveraged lease income in 2002, $29 million resulted from a gain due to a
recalculation of certain leveraged leases. A change in an essential assumption which affects the estimated total net
income over the life of a leveraged lease requires a recalculation of the leveraged lease, from inception, using the
revised information. The change in the net investment in the leveraged leases is recognized as a gain or loss in
the year the assumption is changed. The change in assumption which occurred was related to a change in New
Jersey tax rates applied in the leveraged lease calculations. This was due to the restructuring of Resources from
a corporation to an LL.C, which resulted in the ability to more efficiently match state tax expenses of an affiliate
company with the state tax benefits associated with Resources’ lease portfolio. The remaining $15 million increase
in leveraged lease income was due to additional investments in leveraged lease transactions in 2002 and 2001.
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Revenues in the Resources segment increased by $8 million in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to
improved revenues of $45 million from higher leveraged lease income from new leveraged lease transactions that
was partially offset by lower net investment gains of $37 million.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $647 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the same
period in 2001. These operating expenses include a $497 million charge associated with the write-down of all
Argentine investments and certain loss contingencies.

Operating expenses, less expenses associated with the $497 million impairment of Global’s Argentine
investments, increased $141 million for the year-ended 2002 versus 2001 primarily due to operating expenses
incurred at SAESA and Electroandes, two acquisitions that occurred in the second half of 2001.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, operating expenses increased $35 million as compared to the same
period in 2000, primarily due to costs at Global increasing by $103 million due to energy costs of $55 million for
plant acquisitions and other projects commencing operation in 2001, partially offsetting a decrease in the cost of
energy sales as Energy Holdings exited the energy supply business in 2000.

Other Income

Other Income increased $19 million in 2002, as compared to 2001 primarily driven by $12 million of net
derivative gains resulting from a gain at SAESA of $11 million, with no comparable amount in 2001, and a
$13 million gain on the Early Retirement of Debt.

Other Income increased $3 miilion in 2001, as compared to 2000.

Other Deductions

Other Deductions increased $61 million in 2002, as compared to 2001 primarily due to the re-measuring of
the US Dollar denominated debt at EDEERSA to the devaluing Argentine Peso, which resulted in a loss of
$68 million. Foreign exchange currency transaction losses were also impacted by a loss of $7 million related to
the Chilean Peso at SAESA and a gain of $9 million related to a Euro-denominated loan. Such loan is expected
to be repaid in connection with the sale of Prisma. These net increases were partially offset by a $3 million loss
on the Early Retirement of Debt in 2001, with no comparable amount in 2002.

Other Deductions increased by $9 million in 2001, as compared to 2000 as a result of higher foreign exchange
currency transaction losses related to the Brazilian Real at Global’s investment in RGE and a loss on the early
Retirement of Debt of $3 million in 2001,

Interest Expense

Interest Expense increased $34 million or 19% from $180 million in 2001 to $214 million in 2002. The increase
was the result of selling $135 million of 8.625% Senior Notes in July 2002 and an increase in project level debt
at Global of $273 million. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in interest expense from the repayments
of borrowings under the revolving credit facilities.

Interest Expense increased $46 million or 34% from $134 million to $180 million in 2001 as compared to
2000. Interest Expense associated with recourse financing activities increased $45 million primarily due to
additional borrowings incurred as a result of equity investments in distribution and generation facilities.

Income Taxes

Income taxes were a benefit of $150 million for the year-ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of $215 million
as compared to 2001. This is primarily a result of the write-downs and asset impairments recorded during 2002,
which resulted in a pre-tax loss, thereby creating a tax benefit.
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Income taxes increased $14 million or 27% from $51 million to $65 million in 2001 as compared to 2000,
primarily attributable to increased pre-tax income.

Losses From Discontinued Operations

Energy Technologies

Energy Holdings reduced the carrying value of the investments in the 11 HVAC/mechanical operating
companies to their fair value less costs to sell, and recorded a loss on disposal for the year ended December 31, 2002
of $21 million, net of $11 million in taxes. Energy Holdings’ remaining investment position in Energy Technologies
is approximately $56 million, of which approximately $32 million relates to deferred tax assets from discontinued
operations, and $12 million relates to certain intercompany payables included in the current liabilities of
Discontinued Operations. Although Energy Holdings believes that it will be able to sell the HVAC/mechanical
companies, it can give no assurances that it will be able to realize their total carrying values.

Operating results of Energy Technologies” HVAC/mechanical operating companies, less certain allocated costs
from Energy Holdings, have been reclassified into discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The results of operations of these discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 yielded
additional losses of $21 million (after-tax), $22 million (after-tax) and $12 million (after-tax), respectively.

Tanir Bavi

In the fourth quarter of 2002, Global sold its 74% interest in Tanir Bavi, a 220 MW barge mounted, combined-
cycle generating facility in India. Tanir Bavi meets the criteria for classification as a component of discontinued
operations and all prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. Global reduced
the carrying value of Tanir Bavi to the contracted sales price of $45 million and recorded a loss on disposal of $14
million (after-tax) for the year ended December 31, 2002. The operating results of Tanir Bavi for the year ended
December 31, 2002 yielded income of $5 million (after-tax). See Note 5. Discontinued Operations of the Notes.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In 2002, Energy Holding finalized the evaluation of the effect of adopting SFAS 142 on the recorded amount of
goodwill. Under this standard, PSEG was required to complete an impairment analysis of its recorded goodwill and record
any resulting impairment. The total amount of goodwill impairments was $120 million, net of tax of $66 million and
was comprised of $36 million (after-tax) at EDEERSA, $34 million (after-tax) at RGE, $32 million (after-tax) at Energy
Technologies and $18 million (after-tax) at Tanir Bavi. All of the goodwill on these companies, other than RGE, was
fully impaired. In accordance with SFAS 142, this impairment charge was recorded as of January 1, 2002 as a component
of the Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle and is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2002. See Note 2. New Accounting Standards of the Notes.

In 2001, Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 133, which established accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments. Energy Holdings recorded an after-tax gain of $9 million as a result of adopting SFAS 133.

Other

Global

The following summarizes the net contribution to Operating Income and Other Income and Other Deductions
by Global's projects in the following regions for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Certain of
these amounts include results from Global’s equity method subsidiaries which are recorded net of taxes and
financing costs.
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Years Ended December 31,

Operating Income and Other Income (Deductions) (A) 2002 2001 2000
(Millions)

North America. . . . ... .. ... $108 $159 $ 91
Chile . . ... 61 39 14
Peru. .. .. R 54 31 26
Brazil. . . .. 20 1 21
AsiaPacific. . .. ... ... . 6 9 6
AllOther . ... ... ... .. . . . . 16 6 1
Global Unallocated Administrative and General

Expenses (B) . ... ... .. .. .. . . .. (58) (58) (50)

(A) Operating Income plus Other Income and Deductions in Argentina for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $(558) million, $45 million and $14 million, respectively.

(B) Includes $9 million of Loss Contingencies and Other expenses recorded in 2002 related to Energy
Holdings’ investment in EDEERSA.

Resources

The following summarizes Resources’ lease revenue for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
by credit quality of lease counterparties:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Millions)

Lease Revenue-Investment Grade(1) . ., .. ........... $164 $199 $155
Lease Revenue-Non-Investment Grade or not rated . . . . . . %6 _ 16 _ 15
Total (2) ... .. .. $260 $215 $170
Cash Flow Available From Leveraged Leases (3) (4). .. .. $215 $209 $244
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Leases (5). ... .... . .... 183 _104 _ 89
Gross Cash Flow from Leveraged Leases. ... ....... $398 $313 $333

(1) Investment Grade means rated investment grade by both S&P and Moody’s. For S&P, the minimum
investment grade rating is BBB-. For Moody’s, the equivalent minimum investment grade rating is Baa3.

(2) Operating lease income does not reflect operating lease expense.

(3) Over 80% of lease cash flow is provided by tax payments from PSEG pursuant to a tax allocation agreement
between PSEG and Energy Holdings.

(4) The amounts are equal to Income from Capital and Operating Leases from the Consolidated Statements of
Operations plus Leveraged Lease Income, Adjusted for Rents Received from the Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows.

(5) In 2002, Resources received $183 million of cash proceeds associated with the termination of two lease
transactions with affiliates of TXU-Europe. As a result of these terminations, Resources will pay income
taxes of $115 million in 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

The following discussion of liquidity and capital resources is on a consolidated basis for PSEG, noting the
uses and contributions of PSEG’s three direct operating subsidiaries, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings.
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Financing Methodology

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Capital requirements are met through liquidity provided by internally generated cash flow and external
financings. PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings from time to time make equity contributions or otherwise provide
credit support to their respective direct and indirect subsidiaries to provide for part of their capital and cash
requirements, generally relating to long-term investments.

At times, PSEG utilizes intercompany dividends and intercompany loans (except that PSE&G may not make
loans to its parent or to affiliates that are not its direct subsidiaries) to satisfy various subsidiary needs and efficiently
manage short-term cash needs. Any excess funds are invested in accordance with guidelines adopted by PSEG’s
Board of Directors.

External funding to meet PSEG’s and PSE&G’s needs, the majority of the requirements of Power and a
substantial portion of the requirements of Energy Holdings, is comprised of corporate finance transactions. The
debt incurred is the direct obligation of those respective entities. Some of the proceeds of these debt transactions
are used by the respective obligor to make equity investments in its subsidiaries.

As discussed below, depending on the particular company, external financing may consist of public and private
capital market debt and equity transactions, bank revolving credit and term loans, commercial paper and/or project
financings. Some of these transactions involve special purpose entities (SPEs), formed in accordance with applicable
tax and legal requirements in order to achieve specified beneficial financial advantages, such as favorable tax and
legal liability treatment. All SPEs are consolidated where PSEG has controlling interest.

The availability and cost of external capital could be affected by each subsidiary’s performance, as well as
by the performance of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates. This could include the degree of structural
separation between PSEG and its subsidiaries and the potential impact of affiliate ratings on consolidated and
unconsolidated credit quality. Additionally, compliance with applicable financial covenants will depend upon future
financial position and levels of earnings and net cash flows, as to which no assurances can be given.

Over the next several years, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings will be required to refinance maturing
debt and expect to incur additional debt and provide equity to fund investment activities. Any inability to obtain required
additional external capital or to extend or replace maturing debt and/or existing agreements at current levels and
reasonable interest rates may adversely affect PSEG’s financial condition, results of operations and net cash flows.

From time to time, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings may repurchase portions of their respective
debt securities using funds from operations, asset sales, commercial paper, debt issuances, equity issuances and
other sources of funding and may make exchanges of new securities, including common stock, for outstanding
securities. Such repurchases may be at variable prices below, at or above prevailing market prices and may be
conducted by way of privately negotiated transactions, open-market purchases, tender or exchange offers or other
means. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings may utilize brokers or dealers or effect such repurchases
directly. Any such repurchases may be commenced or discontinued at any time without notice.

Power and Energy Holdings

A portion of the financing for Global’s projects and investments is generally provided by non-recourse project
financing transactions. These consist of loans from banks and other lenders that are typically secured by project and SPE
assets and/or cash flows. Two of Power’s projects currently under construction have similar financing. Nonrecourse
transactions generally impose no material obligation on the parent-level investor to repay any debt incurred by the project
borrower. However, in some cases, certain obligations relating to the investment being financed, including additional
equity commitments, are guaranteed by Global, Energy Holdings and/or Power for their respective subsidiaries. The
consequences of permitting a project-level default include loss of any invested equity by the parent. PSEG has not
currently provided any guarantees or credit support to PSE&G, Power or Energy Holdings, except for the minimum net
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worth maintenance support agreement to PSEG Capital Corporation (PSEG Capital), a subsidiary of Energy Holdings,
which is planned to be eliminated upon maturity of PSEG Capital Corporation’s debt in May 2003.

Cross Default Provisions

PSEG

The PSEG credit agreements contain default provisions under which a default by it, PSE&G, Power or Energy Holdings
in an aggregate amount of $50 million would result in a default and the potential acceleration of payment under those
agreements. The $350 million PSEG Credit Agreement which expires in December 2005 contains provisions that will eliminate
the cross-default to Energy Holdings, once the $495 million Energy Holdings Credit Agreement expires in May 2004, or is
renewed prior to that time. PSEG expects to negotiate similar provisions in PSEG’s other credit agreements.

PSE&G

PSE&G’s First and Refunding Mortgage (Mortgage) and its credit agreements have no cross-defaults. The
PSE&G Medium-Term Note Indenture has a cross-default to the PSE&G Mortgage. The credit agreements have
cross-defaults under which a default by PSE&G in the aggregate of $50 million would result in a default and the
potential acceleration of payment under the credit agreements.

Power

The Power Senior Debt Indenture contains a default provision under which a default by it, Nuclear, Fossil
or PSEG Energy Resources & Trade LL.C (ER&T) in an aggregate amount of $50 million would result in a default
and the potential acceleration of payment under the indenture. There are no cross-defaults within Power’s indenture
from PSEG, Energy Holdings or PSE&G.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings’ credit agreements contain default provisions under which a default by it, Resources or Global
in an aggregate amount of $5 million, or a default by PSEG in an aggregate amount of $75 million would result
in an event of default and the potential acceleration of payment under those agreements. The Energy Holdings Senior
Note Indenture contains cross-default provisions under which a default by it, Resources or Global in an aggregate
amount of $25 million would result in a default and the potential acceleration of payment under the indenture.

Debt Covenants

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

The credit agreements generally contain customary provisions under which the lenders could refuse to advance
loans in the event of a material adverse change in the borrower’s business or financial condition. In that event, loan
funds may not be advanced.

As explained in detail below, some of these credit agreements also contain maximum debt-to-equity ratios,
minimum cash flow tests and other restrictive covenants and conditions to borrowing. Compliance with applicable
financial covenants will depend upon PSEG’s future financial position and the level of earnings and cash flow, as
to which no assurances can be given.

PSEG

Financial covenants contained in PSEG’s credit facilities include a ratio of debt (excluding non-recourse project
financings and securitization debt and including commercial paper and loans, certain letters of credit and similar
instruments) to total capitalization covenant. This covenant requires that at the end of any quarterly financial period,
such ratio not be more than 0.70 to 1. As of December 31, 2002, PSEG’s ratio of debt to capitalization was 0.61
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to 1. PSEG’s expects that this ratio will decrease slightly later in 2003 due to earnings exceeding dividends and
a one-time benefit due to the adoption of SFAS 143. See Note 2. New Accounting Standards of the Notes.

PSEG has issued Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures in connection with the issuance of tax deductible
preferred securities. If payments on those Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures are deferred, in accordance
with their terms, PSEG may not pay any dividends on its common stock until such default is cured. Currently, there
has been no deferral or default.

PSE&G

Financial covenants contained in PSE&G’s credit facilities include a ratio of Long-Term Debt (excluding Long-
Term Debt Maturing within 1 Year) to Total Capitalization covenant, This covenant requires that at the end of any
quarterly financial period, such ratio will not be more than 0.65 to 1. As of December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s ratio
of Long-Term Debt to Total Capitalization was 0.53 to 1.

Under its Mortgage, PSE&G may issue new First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds against previous additions
and improvements, provided that its ratio of earnings to fixed charges calculated in accordance with its Mortgage
is at least 2:1, and/or against retired Mortgage Bonds. At December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s Mortgage coverage ratio
was 3.6:1. As of December 31, 2002, the Mortgage would permit up to approximately $1 billion aggregate principal
amount of new Mortgage Bonds to be issued against previous additions and improvements.

PSE&G has issued Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures in connection with the issuance of tax
deductible preferred securities. If payments on those Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures are deferred, in
accordance with their terms, PSE&G may not pay any dividends on its common or preferred stock until such default
is cured. Currently, there has been no deferral or default.

Energy Holdings

Financial covenants contained in Energy Holdings’ credit facilities include the ratio of cash flow available
for debt service (CFADS) to fixed charges. At the end of any quarterly financial period such ratio shall not be less
than 1.50x for the 12-month period then ending. As a condition of borrowing, the pro-forma CFADS to fixed charges
ratio shall not be less than 1.75x as of the quarterly financial period ending immediately following the first
anniversary of each borrowing or letter of credit issuance. CFADS includes, but is not limited to, operating cash
before interest and taxes, pre-tax cash distributions from all asset liquidations and equity capital contributions from
PSEG to the extent not used to fund investing activity. As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings ratio of CFADS
to fixed charges was 5.5x. In addition, the ratio of consolidated recourse indebtedness to recourse capitalization,
as at the end of any quarterly financial period, shall not be greater than 0.60 to 1.00. This ratio is calculated by
dividing the total recourse indebtedness of Energy Holdings by the total recourse capitalization. This ratio excludes
the debt of PSEG Capital, which is supported by PSEG. As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings’ ratio of
consolidated recourse indebtedness to recourse capitalization was 0.43 to 1.00.

PSEG Capital has a Medium-Term Note program which provides for the private placement of Medium-Term
Notes. Medium-Term Notes are debt instruments, which may be issued with a maturity of 1 to 30 years. This
Medium-Term Note program is supported by a minimum net worth maintenance agreement between PSEG Capital
and PSEG which provides, among other things, that PSEG (1) maintain its ownership, directly or indirectly, of all
outstanding common stock of PSEG Capital, (2) cause PSEG Capital to have at all times a positive tangible net
worth of at least $100,000 and (3) make sufficient contributions of liquid assets to PSEG Capital in order to permit
it to pay its debt obligations. PSEG will eliminate its support of PSEG Capital debt by May 2003 at which time
the total debt outstanding of $252 million will be repaid and the program will terminate.

Ratings Triggers

PSEG, PSE&G, Power ard Energy Holdings

The debt indentures and credit agreements of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings do not contain any
material “ratings triggers” that would cause an acceleration of the required interest and principal payments in the
event of a ratings downgrade. However, in the event of a downgrade, any one or more of the affected companies
may be subject to increased interest costs on certain bank debt,
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Power

In connection with its energy marketing and trading activities, Power must meet certain credit quality standards
as are required by counterparties. If Power loses its investment grade credit rating, ER&T would have to provide
credit support (letters of credit or cash), which would significantly impact the cost of the energy trading activities.
Power’s Master Agreements and other supply contracts contain margin and/or other collateral requirements that,
as of December 31, 2002, could require Power to post additional collateral of approximately $320 million if Power
were to lose its investment grade credit rating. These same contracts provide reciprocal benefits to Power. Providing
this credit support would increase Power’s costs of doing business and limit Power’s ability to successfully conduct
its energy trading operations.

In addition, Power may be required by its counterparties to meet margin or other security requirements that
may include cash payments. Power may also have to provide credit support for certain of its equity commitments
if Power loses its investment grade rating.

Energy Holdings

Global and Energy Holdings may have to provide collateral of approximately $85 million for certain of their
equity commitments if Energy Holdings’ ratings should fall below investment grade.

Credit Ratings

The current ratings of securities of PSEG and its subsidiaries are shown below and reflect the respective views
of the rating agencies, from whom an explanation of the significance of their ratings may be obtained. There is
no assurance that these ratings will continue for any given period of time or that they will not be revised by the
rating agencies, if, in their respective judgments, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or withdrawal
may adversely effect the market price of PSEG’s, Energy Holdings’, Power’s and PSE&G’s securities and serve
to increase those companies’ cost of capital and access to capital.

Moody’s(1) Standard & Poor’s(2) Fitch(3)

PSEG:

Preferred Securities ............ DU Baa3 BB+ BBB

Commercial Paper .....................o.. .. P2 A2 Not Rated
PSE&G:

Mortgage Bonds ... A3 A- A

Preferred Securities ............coevviinnnn. Baa2 BB+ BBB+

Commercial Paper ........................... P2 A2 Fl
Power:

Senior Notes ..o Baal BBB BBB+
Energy Holdings:

Senior NOteS . .o.vuvi e veieieenen Baa3 BBB- BBB-
PSEG Capital:

Medium-Term Notes ............ovviinnenn.n. Baa2 BBB- BBB+

(1) On October 11, 2002 Moody’s reaffirmed these credit ratings but changed the outlook from stable to
negative for PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings.

(2) Affirmed in the second quarter of 2002 and noted an outlook of stable. Standard and Poor’s has established
an overall corporate credit rating of BBB for PSEG and each of its subsidiaries listed above.

{(3) Affirmed in the second quarter of 2002 and noted an outlook of stable, except for PSE&G Mortgage Bonds,
which was noted as negative.
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Short-Term Liguidity

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

In order to support its short-term financing requirements as well as those of Power, PSEG has revolving credit
facilities that are used both as a source of short-term funding and to provide backup liquidity for its $1.0 billion
commercial paper program. As of December 31, 2002, PSEG’s consolidated total short-term debt outstanding was
$762 million consisting of $300 million of commercial paper and $101 million in loans outstanding under its
uncommitted bilateral agreement and the amounts discussed below in PSE&G, Energy Holdings and Power. See
Note 11. Schedule of Consolidated Debt of the Notes for a table illustrating the credit facilities, amounts outstanding
and available liguidity as of December 31, 2002.

PSE&G

PSE&G maintains credit facilities to provide backup for its $400 million commercial paper program. As of
December 31, 2002, PSE&G had $183 million in commercial paper and $41 million in loans outstanding under
its uncommitted bilateral agreement. See Note 11. Schedule of Consolidated Debt of the Notes for a table illustrating
the credit facilities, amounts outstanding and available liquidity as of December 31, 2002.

Power

Power has a $50 million credit facility, but primarily relies on PSEG for its short-term financing needs. As
of December 31, 2002, there was $6 million outstanding in letters of credit under the credit facility of Power. See
Note 11. Schedule of Consolidated Debt of the Notes for a table illustrating the credit facilities, amounts outstanding
and available liquidity as of December 31, 2002.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings has credit facilities that are used both as a source of short-term funding and to issue letters
of credit. As of December 31, 2002, there was $74 million outstanding in letters of credit under the credit facilities
of Energy Holdings and $137 million of non-recourse short-term financing at Global. See Note 11. Schedule of
Consolidated Debt of the Notes for a table illustrating the credit facilities, amounts outstanding and available
liquidity as of December 31, 2002. For information regarding the refinancing of maturing non-recourse short-term
financing at SAESA, see Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities of the Notes.

External Financings

PSEG

In 2002, PSEG began issuing new shares of its common stock under its Dividend Reinvestment Program
(DRASPP) and its Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), rather than purchasing them on the open market. For
the year ended December 31, 2002 PSEG issued approximately 2.2 million shares for approximately $78 million
pursuant to these plans.

On May 21, 2002, $275 million of Floating Rate Notes matured.

In September 2002, PSEG issued 9.2 million Participating Units with a stated amount of $50 per unit. Each
unit consists of a 6.25% trust preferred security of PSEG Funding Trust I due 2007 having a liquidation value of
$50, and a stock purchase contract obligating the purchasers to purchase shares of PSEG common stock in an amount
equal to $50 on November 16, 2005. In exchange for the obligations under the purchase contract, the purchasers
will receive quarterly contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 4% until such date. The number of new
shares issued on November 16, 2005 will depend upon the average closing price per share of PSEG common stock
for the 20 consecutive trading days ending the third trading day immediately preceding November 16, 2005, Based
on the formula described in the purchase contract, at that time PSEG will issue between 11,429,139 and 13,714,967

50




shares of its common stock based on a range of closing prices from $33.54 to $40.25 per share. The net proceeds
from the sale of the Participating Units were $446 million and were used primarily to reduce short-term debt.

In October 2002, PSEG closed on a $245 million private placement debt transaction with a five-year average
life and seven-year final maturity. The coupon rate was 6.89% and the proceeds were used to reduce short-term debt.

In November 2002, PSEG issued 17.25 million shares of common stock pursuant to an underwritten public
offering at a price of $26.55 per share. The net proceeds from the sale of common stock were $443 million and
were used to reduce short-term debt.

In December 2002, PSEG Funding Trust Il issued 7.2 million shares of $25 par value trust preferred securities.
The net proceeds of $174 million were used to reduce short-term debt.

During 2002, PSEG contributed $400 million of equity to Energy Holdings, $200 million to Power and on
January 21, 2003, PSEG contributed $170 million of equity to PSE&G.

PSE&G

PSE&G 1is required to obtain BPU authorization to issue any financing necessary for its capital program,
including refunding of maturing debt and opportunistic refinancing. PSE&G has authorization from the BPU to
issue up to an aggregate of $1 billion of long-term debt through December 31, 2003 for the refunding of maturing
debt and opportunistic refinancing of debt. PSE&G currently has authority to issue up to $750 million of short-term
debt through January 4, 2005. In addition, PSE&G expects to securitize approximately $250 million of deferred
BGS costs.

In August 2002, $257 million of 6.125% Series RR Mortgage Bonds matured.

In September 2002, PSE&G issued $300 million of 5.125% Medium-Term Notes due 2012, the proceeds of
which were used to repay $290 million of 7.19% Medium-Term Notes that matured.

In January 2003, PSE&G issued $150 million of 5.00% Medium-Term Notes due 2013. The proceeds were
used to repay $150 million of 6.875% Series MM Mortgage Bonds which matured in January 2003.

Also in January 2003, PSEG contributed $170 million to PSE&G to offset a minimum pension liability charge
to OCI in order to maintain its targeted regulated equity ratio at approximately 42%.

During 2002, PSE&G Transition Funding LLC (Transition Funding), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PSE&G,
repaid $121 million of securitization bonds.

Since 1986, PSE&G has made regular cash payments to PSEG in the form of dividends on outstanding shares
of its common stock. PSE&G paid common stock dividends of $305 million and $112 million to PSEG for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Power

Power’s short-term financing needs are substantially met using PSEG’s commercial paper program or lines
of credit discussed above.

In June 2002, Power issued $600 million of 6.95% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012. The proceeds were
used to repay short-term funding from PSEG, including amounts related to the gas contract transfer from PSE&G
in May 2002.

Energy Holdings

In June 2002, Energy Holdings issued an additional $135 million of its 8.625% Series of Senior Notes due
February 2008.
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In June 2002, July 2002 and October 2002, $98 million, $ 100 million and $30 million of PSEG Capital medium
term notes (MTNs) with average borrowing rates of 3.12%, 6.95% and 6.80% matured, respectively. These MTNs
were refunded with funds from operations and proceeds from borrowings under Energy Holdings” credit facilities.
The remaining maturity under the PSEG Capital Corporation program is $252 million, which matures in May 2003
and is expected to be refinanced through operating cash flows and existing short-term credit facilities.

During 2002, Energy Holdings repurchased approximately $54 million of its outstanding Senior Notes at prices
below par value.

OC1 Charge for Pension Liability

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Due to the weak financial markets over the past few years, PSEG’s, PSE&G’s, Power’s and Energy Holdings’
pension plan assets have not experienced the returns necessary to outpace the growth of the related pension
liabilities. In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers Accounting for Pensions” (SFAS 87), PSEG, PSE&G,
Power and Energy Holdings were required to record a minimum pension liability on their respective Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002. As calculated under SFAS 87, a minimum pension liability exists and
must be recorded when the accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) of the plan exceeds the fair value of the plan
assets, The excess of the ABO over the fair value of the plan assets is recorded as a charge to OCI within the equity
section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The offsetting adjustment is recorded as a pension liability or as a
reduction of certain pension plan intangible assets as applicable. The minimum pension liability is reduced or
reversed when cash funding occurs, or when the fair value of the pension plan assets grow to a level above that
of the ABO.

As of December 31, 2002, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings recorded after-tax charges to OCI
as follows:

(Millions)
PSE&G. ..o $172
POWer .. o 84
Energy Holdings........................... 6
Services ... 35
Total PSEG..................oiiial, $297

PSEG funded the pension plan by $250 million in 2002 and plans on contributing $175 million in 2003, but
will consider increasing this planned contribution to remove the OCI charge based on market conditions. For
additional information, see Note 17. Pension, Other Postretirement Benefit (OPER) and Savings Plans of the Notes.

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Forecasted Expenditures

PSEG, Power and Energy Heldings

PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings have substantially reduced their respective capital expenditure forecasts
in response to tightening market conditions resulting from market and lender concerns regarding the overall
economy and the industry in particular, including an investor and rating agency focus on leverage ratios.

It is expected that the majority of each subsidiary’s capital requirements over the next five years will come
from internally generated funds, with the balance to be provided by the issuance of debt at the subsidiary or project
level and equity contributions from PSEG. Projected construction and investment expenditures, excluding nuclear
tuel purchases for Power, for PSEG’s subsidiaries for the next five years are as follows:
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2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

(Millions)
PSE&G. .. ... ... .. .. o $ 450 $ 450 $450 $450 $500
Power...... ... .. .. . i 500 675 250 75 50
Energy Holdings. . . .......... ... .. ..... 100 — 50 _ 50 _ 50
Total PSEG ... ... ... ... ... ... ... $1,050 $1,125 $750 3575 3600
PSE&G

PSE&G projects future capital needs in order to maintain continuouns additions to its transmission and
distribution systems to manage reliability. In 2002, PSE&G had net plant additions of $472 million related to
improvements in its transmission and distribution system, gas system and common facilities.

Power

Power’s capital needs will be dictated by its strategy to continue to develop as a profitable, growth-oriented
supplier in the wholesale power market. Power has revised its schedule for completion of several projects under
development to provide better sequencing of its construction program with anticipated market demand. This should
allow Power to conserve capital in 2003 and allow it to take advantage of the expected recovery of the electric
markets and its anticipated need for capacity in 2005. Power’s subsidiaries have substantial commitments as part
of their ongoing construction programs. Power will continue to evaluate its development and construction
requirements in relation to the energy and financial markets.

In 2002, Power made approximately $1.3 billion of capital expenditures, primarily related to developing the
Lawrenceburg, Indiana, Waterford, Ohio and Bethlehem, New York (Albany) sites and adding capacity to the
Bergen and Linden stations in New Jersey.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings’ capital needs in 2003 are limited to fulfilling existing contractual commitments. All of the
forecasted expenditures in 2005 through 2007 related to Energy Holdings are discretionary.

In 2002, Energy Holdings’ subsidiaries made net investments totaling approximately $237 million. These
investments include a majority interest in a coal-fired generation facility in Poland, additional investments in existing
generation and distribution facilities and projects by Global and investments in capital leases by Resources. Partially
offsetting these investments was a loan repayment from TIE and proceeds from the termination of two lease transactions
with affiliates of TXU-Europe. For further discussion of the loans to TIE and the termination of the two lease transactions,
see Note 22. Related-Party Transactions and Note 8. Long-Term Investments of the Notes.
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Disclosures about Long-Term Maturities, Contractual and Commercial Obligations and
Certain Investments

The following table summarizes aaticipated recourse and non-recourse debt maturities for the years shown.
Payments for Transition Funding are based on expected payment dates rather than final maturity dates.

Long-Term Debt Maturities: 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
(Millions)
$ — $ — $ 248
125 147 2,069
146 155 1,783
— 500 2,016
Energy Holdings(A) — — 1,449
Non-recourse project financing

800 — —
Energy Holdings 48 53 710

$742 $1.119 $855 $8,275

(A) The $252 million in 2003 for Energy Holdings represents the total remaining maturities under the PSEG
Capital Corporation program.

The following tables, reflect PSEG and its subsidiaries’ contractual cash obligations and other commercial
commitments in the respective periods in which they are due.

Total Less
Amounts Than
Contractual Cash Obligations Committed 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years Over 5 years
(Millions)
Short-Term Debt Maturities
PSEG ... ... $§ 401 $ 401 $ — $ — $ —
PSE&G .. ... ... . . 224 224 — — —
Energy Holdings . . . ... ...... ... ... .. 137 137 — — —
Long-Term Debt Maturities
PSEG .. ... e 248 — — — 248
PSE&G . ... ... 2,927 300 410 260 1,956
Transition Funding (PSE&G) ............ 2,351 129 284 317 1,621
POWEL . o . oo e 3,316 — 800 500 2,016
Energy Holdings . . . .................. 2,898 320 366 106 2,106
Preferred Securities Redemptions
PSEG ... .. . .. . 705 — — — 705
PSE&G . ... ... . 155 — — — 155
Capital Lease Obligations
PSE&G . ... . 80 6 12 12 50
Power . ... ... . ... 19 1 2 4 12
Operating Leases
PSE&G ....... ... ... . . . .. .. 13 3 6 4 —
Energy Holdings . . . .................. 37 6 9 8 14
Services. . . .. 8 1 2 2
Fuel Purchase Commitments
Power ...... ... ... .. . .. 545 163 140 101 141
Total Contractual Cash Obligations . ... .. .. $14,064 $1,691 $2,032 $1,314 $9,027
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Power

As of December 31, 2002, Power had guaranteed equity contribution commitments with respect to its
subsidiaries of $134 million. Power also issued guarantees with respect to certain energy trading contracts, see Note
13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities of the Notes for further discussion.

Energy Holdings

As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings had guaranteed equity contribution commitments of $141 million
and other guarantees of $167 million.

In the normal course of business, Energy Technologies secures construction obligations with performance
bonds issued by insurance companies. As of December 31, 2002, Energy Technologies had performance bonds
outstanding of $228 million which were supported by Energy Holdings and of which $45 million was at risk for
projects currently under construction. This amount is expected to decrease as Energy Technologies® construction
projects are completed. The performance bonds are not included in the table below. See Note 13. Commitments
and Contingent Liabilities of the Notes for further discussion.

Total Less
Amounts Than
Other Commercial Commitments: Committed 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years Over S years
. (Millions)
Standby Letters of Credit
Power ...... ... ... ... ...... S $ 73 $ 28 $2 $— $ 43
Energy Holdings . . . ............... ... 74 70 — 4 —
Guarantees and Equity Commitments
Power ....... ... ... ... ... . 134 134 — — —
Energy Holdings . . ... ......... ... .... 265 _123 — 55 _87
Total Commercial Commitments . . ........ $546 $355 $2 $59 130

il
ll

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Energy Holdings

Global has certain investments that are accounted for under the equity method in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Accordingly, amounts recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for
such investments represents Global’s equity investment which is increased for Global’s pro-rata share of earnings
less any dividend distribution from such investments. The companies in which PSEG invest that are accounted for
under the equity method have an aggregate $1.7 billion of debt on their combined, consolidated financial statements.
PSEG’s pro-rata share of such debt is $700 million. This debt is non-recourse to PSEG, Energy Holdings, and
Global. PSEG is generally not required to support the debt service obligations of these companies. However, default
with respect to this nonrecourse debt could result in a loss of invested equity.

Resources has investments in leveraged leases that are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 13
“Accounting for Leases.” Leveraged lease investments generally involve three parties: an owner/lessor, a creditor
and a lessee. In a typical leveraged lease financing, the lessor purchases an asset to be leased. The purchase price
is typically financed 80% with debt provided by the creditor and the balance comes from equity funds provided
by Resources, as the lessor. The creditor provides long-term financing to the transaction, and is secured by the
property subject to the lease. Such long-term financing is non-recourse to Resources. As such, in the event of default,
the creditor may only look to the leased asset as security for its loan. As a lessor, Resources has ownership rights
to the property and rerits the property to the lessee for use in-its business operation. As of December 31, 2002,
Resources’ equity investment in leased assets was approximately $1.5 billion, net of deferred taxes of approximately
$1.3 billion. For additional information, see Note 8. Long-Term Investments of the Notes.
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In the event that collectibility of the minimum lease payments to be received by the lessor is no longer
reasonably predictable, the accounting treatment for some of the leases may change. In such cases, Resources may
deem that a lessee has a high probability of defaulting on the lease obligation. In many instances, Resources has
protected its equity investment in such transactions by providing for the direct right to assume the debt obligation
under certain circumstances. Debt assumption would be at Resources’ sole discretion and normally only would
occur if an appraisal of the leased property yielded a value that exceeds the present value of the debt outstanding.
Should Resources ever directly assume a debt obligation, the fair value of the underlying asset and the associated
debt would be recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets instead of the net equity investment in the lease. In
2000, Resources reclassified an investment in a real estate leveraged lease due to unpredictability of future rent
collections, and assumed a debt obligation of $24 million.

ACCOUNTING ISSUES

New Accounting Standards
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

On January 1, 2002, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 142. Under this standard,
PSEG was required to complete an impairment analysis of goodwill by June 30, 2002 and record any required
impairment retroactive to January 1, 2002. Under SFAS 142, goodwill is considered a nonamortizable asset and
is subject to an annual review for impairment and an interim review when certain events or changes in circumstances
occur. The effect of no longer amortizing goodwill on an annual basis was not material to PSEG’s, PSE&G’s, or
Power’s financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

Power and Energy Holdings

Power and Energy Holdings evaluated the recoverability of the recorded amount of goodwill based on certain
operating and financial factors. Such impairment testing included discounted cash flow tests which require broad
assumptions and significant judgment to be exercised by management. As a result of adopting this new standard,
in 2002 Energy Holdings recorded after-tax charges to reflect the goodwill impairment of $120 million and such
amount has been recognized as a Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle in accordance with the
new standard. All of these charges related to investments of Energy Holdings. See Note 2. New Accounting
Standards of the Notes for additional discussion on the adoption of this standard.

SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obiigations” (SFAS 143)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Effective January 1, 2003, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings will adopt SFAS 143. SFAS 143
addresses accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and
the associated asset retirement costs, It applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets
that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset. A legal
obligation is a liability that a party is required to seitle as a result of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance
or contract.

Under SFAS 143, a company must initially recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred and concurrently capitalize an asset retirement cost by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset by the same amount as the liability. A company shali subsequently
allocate that asset retirement cost to expense over its useful life. In periods subsequent to the initial measurement,
an entity shall recognize changes in the liability resulting from the passage of time (accretion) or due to revisions
to either the timing or the amount of the originally estimated cash flows. Changes in the liability due to accretion

56




will be charged to the Consolidated Statements of Operations whereas changes due to the timing or amount of
cashflows shall be an adjustment to the carrying amount of the related asset.

PSE&G and Power

Power has performed a review of its potential obligations under SFAS 143 and believes that its quantifiable
obligations are primarily related to the decommissioning of its nuclear power plants. Amounts collected from
PSE&G customers are remitted to Power and deposited into the Nuclear Decommissioning Trust (NDT) Fund and
realized and unrealized gains and losses in the trust were all recorded as changes in the NDT Fund with an offsetting
charge to the liability. As of December 31, 2002, Power had a $766 million asset and liability recorded on its
Consolidated Balance Sheets for nuclear decommissioning.

In addition to the quantifiable obligations, Power identified certain legal obligations that meet the criteria of
SFAS 143 which at this time are not quantifiable. These obligations relate to certain industrial establishments subject
to the Industrial Site Recovery Act, underground storage tanks subject to the Spill Compensation and Control Act,
permits and authorizations, the restoration of an area occupied by a reservoir when the reservoir is no longer needed,
an obligation to retire certain plants from operation, prior to the initial burning of fuel from a new plant and the
demolition of certain plants and the restoration of the sites on which they reside when the plants are no longer in
service.

In August 2002, PSE&G filed a petition requesting clarification from the BPU regarding the future cost
responsibility for nuclear decommissioning and whether: (a) PSE&G’s customers will continue to pay for such costs;
or (b) such customer responsibility will terminate at the end of the four-year transition period on July 31, 2003
and become the sole responsibility of Power. The outcome of this petition will affect the treatment of a material
portion of the liability recorded for Power’s nuclear decommissioning obligation. If the BPU determines that
PSE&G’s customers will continue 1o pay for these costs, the majority of the difference between the previously
recorded amount of the liability and the liability calculated under SFAS 143 will continue to be deferred on the
balance sheet. If the BPU determines that such customer responsibility terminates at the end of the transition period,
then the net effect of implementation will be recorded as a one-time benefit as a Cumulative Effect of a Change
in Accounting Principle. A decision is expected as part of PSE&G’s electric base rate case, which is expected to
be completed prior to July 2003. Although the outcome of this petition cannot be predicted, management believes
that the net effect of adopting this accounting standard should be recorded in earnings. Power also has $131 million
of liabilities, $7 million of which relates to legal obligations, recorded on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2002 related to the Cost of Removal associated with its fossil generating stations. These potential
obligations are required to be reversed upon implementation of SFAS 143,

Therefore, upon adoption of this standard on January 1, 2003, PSEG and Power will record an adjustment
fora Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings by reducing
the existing liabilities to their present value. It is anticipated that the result will be a benefit to net income, and
therefore equity, in a range of $300 million to $400 million. Of this amount, $200 million to $300 million relates
to interests in certain nuclear units Power purchased from PSE&G which are subject to the BPU issue discussed
above, approximately $55 million relates to interests in certain nuclear units Power purchased from Atlantic City
Electric Company (ACE) and Delmarva Power and Light Company (DP&L) which are not subject to BPU approval
and approximately $70 million relates to the cost of removal liabilities for the fossil units being reversed.

The BPU could decide that the future cost for decommissioning the nuclear units rests with PSE&G’s
customers. If that is the case, the portion of the benefit recorded to equity related to the nuclear units Power purchased
from PSE&G would be reversed and a regulatory liability would be established. The $55 million related to the
nuclear units purchased from ACE and DP&L and the $70 million related to the cost of removal liabilities for the
fossil units would be unaffected.

PSE&G

As of December 31, 2002, PSE&G had no legal liabilities, as contemplated under SFAS 143, recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and therefore the effect of adoption will not result in an adjustment to the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. PSE&G does, however, have cost of removal liabilities embedded within Accumulated
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Depreciation pursuant to SFAS 71. Since PSE&G is a regulated enterprise, these amounts will continue to be
recorded and presented in Accumulated Depreciation and will be disclosed in accordance with SFAS 143.

PSE&G has identified certain legal obligations that meet the criteria of SFAS 143 which at this time are not
quantifiable and therefore unable to be recorded. These obligations relate to certain industrial establishments subject
to the Industrial Site Recovery Act, underground storage tanks subject to the Spill Compensation and Control Act,
leases and licenses, and the requirement to seal natural gas pipelines at all sources of gas when the pipelines are
no longer in service.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings identified certain legal obligations that met the criteria of SFAS 143 and are not expected
to be material to the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposai of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

On January 1, 2002, SFAS 144, which provides guidance on the accounting for the impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets, became effective. For long-lived assets to be held and used, the new rules are similar to previous
guidance which required the recognition of an impairment when the undiscounted cash flows will not recover its
carrying amount. The impairment to be recognized will continue to be measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and fair value of the asset. The computation of fair value now removes goodwill from consideration
and incorporates a probability-weighted cash flow estimation approach if fair value is not readily determinable.
The previous guidance provided in SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-
Lived Assets to be Disposed of " (SFAS 121), is to be applied to assets that are to be disposed of by sale. Additionally,
assets qualifying for discontinued operations treatment have been expanded beyond the former major line of
business or class of customer approach. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by other than sale will now recognize
impairment at the date of disposal, but will be considered assets to be held and used until that time. There was
no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements due to adoption of these rules.

SFAS Ne. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13,
and Technical Corrections” (SFAS 145)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Effective January 1, 2002, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 145. This Statement
rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishments of Debt,” (SFAS 4) and an amendment
of that Statement, SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking Fund Requirements™ (SFAS
64). SFAS 4 required that gains and losses from extinguishments of debt that were included in the determination
of net income be aggregated, and if material, classified as an extraordinary item. Since the issuance of SFAS 4,
the use of debt extinguishments has become part of the risk management strategy of many conpanies, representing
a type of debt extinguishment that does not meet the criteria for classification as an extraordinary item. Based on
this trend, the FASB issued this rescission of SFAS 4 and SFAS 64, Accordingly, under SFAS 145, PSEG, PSE&G,
Power and Energy Holdings now record these gains and losses in Other Income and Other Deductions, respectively.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings recorded pre-tax gains of $13 million ($8 million after-tax) from the early retirement of debt
as a component of Other Income for the period ended December 31, 2002. Also, Energy Holdings reclassified a
pre-tax loss of $3 million ($2 million after-tax) from the early retirement of debt to a component of Other Deductions
for the period ended December 31, 2001. '
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Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue Neo. 02-3, “Accounting for Contracts Invelved in Energy
Trading and Risk Management Activities” (EITF 02-3)

PSEG, PSE&G and Power

EITF 02-3 requires all gains and losses on energy trading contracts to be reported on a net basis. Also, energy
trading contracts that do not qualify as derivatives will no longer be marked to market. Instead, accrual accounting
will be used. The consensus was effective for all new contracts executed after October 25, 2002, and requires
a cumulative effect adjustment to income in the first quarter of 2003 for all contracts executed prior to October 25,
2002. The vast majority of PSEG’s energy contracts qualify as derivatives under SFAS 133 and will therefore continue
to be marked to market. Management believes the impact of adopting this consensus will not be material to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pursuant to EITF Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” (EITF 99-19),
PSE&G and Power had been recording trading revenues and trading related costs on a gross basis for physical energy
and capacity sales and purchases. In accordance with EITF 02-3, beginning in the third quarter of 2002, Power started
reporting energy trading revenues and energy trading costs on a net basis and have reclassified prior periods to conform
with this net presentation. As a result, both Operating Revenues and Energy Costs were reduced by approximately
$1.9 billion, $2.3 billion and $2.6 billion for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. This
change in presentation did not have an effect on trading margins, net income or cash flows.

Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

FIN 45 enhances the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about
its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee,
although PSEG does not anticipate the recording of such liabilities will be material to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a
prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are
effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. For further
information regarding Power’s and Energy Holdings’ respective guarantees, refer to Note 13. Commitments and
Contingent Liabilities of the Notes.

FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (VIE)” (FIN 46)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

FIN 46 clarified the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements”,
to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. Because
a controlling financial interest in an entity may be achieved through arrangements that do not involve voting interests,
FIN 46 sets forth specific requirements with respect to consolidation, measurement and disclosure of such
relationships. Disclosure requirements for existing qualifying entities are effective for financial statements issued after
January 31, 2003. All enterprises with VIEs created after February 1, 2003, shall apply the provisions of FIN 46 no
later than the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Although, PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings are evaluating the potential impact of this standard, it is not expected to have a material impact.

Other

PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

In connection with the January 2003 EITF meeting, the FASB was requested to reconsider an interpretation
of SFAS 133. The interpretation, which is contained in the Derivatives Implementation Group’s C-11 guidance,
relates to the pricing of contracts that include broad market indices. In particular, that guidance discusses whether
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the pricing in a contract that contains broad market indices (e.g., Consumer Price Index) could qualify as a normal
purchase or sale under SFAS 133. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are currently reevaluating which
contracts, if any, that have previously been designated as normal purchases or sales, would now not qualify for
this exception. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are currently evaluating the effects that this guidance
will have on their respective results of operations, financial position and net cash flows.

Critical Accounting Estimates

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Under GAAP, there are many accounting standards that require the use of estimates, variable inputs and
assumptions (collectively referred to as estimates) that are subjective in nature. Because of this, differences between
the actual measure realized versus the estimate can have a material impact on results of operations, financial position
and cash flows. The management of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings has each, respectively, determined
that the following estimates are considered critical to the application of rules that relate to its business.

Accounting for Pensions

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings account for pensions under SFAS 87. Under these rules, certain
assumptions which are subjective by nature are made. There are many subjective assumptions involved in
determining an entity’s pension liabilities and costs each period including demographic information such as life
expectancy and pay increases, and financial metrics, such as discount rates used to determine the pension liability
and assumed rate of return on the pension assets which affects annual pension costs. PSEG’s assumptions are
supported by historical data and reasonable projections and are reviewed with an outside actuary firm and investment
advisors. As of December 31, 2002, PSEG used a 6.75% discount rate and a 9% annual rate of return. In selecting
an assumed discount rate, PSEG uses a rate based on a blend of the Aa Moody’s Corporate and Utility Indices.
The 9% annual rate of return is consistent with PSEG’s cumulative returns on the pension funds since inception
and with a study performed late in 2002 of projected returns for PSEG’s pension funds based on their asset allocation,
maturities and an active investment manager.

The following chart reflects the sensitivities associated with a change in certain actuarial assumptions by the
indicated percentage. While the chart below reflects an increase or decrease in the percentage for each assumption, PSEG,
PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings and its actuaries expect that the inverse of this change would impact the projected
benefit obligation (PBO), the reported pension liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the reported annual
pension cost on the Consolidated Statements of Operations by a similar amount in the opposite direction. Each sensitivity
below reflects an evaluation of the change based solely on a change in that assumption only.

Change/ Increase to
Actuarial Assumption Current (Decrease) Empact on PBO Pension Expense
(Millions)
DiscountRate .. ........ ... ........ 6.75% (1%) - $350 $26
Rate of Return on Plan Assets . .. ........ 9.0% (1%) - — $22

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS 133 requires an entity to recognize the fair value of derivative instruments held as assets or liabilities on the
balance sheet. In accordance with SFAS 133, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of a derivative instrument
designated as a cash flow hedge is reported in OCI, net of tax, or as a regulatory asset (liability). Amounts in accumulated
OCT are ultimately recognized in earnings when the related hedged forecasted transaction occurs. The change in the fair
value of the ineffective portion of the derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is recorded in earnings.
Derivative instruments that have not been designated as hedges, such as energy trading contracts, are adjusted to fair
value through earnings. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings have entered into various derivative instruments,
including hedges of anticipated electric and gas purchases, interest rate swaps and foreign currency hedges which have

60



been designated as cash flow hedges. Management may choose to designate these contracts as hedges based on its
business practices, if such derivatives meet the effectiveness test under SFAS 133.

The fair value of the derivative instruments is determined by reference to quoted market prices, listed contracts,
published quotations or quotations from counterparties. In the absence thereof, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy
Holdings utilize mathematical models based on current and historical data. The fair value of most of PSEG’s
derivatives is determined based upon quoted market prices.-

For additional information regarding Derivative Financial Instruments, see Note 12. Risk Management of the
Notes.

Accounting for Deferred Taxes

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings provide for income taxes based on the asset and liability method
required by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, as well as net operating loss and credit
carryforwards.

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings evaluate the need for a valuation allowance of their respective
deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of expected future taxable benefits. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy
Holdings do not believe a valuation allowance is necessary; however, if the expected level of future taxable income
changes or certain tax planning strategies become unavailable, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings would
record a valuation allowance through income tax expense in the period the valuation allowance is deemed necessary.

Accounting for Long-Lived Assets

SFAS 144, a new standard related to (esting long-lived assets for impairment, was adopted on January 1, 2002,
Testing under SFAS 144 is essentially the same as the asset impairment tests PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy
Holdings performed under SFAS 121. This test consisted of an undiscounted cash flow analysis to determine if
an impairment existed, and, if an impairment existed, a discounted cash flow test would be performed to quantify
it. The new standard is broader in that it includes discontinued operations as part of its scope. This test requires
the same judgment to be employed by management in building assumptions related to future earnings of individual
assets or an investment as was required in determining potential impairments of goodwill as discussed above.

These tests are required whenever events or circumstances indicate an impairment may exist. Examples of
potential events which could require an impairment test are when power prices become depressed for a prolonged
period in a market, when a foreign currency significantly devalues, or when an investment generates negative operating
cash flows. Any potential impairment of investments under these circumstances is recorded as a component of
operating expenses.

PSE&G
Unbilled Revenues

Electric and gas revenues are recorded based on services rendered to customers during each accounting period.
PSE&G records unbilled revenues for the estimated amount customers will be billed for services rendered from
the time meters were last read to the end of the respective accounting period. Unbilled usage is calculated in two
steps. The initial step is to apply a base usage per day to the number of unbilled days in the period. The second
step estimates seasonal loads based upon the time of year and the variance of actual degree-days and temperature-
humidity-index hours of the unbilled period from expected norms. The resulting usage is priced at current rate levels
and recorded as revenue. A calculation of the associated energy cost for the unbilled usage is recorded as well.
Each month the prior month’s unbilled amounts are reversed and the current month’s amounts are accrued. The
resulting revenue and expense reflect the billed data less the portion booked in the prior month plus the unbilled
portion of the current month.
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SFAS 71 — Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation

PSE&G prepares its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 71, which
differs in certain respects from the application of GAAP by non-regulated businesses. In general, SFAS 71
recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the economic effects of regulation. As a
result, a regulated utility is required to defer the recognition of costs (a regulatory asset) or the recognition of
obligations (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the rate-making process, there will be a
corresponding increase or decrease in future rates. Accordingly, PSE&G has deferred certain costs, which will be
amortized over various future periods. To the extent that collection of such costs or payment of liabilities is no
longer probable as a result of changes in regulation and/or PSE&G’s competitive position, the associated regulatory
asset or liability is charged or credited to income. See Note 7. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities of the Notes for
further discussion of these and other regulatory issues.

Power and Energy Holdings
Accounting for Goodwill

SFAS 142 requires an entity to evaluate its goodwill for impairment at least annually or when indications of
impairment exist. An impairment may exist when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

Accounting estimates related to goodwill fair value are highly susceptible to change from period to period
because they require management to make cash flow assumptions about future sales, operating costs, economic
conditions and discount rates over an indefinite life and the impact of recognizing an impairment could have a
material impact on financial position and results of operations.

Power and Energy Holdings perform annual goodwill impairment tests and continuously monitor the business
environment in which they operate for any impairment issues that may arise. As indicated above, certain
assumptions are used to arrive at a fair value for goodwill testing. Such assumptions are consistently employed
and include, but are not limited to, free cash fiow projections, interest rates, tariff adjustments, economic conditions
prevalent in the geographic regions in which Power and Energy Holdings do business, local spot market prices
for energy, foreign exchange rates and the credit worthiness of customers. If an adverse event were to occur, such
an event could materially change the assumptions used to value goodwill and could result in impairments of
goodwill. For further information, see Note 2. New Accounting Standards of the Notes.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for the historical information contained herein, certain of the matters discussed in this report constitute
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated. Such statements are based on management’s beliefs, as well as assumptions made

(TS

by and information currently available to management. When used herein, the words “will”, “anticipate”, “intend”,
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect”, “plan”, “hypothetical”, “potential”, “forecast”, “projections” variations of such
words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and
Energy Holdings undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The following review of factors should not be construed
as exhaustive or as any admission regarding the adequacy of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings’

disclosures prior to the effective date of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

In addition to the risks identified in MD& A—Overview and Future Outlook and in addition to any assumptions
and other factors referred to specifically in connection with such forward-looking statements discussed above,
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in any forward-looking
statements include, among others, the following:

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings
= credit, commodity, interest rate, counterparty and other financial market risks, could have an adverse impact;

= liquidity and the ability to access capital and credit markets, could have an adverse impact;
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= acquisitions, divestitures, mergers, restructurings or strategic initiatives that change PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings’ structure; business combinations among competitors and major customers could
change financial position, results of operations or net cash flows;

= general economic conditions including inflation;

= changes to accounting standards or generally accepted accounting principles, which may require adjustments
to financial statements and may affect future results;

= changes in tax laws and regulations which could affect cash flows and business prospects;

= energy obligations, available supply and trading risks may have an adverse impact;

= changes in the electric industry including changes to power pools could have an adverse impact;

= regulation and availability of power transmission facilities may impact ability to deliver output to customers;
= growth in costs and expenses could have an adverse impact;

* environmental regulation significantly impacts operations;

= changes in rates of return on overall debt and equity markets could have an adverse impact on the value
of pension assets and the NDT fund;

= changes in political conditions, recession, acts of war or terrorism could have an adverse impact;

insurance coverage may not be sufficient;

. involYement in lawsuits, including liability claims and commercial disputes, could affect profits or ability
to sell and market products;

inability to attract and retain management and other key employees could have an adverse impact;

= ability to service debt as a result of any of the aforementioned events could have an adverse impact;

PSE&G & Energy Holdings

* ability to obtain adequate and timely rate relief;

= regulatory issues significantly impact operations;

Power and Enérgy Holdings

* low energy prices could adversely affect revenues and cash flows;

excess supply due to overbuild in the industry may have adverse effects;

generation operating performance may fall below projected levels;

* the operations are subject to substantial competition from well capitalized participants in the worldwide
energy markets;

* inability to effectively manage trading risk could have an adverse impact;

= margin posting requirements could have an adverse effect on cash flows;

availabililty of fuel at reasonable prices;

competitive position could be adversely affected by actions involving competitors or major customers;

changes in product or sourcing mix could have an adverse impact;

acquisition, construction and development may not be timely or successful;

changes in technology may make power generation assets less competitive;
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Energy Holdings

= because a significant portion of business is conducted outside the United States, adverse international
developments could negatively impact its business;

changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

unavailability of leveraged lease investments with adequate returns at reasonable risk could have an adverse
impact;

inadequate operating performance or legal protections of leveraged lease investments could have an adverse
impact;

substandard operating performance or cash flow from investments could fall below projected levels,
adversely impacting the ability to service its debt; and

= credit of lessees to service the leases.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this report are qualified by these cautionary statements
and PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings cannot assure you that the results or developments anticipated by
management will be realized, or even if realized, will have the expected consequences to, or effects on PSEG, PSE&G,
Power and Energy Holdings or its business prospects, financial condition or resuits of operations. Undue reliance should
not be placed on these forward-looking statements in making any investment decision. Each PSEG, PSE&G, Power and
Energy Holdings expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to these
forward-Jooking staternents to reflect events or circumstances that occur or arise or are anticipated to occur or arise after
the date hereof. In making any investment decision regarding PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings’ securities,
PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings is not making, and you should not infer, any representation about the likely
existence of any particular future set of facts or circumstances. The forward-looking statements contained in this report
are intended to qualify for the safe harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

The market risk inherent in PSEG’s, PSE&G’s, Power’s and Energy Holdings’ market risk sensitive instruments
and positions is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices,
equity security prices and interest rates as discussed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Each of
PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings’ policy is to use derivatives to manage risk consistent with its respective
business plans and prudent practices. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings utilize the PSEG Risk Management
Committee (RMC) comprised of executive officers which utilizes an independent risk oversight function to ensure
compliance with corporate policies and prudent risk management practices.

Additionally, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are exposed to counterparty credit losses in the event
of non-performance or non-payment. PSEG has a credit management process which is used to assess, monitor and
mitigate counterparty exposure for PSEG and its subsidiaries. In the event of non-performance or non-payment
by a major counterparty, there may be a material adverse impact on PSEG and its subsidiaries’ financial condition,
results of operations or net cash flows.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

Energy Holdings

Global is exposed to foreign currency risk and other foreign operations risk that arise from investments in foreign
subsidiaries and affiliates. A key component of this risk is that some of its foreign subsidiaries and affiliates utilize
currencies other than the consolidated reporting currency, the US Dollar. Additionally, certain of Global’s foreign
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subsidiaries and affiliates have entered into monetary obligations and maintain receiptsfreceivables in US Dollars or
currencies other than their own functional currencies. Primarily, Global is exposed to changes in the US Dollar to
Brazilian Real exchange rate, the US Dollar to Euro exchange rate, the US Dollar to Polish Zloty exchange rate and
the US Dollar to Chilean Peso exchange rate. With respect to the foreign currency risk associated with the Brazilian
Real and the Chilean Peso, there has already been significant devaluation since the initial acquisition of these
investments, which has resulted in reduced US Dollar earnings and cash flows relative to initial projections. Whenever
possible, these subsidiaries and affiliates have attempted to limit potential foreign exchange exposure by entering into
revenue contracts that adjust to changes in foreign exchange rates. Global also uses foreign currency forward, swap
and option agreements, wherever possible, to manage risk related to certain foreign currency fluctuations.

As of December 31, 2002, the devaluing Brazilian Real has resulted in a cumulative $225 million loss of value
which is recorded as a $202 million after-tax charge to Other Comprehensive Income related to Global’s equity
method investments in RGE, a Brazilian distribution company. An additional devaluation in the December 31, 2002
Brazilian Real to the US Dollar exchange rate of 10% would result in a $3 million change in the value of the
investment in RGE and an after-tax $3 million impact to Other Comprehensive Income.

Additionally, Global has $52 million of monetary receivables in Euros subject to fluctuations in the US Dollar
to Euro exchange rate. If the December 31, 2002 Euro to US Dollar exchange rate were to change by 10%, Global
would record a $4 million after-tax foreign currency transaction gain or loss.

Global also has net monetary positions in the Polish Zloty related to its consolidated investments in ELCHO
and Skawina, Polish generation companies. If the December 31, 2002 Polish Zloty to US Dollar exchange rate were
to change by 10%, Global would record a $4 million after-tax foreign currency transaction gain or loss.

An additional exposure related to foreign currency risk includes the $157 million of monetary obligations in US
Dollars subject to fluctuations in the US Dollar to Chilean Peso exchange rate. If the December 31, 2002 exchange
rate of the Chilean Peso to the US Dollar were to change by 10%, Energy Holdings would record an after-tax $9
million foreign currency transaction gain or loss. Such gain or loss should be materially offset by gains or losses on
the Chilean Peso forward exchange contract hedging such exposure. See Note 12. Risk Management of the Notes.

With respect to any other monetary assets or liabilities subject to foreign currency risk, a 10% change in any
individual US Dollar to local currency exchange rate would not be material.

Commodity Contracts
Power and Energy Holdings

The availability and price of energy commodities are subject to fluctuations from factors such as weather,
environmental policies, changes in supply and demand, state and Federal regulatory policies and other events. To
reduce price risk caused by market fluctuations, Power and Energy Holdings enter into supply contracts and
derivative contracts, including forwards, futures, swaps and options with approved counterparties, to hedge their
respective anticipated supply and demand differential. These contracts, in conjunction with owned electric
generation capacity and demand obligations, make up the portfolio.

Power and Energy Holdings use a value-at-risk (VaR) model to assess the market risk of their respective
commodity businesses. This model includes fixed price sales commitments, owned generation, load requirements,
physical contracts and financial derivative instruments. VaR represents the potential gains or losses, under normal
market conditions, for instruments or portfolios due to changes in market factors, for a specified time period and
confidence level. Power and Energy Holdings estimate VaR across their respective commodity businesses.

Power
VaR Model

Power manages its exposure at the portfolio level. Its portfolio consists of owned generation, gas and electric
load-serving contracts, gas supply contracts and energy derivatives designed to manage the risk around the
differential between generation and load.
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The RMC established a VaR threshold of $50 million for a one-week (5 business days) holding period at a
95% (two-tailed) confidence level. The RMC will be notified if the VaR reaches $40 million and the portfolio will
be closely monitored. The risk is monitored by area of responsibility. The Board of Directors of PSEG is notified
if a VaR threshold of $75 million is reached.

The current modeling process and methodology has been reviewed by a third party consulting firm. This review
included analysis and comparison of Power’s current VaR process and methodology to other processes and
methodologies used in the energy industry. PSEG believes the evaluation indicates that Power’s methodology to
calculate VaR is reasonable.

The model is an augmented variance/covariance model adjusted for the delta of positions with a 95% two-tailed
confidence level for a one-week holding period. The model is augmented to incorporate, the non-log-normality of
energy-related commodity prices, especially emissions and capacity and the non-stationary nature of energy
volatility. The model also assumes no hedging activity throughout the holding period whereas Power actively
manages its portfolio.

As of December 31, 2002, VaR was approximately $7 million, compared to the December 31, 2001, level
of $18 million. Previous to 2002, Power’s load was considered an indefinite obligation; therefore, for consistency
purposes Power decided to model both the cost to serve its load obligation and the value of its generation assets
on a rolling 12-month basis. At present, Power’s load obligation is determined by the results of the annual BGS
auction. In February 2003, the BPU held two simultaneous auctions for load obligations covering overlapping time
periods. Two-thirds of New Jersey’s fixed-price BGS load was auctioned for the [0 months from August 2003
through May 2004 and the remaining one-third was auctioned for the 34 months from August 2003 through May
2006. The combined result is that all of New Jersey’s fixed-price BGS load is auctioned through May 2004, while
only one-third is auctioned for the 24 months from June 2004 through May 2006. To maintain an actionable VaR,
generation and load (based on an assumed success rate in the auction) are both modeled at 100% of their assumed
value through May 2004 and at one-third of the assumed value of each from June 2004 through May 2006.

Power’s VaR Associated with Generating Assets and Commodity Contracts

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 Total VaR
(Millions)
95% Confidence Level, Five-Day Holding Period, Two-Tailed:
Period End .. ..o $75
Average for the Period. ... e $18.1
High . o $33.8
5 $ 75
99% Confidence Level, One-Day Holding Period, Two-Tailed:
Period End .. ..o o $ 44
Average for the Period. ... ... ... oo $10.7
High. oo $19.9
LW $ 44
Energy Holdings
VaR Mode!

In general, Energy Holdings manages its commodity exposure through power purchase agreements. One
notable exception is its partial ownership of TIE, which owns two merchant energy plants that manage their risk
through short-term energy sales.

The model is a variance/covariance model with a two-tailed 95% confidence level for a one-week holding
period. Expected energy output and fuel usage aré modeled as forward obligations. The Electric Reliability Council
of Texas (ERCOT) system is a closed system and is less liquid than PJM. This makes estimates of volatility and
correlation less reliable.
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As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, VaR was approximately $4 million.

Energy Holdings’ VaR Associated with Generating Assets and Commedity Contracts

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 Total VaR
95% Confidence Level, Five-Day Holding Period, Two-Tailed: (Millions)
Period End ..o e $4.2
Average forthe Period............... i i $4.9
High . oo $8.1
oW $2.5
99% Confidence Level, One-Day Holding Period, Two-Tailed:

Period End ... $2.5
Average for the Period.............. ... $2.9
High. oo $4.8
LW L $1.5

Interest Rates

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal
course of business. PSEG’s, PSE&G, Power & Energy Holdings’ policy is to manage interest rate risk through the
use of fixed rate debt, floating rate debt, interest rate swaps and interest rate lock agreements. PSEG, PSE&G, Power
& Energy Holdings’ manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a targeted ratio of fixed and floating rate
debt. As of December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% change in market interest rates would result in a $1 million,
$4 million, $2 million, and $2 million, change in annual interest costs related to debt at PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% change in market
interest rates would result in a $8 million, $216 million, $122 million, and $50 million change in the fair value
of the debt of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings, respectively.

Debt and Equity Securities

PSEG

PSEG has approximately $2.1 billion invested in its pension plan. Although fluctuations in market prices of
securities within this portfolio do not directly affect PSEG’s earnings in the current period, changes in the value
of these investments could affect PSEG's future contributions to these plans, its financial position if the accumulated
benefit obligation under its pension plan exceeds the fair value of its pension funds and future earnings as PSEG
would earn a lower return on the fund balance and could be required to adjust its assumed rate of return.

Power

Power’s Nuclear Decommissioning Trust (NDT) fund is comprised of both fixed income and equity securities
totaling $766 million at December 31, 2002. The equity securities are independently marked-to-market each month
by the Trustee. As of December 31, 2002, the portfolio was comprised of approximately $445 million of equity
securities and approximately $321 million in fixed income securities. The fair market value of the NDT assets will
fluctuate depending on the performance of equity markets. As of December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% change
in the equity market would impact the value of Power’s equity securities by approximately $45 million.

Power uses duration to measure the interest rate sensitivity of the fixed income portfolio. Duration is a summary
statistic of the effective average maturity of the fixed income portfolio. Also, it is an essential tool in immunizing
portfolios from interest rate risk. The benchmark for the fixed income component of the NDT Fund is the Lehman
Brothers Aggregate Bond Index which currently has a duration of 3.79 years and a yield of 3.66%. The portfolio’s
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value will appreciate or depreciate by. the duration with a 1% change in interest rates. As of December 31, 2002,
a hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would result in a decline in the market value for the ﬁxed income portfolio
of approximately $12 million.

Energy Holdings

Resources has investments in equity securities and limited partnerships. Resources carries its investments in
equity securities at their approximate fair value as of the reporting date. Consequently, the carrying value of these
investments is affected by changes in the fair value of the underlying securities. Fair value is determined by adjusting
the market value of the securities for liquidity and market volatility factors, where appropriate.

As of December 31, 2002, Resources had investments in leveraged buyout funds of approximately $93 million,
of which $24 million was comprised of public securities with available market prices and $69 million was comprised
of non-publicly traded securities. The potential change in fair value resulting from a hypothetical 10% change in
quoted market prices of the publicly traded investments amounted to $2 million as of December 31, 2002.

Credit Risk

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings would incur as a result
of non-performance by counterparties pursuant to the terms of their contractual obligations. PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings have established credit policies that they believe significantly minimize credit risk. These
policies include an evaluation of potential counterparties’ financial condition (including credit rating), collateral
requirements under certain circumstances and the use of standardized agreements, which may allow for the netting
of positive and negative exposures assoctated with a single counterparty. '

Power

Counterparties expose Power to credit losses in the event of non-performance or non-payment. Power has a
credit management process which is used to assess, monitor and mitigate counterparty exposure for Power and its
subsidiaries. In the event of non-performance or non-payment by a major counterparty, there may be a material
adverse impact on Power and its subsidiaries’ financial condition, results of operations or net cash flows. As of
December 31, 2002 over 89% of the credit exposure (mark-to-market plus net receivables and payables, less cash
collateral) for Power’s trading operations was with investment grade counterparties. The majority of the credit
exposure with non-investment grade counterparties is with certian companies that supply fuel to Power. Therefore,
this exposure relates to the risk of a counterparty performing under its obligations rather than payment risk. As
of December 31, 2002, Power’s trading operations had over 177 active counterparties.

As aresult of the New Jersey BGS auction, Power contracted to provide energy to the direct suppliers of New Jersey
electric utilities, including PSE&G, commencing August 1, 2002. Subsequently certain bidders failed to meet the credit
standards required under the BGS auction process and a portion of the contracts with those bidders was reassigned to
Power. Therefore, for a limited portion of the New Jersey retail load, Power is a direct supplier to one utility, although
this utility is not PSE&G. Power sells electricity to nine direct supplier-counterparties that serve the load of the utilities,
and one utility directly. Four of these supplier-counterparties pay Power directly, and one of the four prepays its purchases.
The revenue from the remaining five counterparties is paid directly from the utilities that those suppliers serve, and the
related margin due to the counterparties is recorded as a liability and will be remitted to those counterparties separately.
These bilateral contracts are subject to credit risk. This risk is substantially higher than the risk that was associated with
potential nonpayment by PSE&G or any other electric distribution company (EDC) making direct payment under the
BGS contract which expired on July 31, 2002, since the EDCs are rate-regulated entities. This credit risk relates to the
ability of counterparties to meet their payment obligations for the power delivered under each BGS-related contract. Any
failure to collect these payments under the BGS-related contracts could have a material impact on Power’s resuits of
operations, cash flows and financial position. Power expects the credit risk and risk rmugatlon measures to be similar
under the BGS-related contracts commencing August 1, 2003.
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In December 2001, Enron Corp. (Enron) and its subsidiaries filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the
US Bankruptcy Code. Power had entered into a variety of energy trading contracts with Enron and its affiliates
as part of its energy trading activities. Enron has guaranteed the obligations of its subsidiaries. Power undertook
various measures to mitigate its exposure to Enron and its subsidiaries and other counterparties which could have
been affected by the Enron bankruptcy. As of December 31, 2002, Enron has claimed that Power owes Enron North
America approximately $52 million and has asserted that payment obligations of Enron Power Marketing to Power
in the amount of $14 million may not be offset against this amount. The parties have engaged in settlement
discussions. Power believes that it has valid claims and defenses against Enron and its subsidiaries, which it will
vigorously pursue. Based on these discussions, rulings in the bankruptey proceeding and its evaluations of its legal
rights and obligations, Power believes the net amount payable in this matter may approximate $30 million.

Energy Holdings

Leveraged Leases

Resources has credit risk related to its investments in leveraged leases, totaling $1.5 billion, which is net of
deferred taxes of $1.3 billion, as of December 31, 2002. These investments are significantly concentrated in the energy
related industry and have some exposure to the airline industry. Resources is the lessor of various aircraft to several
domestic and foreign airlines. Resources leases a Boeing B767 aircraft to United Airlines (UAL). In December 2002,
UAL filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. UAL has stated that it intends to retain B767 aircraft and use them
in place of the Boeing 747. UAL has an additional debt obligation of $53 million associated with this aircraft.
Resources will work constructively with UAL to keep the leveraged lease in place. However, if UAL is unable to
meet the lease requirements, Energy Holdings could realize an adverse impact to its Consolidated Statements of
Operations and net cash flows. The gross invested balance of this investment as of December 31, 2002 was $21 million.

Resources is the lessor of domestic generating facilities in several US energy markets. As a result of recent actions
of the rating agencies due to concerns over forward energy prices, the credit of some of the transaction lessees, or
ultimate guarantors of the lease obligations, was downgraded. As of December 31, 2002, 65% of counterparties in
the lease portfolio were rated investment grade by both S&P and Moody’s. Specifically, the lessees in the following
transactions were downgraded below investment grade during 2002 by these rating agencies. Resources’ investment
in such transactions was approximately $455 million, net of deferred taxes of $294 million as of December 31, 2002.

Resources leases 1,173 MW of coal-fired generation to Reliant Energy Mid Atlantic Power Holdings LLC
(REMA), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Reliant Resources Incorporated (RRI). The leased assets are the
Keystone, Conemaugh and Shawville generating facilities located in the PIM West market in Pennsylvania. In
addition to the leased assets, REMA also owns and operates another 2,830 MW located within PIM. REMA s
capitalized with over $1 billion of equity from RRI and has no debt obligations senior to the lease obligations. REMA
is currently rated B~ by S&P and B3 by Moody’s. As the lessor/equity participant in the lease, Resources is protected
with significant lease covenants that restrict the flow of dividends from REMA to its parent, and by over-
collateralization of REMA with an additional 2,830 MWs of non-leased assets, transfer of which is restricted by
the financing documents. Restrictive covenants include historical and forward cash flow coverage tests that prohibit
discretionary capital expenditures and dividend payments to the parent/lessee if stated minimum coverages are not
met, and similar cash flow restrictions if ratings are not maintained at stated levels. The covenants are designed
to maintain cash reserves in the transaction entity for the benefit of the non-recourse lenders and the lessor/equity
participants in the event of a market downturn or degradation in operating performance of the leased assets. The
lease capitalization includes approximately $578 million of non-recourse debt. Resources’ investment in the REMA
transaction was $128 million, net of deferred taxes of $92 million as of December 31, 2002.

Resources is the lessor of the Collins facility to Midwest Generation LLC (Midwest), an indirect subsidiary
of Edison Mission Energy (EME). Collins is comprised of 2,698 MWs of oil and natural gas-fired assets located
in the Mid-American Interconnected Network {MAIN) power market located in the mid-western region of the US.
Midwest has a contract with Exelon to supply capacity and energy for 1,078 MWs for Collins through December
2003 with an option to extend. Both Midwest and EME are rated BB- by S&P and Ba3 by Moody’s. In addition
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to the leased assets, Midwest owns and operates an additional 4,459 MWs of generation assets, excluding the
Powerton and Joliet generating stations discussed below. The restrictive covenants protecting Resources are similar
to those noted above in the REMA transaction. Midwest has a debt obligation of approximately $1.5 billion at a
holding company above Midwest. The Collins lease is pari-passu with this debt obligation. The lease capitalization
includes approximately $774 million of non-recourse debt. Resources’ investment in the Collins facility was §107
million, net of deferred taxes of $78 million as of December 31, 2002.

Resources also leases the Powerton and Joliet generating stations located in the MAIN market to Midwest.
Both Powerton and Joliet are coal-fired stations comprising 2,896 MWs of gross generating capacity. The lease
obligations are guaranteed by EME. The guarantee contains certain restrictive covenants including, but not limited
to, additional investment, liens and sales of non-leased collateral. In addition, EME is required to maintain a
minimum net worth equal to $400 million plus cumulative, consolidated net income earned by it and its subsidiaries
since 1992 (without subtracting losses). The lease capitalization includes approximately $733 million of non-
recourse debt. Resources’ investment in the Powerton and Joliet transaction was $90 million, net of deferred taxes
of $80 million as of December 31, 2002.

Resources is the lessor of the 370 MW coal-fired Danskammer plant to Dynegy Danskammer LLC
(Danskammer) and the 1,200 MW natura) gas/oil fired Roseton plant to Dynegy Roseton LLC (Roseton). Both
Danskammer and Roseton are indirect subsidiaries of Dynegy Holdings Inc. (DHI). The lease obligations are
guaranteed by DHI which is currently rated B by S&P and Caa2 by Moody’s. The lease capitalization includes
approximately $800 million of non-recourse debt. Resources’ investment in the Danskammer and Roseton
transaction was $129 million, net of deferred taxes of $43 million as of December 31, 2002. The non-recourse debt
and Resources’ equity investment in this transaction represented the full acquisition price of the underlying plants.

In the domestic lease transactions described above, Resources has protected its equity investment by providing
for the right to assume the debt obligation at its discretion in the event of default by the lessee with the condition
that the lease debt is rated at least equal to the rating that existed at the date of the original transaction. If Resources
were pursuing a debt assumption, it would first seek to renegotiate all relevant terms of the agreement with the
lenders. Debt assumption normally only would occur if an appraisal of the leased property yielded a value that
exceeds the present value of the debt outstanding. Should Resources ever directly assume a debt obligation, the
fair value of the underlying asset and the associated debt would be recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
instead of the net equity investment in the lease. As of December 31, 2002, Resources determined that the
collectibility of the minimum lease payments under its leveraged lease investments is still reasonably predictable
and therefore continues to account for these investments as leveraged leases.

Other

In 2000, Global withdrew from its interest in the Eagle Point Cogeneration Partnership (EPCP) with El Paso
Corp. in exchange for a series of contingent payments over five years. These payments are expected to total
$290 million, subject to certain subsequent annual facility performance factors. When such factors are met on an
annual basis the earnings are recorded and the payments are ordinarily received in the same period. The payments
to date have been received in accordance with the terms of the agreement, including a payment of $44 million in
January 2003. Currently under the withdrawal agreement Global is owed in a form of a note from EPCP
approximately $81 million, with the last payment anticipated in January 2005. In the event that EPCP operating
cash flows are insufficient to make payment, mandatory capital contributions are required from the partners to pay
the note 10 PSEG Global as amounts become due. Additional covenants in the note security package include
mandatory restrictions on cash distributions to the partners and performance guaranties of EPCP’s obligations are
required. El Paso Corp indirectly owns in excess of 85% of the partnership interests of EPCP. In February 2003,
S&P downgraded El Paso Corp long-term corporate credit rating to B+ from BB and Moody’s reduced El Paso
Corp. debt rating to Caal from Ba2. If El Paso Corp or its subsidiaries or affiliates is required to fulfill an obligation
in accordance with the terms of the agreement and is unable to perform, the impact would adversely effect Energy
Holdings’ statements of operations and net cash flows in the years 2004 and 2005.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

PSEG’s management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of its consolidated financial
statements and related notes. The consolidated financial statements and related notes are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. The financial statements reflect estimates based upon the judgment of
management where appropriate. Management believes that the consolidated financial statements and related notes present
fairly PSEG’s financial position and results of operations. Information.in other parts of this Annual Report is also the
responsibility of management and is consistent with these consolidated financial statements and related notes.

The firm of Deloitte & Touche LLF, independent auditors, is engaged to audit PSEG’s consolidated financial
statements and related notes and issue a report thereon. Deloitte & Touche’s audit is conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards. Management has made available to Deloitte & Touche all of PSEG’s financial
records and related data, as well as the minutes of directors’ meetings. Furthermore, management believes that all
representations made to Deloitte & Touche during its audit were valid and appropriate.

Management has established and maintains a system of internal accounting controls to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
authorization and recorded properly for the prevention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting, so as to maintain
the integrity and reliability of the financial statements. The system is designed to permit preparation of consolidated
financial statements and related notes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that the costs of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed the related
benefits. Management believes the effectiveness of this system is enhanced by an ongoing program of continuous
and selective training of employees. In addition, management has communicated to all employees its policies on
business conduct, safeguarding assets and internal controls. Management also maintains a system of disclosure
controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that PSEG is able to collect, process and disclose, within
the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission, the information required to be disclosed in
reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

The Internal Auditing Department of Services conducts audits and appraisals of accounting and other
operations of PSEG and its subsidiaries and evaluates the effectiveness of cost and other controls and, where
appropriate, recommends to management improvements thereto. Management considers the internal auditors’ and
Deloitte & Touche’s recommendations concerning PSEG’s system of internal accounting controls and has taken
actions that, in its opinion, are cost-effective in the circumstances to respond appropriately to these
recommendations. Management believes that, as of December 31, 2002, PSEG’s system of internal accounting
controls was adequate to accomplish the objectives discussed herein.

The Board of Directors carries out its responsibility of financial overview through its Audit Committee, which
presently consists of six directors who are not PSEG employees or any employees of its affiliates. The Audit
Committee meets periodically with management as well as with representatives of the internal auditors and Deloitte
& Touche. The Audit Committee reviews the work of each to ensure that its respective responsibilities are being
carried out and discusses related matters. Both the internal auditors and Deloitte & Touche periodically meet alone
with the Audit Committee and have free access to the Audit Committee and its individual members at all times.

E. JaMmEs FErLAND THomas M. O'FLYNN
Chairman of the Board, Executive Vice President and
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

PaTRICIA A. RADO
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

February 25, 2003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Public Service Enterprise Group Incorperated:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Public Service Enterprise Group Incorporated and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, common stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2001, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”, as amended.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2002, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 7, 2003

72



PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISE GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Millions, except for Share Data)

OPERATING REVENUES . ...... .. ... .. ... ... ... ...

OPERATING EXPENSES
Energy Costs . .. ... . i
Operation and Maintenance . .. ... .............c..0....
Write-down of Project Investments . .. .................
Depreciation and Amortization . . .....................
Taxes Other Than Income Taxes . . ... .................

Interest Expense . . . ... ... .. .. ... ...
Preferred Securities Dividends . .. ....................

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES, DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF A CHANGE
IN ACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLE .. ....................

Income Taxes ......... ... .. . . .. .. .

INCOME BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLE . ... .. . e
Loss from Discontinued Operations, net of tax of $9, $8 and $5

in 2002, 2001 and 2000,respectively (including $35 Loss on
Disposal, net of tax of $18 in 2002) . ................

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF A CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE . ... ....................

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax
of $66 and $8 in 2002 and 2001, respectively ............

NETINCOME .. ... ... .. . i

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING (000s) . ......... .. ... . ... . .....

EARNINGS PER SHARE (BASIC AND DILUTED):

INCOME BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLE ... .. ... . .. . . e i

Loss from Discontinued Operations, net of tax (inciuding Loss on
Disposal, netof tax) . ... ... ... ... ... .

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax

NETINCOME . ... . ... . . e

DIVIDENDS PAID PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK . . . ...

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For The Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
$ 8390 $ 7,055 $ 6521
3,769 2,674 2,423
1,896 1,841 1,706
497 7 —
571 496 350
131 121 135
6,864 5,139 4,614
1,526 1,916 1,907
57 50 33
79 (15) (3
(783) (722) (571)
&) (72) (94)
664 1,157 1,272
(248) (381) (496)
416 776 776
(51 (15) (12)
365 761 764
(120) 9 —
$ 245 $ 770 $ 764
208,813 208,226 215,121
$ 199 $ 373 % 361
(0.24) (0.07) (0.06)
(0.58) 0.04 _
$ 117 $ 370 $ 355
$ 216 $ 216 $ 216
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PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISE GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS
(Millions)

December 31,
2002 . 2601

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 165 $ 167

Accounts Receivable 1,404 © 1,032

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts _ (34) (40)
Unbilled Electric and Gas Revenues 275 . 291

. ‘ 412 506

Materials and Supplies : 208 175

Energy Trading Contracts 179 148

Restricted Cash 32 12

Assets Held for Sale ' : 83

Current Assets of Discontinued Operations 107

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Net Property, Plant.and Equipment

NONCURRENT ASSETS -
RegUIAtory ASSBIS ...ttt et e 4,992 5,242

Long-Term INVESUMENTS .. ......voutiit ettt e eanns 4,581 4,768
Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds .....................coo, ~ 766 817
Other Special Funds ....... ... 72 222
GOOAWIIL ...t e 452 . 569
Energy Trading Contracts ............ooiiiiiiiiiaiinaniiiiiii e, ‘ ‘ 22 29
Other Intangibles ... ... . i 206 63
Other ......o.coovviiiiiiiieiiiiiii PRSI 236 246
Total NONCUITENT ASSEIS ..\ttt ettt ettt e i en s 11,327 11,956
TOTAL ASSETS ...... e e $25,742 $25,156

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISE GROUP INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION

(Milliens)
December 31,
2002 2001
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt Due Within One Year ..., $ 749 $ 1,186
Commercial Paper and Loans ............... i 762 1,337
Accounts Payable ....... .. . 1,115 871
Energy Trading Contracts ..., 123 279
AcCTued TaXeS .ttt 229 243
Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operations ..................oooiien... 83 251
111 1= o U 755 379
Total Current Liabilities ............ .. e, 3,816 4,546
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credits (ITC) ................. 2,924 3,205
Regulatory Liabilities ..o 252 368
Nuclear Decommissioning .............couiviuiariiiiuineeiaaanaenaann. 766 817
OPEB 0SS it e e 501 476
Accrued Pension CostS ....ovvviii i e 336 42
Costof Removal ... 131 146
10 13T A 638 467
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ........... ... ... i, 5,548 5,521
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (See Note 13)
CAPITALIZATION :
LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-Term Debt . ...t e 7,116 6,437
Securitization Debt ... ... .. 2,222 2,351
Project Level, Non-Recourse Debt ..., 1,653 1,404
Total Long-Term Debt ..... ..ot i 10,991 10,192
SUBSIDIARIES’ PREFERRED SECURITIES
Preferred Stock Without Mandatory Redemption .......................... 80 80
Preferred Stock With Mandatory Redemption ................. ..., 460 —
Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in Subordinated Debentures ......... 860 680
Total Subsidiaries’ Preferred Securities ........vvvvrvivniiiinirennenes 1,400 760
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common Stock, issued; 2002—251,385,937 shares
2001—231,957,608 shares ..........ccoviiiriiiiieiiiiiii i, 4,056 3,599
Treasury Stock, at cost; 2002 and 2001—26,118,590 shares ............... (981) (981)
Retained Earnings ... ... 1,601 1.809
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss ..........coooiiiiiiiiii ., (689) (290)
Total Common Stockholders” Equity ...t 3,987 4,137
Total Capitalization ........ .. coiiiiii i i 16,378 15,089
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION ..............cooiviviin.., $25,742 $25,156

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISE GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INEUINCOMIE & vttt ettt e e et e e et e e e e e e e et e e e e e $ 245 $ 770 § 764
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:
Write-down of Project Investments . ............... ... 497 7 —
Loss on Disposal of Discontinued Operations, net of tax ......... ... . i 35 2 —
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, netoftax .................. ... ... ........ 120 9 —
Depreciation and AmoOrtization . ............ ... 571 496 350
Amortization of Nuclear Fuel .. . ... . e 89 101 96
Provision for Deferred Income Taxes (Other than Leases) and ITC ........ ... ... .. ... coiiiiinann. 117) (118) 5)
Non-Cash Employee Benefit Plan Costs ........ .. .. i e 193 158 147
Leveraged Lease Income, Adjusted for Rents Received .............. .. ... . . ..coiiini.. (45) 6) 74
Undistributed Earnings from Affiliates ........ .. 59) (111) (28)
Foreign Currency Transaction Loss (Gain) ........... ... ... ... . i, 70 9 3)
Unrealized (Gains) Losses on Energy Contracts and Other Derivatives ........... ..ot (36) 22 (13)
(Under) Over Recovery of Electric Energy Costs (BGS and NTC) and MTC .. .................... ... (€8] 110 116
(Under) Over Recovery of Gas COStS . ... ... i e 41) (143) 11
Other Non-Cash Charges (Credits) ... ...ttt e 54 (68) (20)
Net Change in Certain Current Assets and Liabilities ........ ... .. ... . .. . ... e, 279 183 (170)
Employee Benefit Plan Funding and Related Payments . ......... ... .. ... ... ... ....ciiiiniinn. (308) (210) (35)
Proceeds from the Withdrawal of Partnership Interests and Other Distributions ........................ 63 124 51
[ 1511 PN @8 (88) (145)
Net Cash Provided By Operating ACHVItIES ... ... ... e 1,528 1,229 1,190
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment .. ....... ... ... (1,814) 2,111 (815)
Investments in Joint Ventures, Partnerships and Capital Leases .......... .. ... ... . ... (222) (596) (821)
Proceeds from the Sale of Investments and Return of Capital from Partnerships ................... .. .... 380 132 177
Acquisitions, net of Cash Provided ....... ... . .. . (289) (832) (88)
OBNET e e e (42) (195) 84
Net Cash Used In Investing ACtVItIES .. ... ... ... et (1,987) (3,602) (1,631)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Short-Term Debt . ... .. (552) (1,511) 929
Issuance of Long-Term Debt ... ... 1,542 6,509 1,200
Issuance of Preferred Securities ... ... ... e 180 — —
Issuance of Participating Units .. ... .. . . e e 460 — —
Issuance of Common StOCK . .. ..ot e e 536 — —
Deferred Issuance CostS . ... oottt e e e e e (44) (228) (39)
Redemptions of Long-Term Debt ....... .. ... ... ... ... ............ S PP (1,212) (1,292) (1,052)
Redemptions of Preferred Securities ... ... ... e — (448) —
Purchase of Treasury StoCK . ... .o i e — 91) (298)
Cash Dividends Paid on Common StOCK ... .. it e e (456) (448) (464)
L0 1 1 T-T PP 5 (47) 2
Net Cash Provided By Financing ACHVILIES ... ... . . i i e e 459 2,444 278
Effect of Exhange Rate Change ... ... . ... e (2) — —
Net Change In Cash And Cash Equivalents . ....... ... . e e 2) 71 (163)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Period ...... ... ... ... ... . i i 167 96 259
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Perlod .. .. ... . . i e e e $ 165 $ 167 3 96
Income Taxes Paid ... ... e $ 145 $ 87 $ 485
Interest Paid . ... ..o e $ 843 $ 713 $ 548
Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities:
Property, Plant and Equipment Assumed from Acquisitions .......... ... ... . i i $ 538 $ 749 $ 213
Debt Assumed from ACQUISTHONS ... ..ttt et e 5 — $ 256 $ 161
Reduction in Equity and Increase in Debt From Issuance of Participating Units ........................... $ 54 5 — 5 —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISE GROUP INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.

(Millions)
Accumulated
Common Treasury Other
Stock Stock Retained  Comprehensive
Shs. Amount Shs. Amount Earnings Income (Loss) Total
Balance as of January 1, 2000 ... .. ... ... ... ... .. 232 $3,604 (16} $(597) $1,193 $(204) $3,996
Net INCOME .« . vt e e e — — —_ — 764 — 764
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax:
Currency Translation Adjustment, net of tax of $(0) ............. ... — — — — — ) (2)
Other Comprehensive Loss .. ......... ... .. . i — — — — — — 2)
Comprehensive Income . .......... ... — — — — — — 762
Cash Dividends on Common Stock .......... . — — — — (464) — (464)
Purchase of Treasury Stock ....... ... ... . ... = — (& (298) — — (298)
Balance as of December 31,2000 ........... . ... .. ... ... 232 $3,604 (24) $(895) $1,493 $(206) $3.,996
NetIncome . ...........coovninnn. e — — — — 770 — 770
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax:
Currency Translation Adjustment, net of tax $(12) ...... e — — -— — — (34) 34)
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments, net of tax $(31) ... .. — — — — — (57) (57)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax
SLA) —— — — — e (15) 15
Reclassification Adjustments for Net Amounts included in net income,
netof tax of $10 . . e — — — — — 26 26
Pension Adjustments, netof tax $(1) ........... ... .. .. ... — — — — — (2) 2)
Change in Fair Value of Equity Investments, net of tax $(1) ......... — — — — — 2) (2)
Other Comprehensive LOSS ...t i — — — — — — (84)
Comprehensive Income . ............ ..o — — — — — — 686
Cash Dividends on Common Stock . ... ..o — —_ — — (449) — (449)
Purchase of Treasury Stock .. ....... .. ... ... ... — — ) 92) — — 92)
OtheT oo e e = (5) — 6 (5) — (4)
Balance as of December 31,2001 ... ... . ... .. i 232 $3,599 (26) $(981) $1,809 $(290) $4,137
Net INCOME . o .\ e e e e e — — — — 245 — 245
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of_ tax: )
Currency Translation Adjustment, net of tax $(63) ................. — — — —_— — (117) (17
Reclassification Adjustment for Losses Included in Net Income ...... — — — — —_ 68 68
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments, net of tax $(38) ..... — — —_ — — (67) (1)
Reclassification Adjustments for Net Amounts included in Net Income,
netof tax of $10 ... .. . e — _ — — — 15 15
Minimum Pension Liability, net of tax $(204) ..................... — — — — — (297) 297
Change in Fair Value of Equity Investments ...................... — —_ — — — (€)) ) (1)
Other Comprehensive Loss ... ' — — —_ — — — (399)
Comprehensive InCOME .. ... .. e — — — — — — (154)
Cash Dividends on Common Stock ........... .. i — — — — (456) —_ (456)
Issuance of EQUItY . ... ... o i 19 536 — — — — 536
Tssuance Costs and Other . ... o i i e = (79) — — 3 — (76)
Balance as of December 31,2002 . ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... 251 $4,056 (26) $(981) $1,601 $(689) $3,987
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

PSEG

PSEG has four principal direct wholly-owned subsidiaries: PSE&G, Power, Energy Holdings and PSEG
Services Corporation (Services).

PSE&G

PSE&G is an operating public utility providing electric and gas service in certain areas within the State of New
Jersey. Following the transfer of its generation-related assets and liabilities to Power in August 2000 and gas supply
business to Power in May 2002, PSE&G continues to own and operate its transmission and distribution business.

Power

Power is a multi-regional wholesale energy supply business that uses energy trading to optimize the value of
its portfolio of electric generating and gas capacity and its supply obligations. Power has three principal direct
wholly-owned subsidiaries: PSEG Nuclear LLC (Nuclear), PSEG Fossil LL.C (Fossil) and PSEG Energy Resources
& Trade LLC (ER&T). Power and its subsidiaries were initially established to acquire, own and operate the electric
generation-related business of PSE&G pursuant to the Final Decision and Order (Final Order) issued by the New
Jersey Board of Public Utilities (BPU) under the New Jersey Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act (Energy
Competition Act) discussed below. Power also has a finance company subsidiary, PSEG Power Capital Investment
Co. (Power Capital), which provides certain financing for Power’s subsidiaries.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings is the parent of PSEG Global Inc. (Global), which invests and participates in the development
and operation of international and domestic projects in the generation and distribution of energy, which include
cogeneration and independent power production facilities and electric distribution companies; PSEG Resources
LLC (Resources), which makes investments primarily in energy-related leveraged leases; PSEG Energy
Technologies Inc. (Energy Technologies), which provides energy-related services and construction to industrial and
commercial customers; Enterprise Group Development Corporation (EGDC), a commercial real estate property
management business; PSEG Capital Corporation (PSEG Capital), which serves as a financing vehicle for Energy
Holdings’ subsidiaries, and borrows on the basis of a minimum net worth maintenance agreement with PSEG; and
Enterprise Capital Funding Corporation (Funding), which is currently inactive and formerly served as the financing
vehicle on the basis of Energy Holdings’ consolidated financial position. EGDC has been conducting a controlled
exit from the real estate business since 1993. The businesses of Energy Technologies are presented as discontinued
operations and are expected to be sold in 2003. PSEG Capital’s final maturity is in 2003, at which point it will
no longer be utilized.

Energy Holdings, a New Jersey limited liability company, is the successor to PSEG Energy Holdings Inc.
pursuant to a merger consummated in October 2002 which changed the legal form of the business from a corporation
to a limited liability company. Energy Holdings succeeded to all the assets and liabilities of PSEG Energy Holdings
Inc. in accordance with the New Jersey Limited Liability Company Act. Energy Holdings has succeeded to PSEG
Energy Holdings Inc.’s reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As part of
the Energy Holdings reorganization, PSEG Resources Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Resources, a
newly formed New Jersey limited liability company. Resources is wholly-owned by Energy Holdings. This
reorganization was completed to further improve efficiencies within PSEG’s tax reporting process.

Other

Services provides management and administrative services such as accounting, legal, communications, human
resources, information technology, treasury and financial, investor relations, stockholder services and risk
management to PSEG and its subsidiaries. Services charges PSEG and its subsidiaries for the cost of work performed
and services provided by it.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG’s, PSE&G’s, Power’s and Energy Holdings’ consolidated financial statements include their respective
accounts and those of their respective subsidiaries. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings and their respective
subsidiaries consolidate those entities in which they have a controlling interest. Those entities in which PSEG,
PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings and their respective subsidiaries do not have a controlling interest are being
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. For investments in which significant influence does not exist,
the cost method of accounting is applied. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated
in consolidation. No gains or losses are recorded on any intercompany transactions.

PSE&G and Power

In addition, Power and PSE&G each has undivided interests in certain jointly owned facilities. Power and
PSE&G are responsible to pay for their respective ownership share of additional construction costs, fuel inventory
purchases and operating expenses. All revenues and expenses related to these facilities are consolidated at their
respective pro-rata ownership share in the appropriate revenue and expense categories on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Accounting for the Effects of Regulation

PSE&G

PSE&G prepares its financial statements in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Standards
(SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (SFAS 71). In general, SFAS 71
recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the economic effects of regulation. As a
result, a regulated utility is required to defer the recognition of costs (a regulatory asset) or the recognition of
obligations (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through the rate-making process, there will be a
corresponding increase or decrease in future rates. Accordingly, PSE&G has deferred certain costs and recoveries,
which will be amortized over various future periods. To the extent that collection of such costs or payment of
liabilities is no longer probable as a result of changes in regulation and/or PSE&G’s competitive position, the
associated regulatory asset or liability is charged or credited to income. PSE&G’s transmission and distribution
business continues to meet the requirements for application of SFAS 71.

Derivative Financial Instruments

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings use derivative financial instruments to manage risk from changes
in interest rates, congestion credits, emission credits, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates,
pursuant to its business plans and prudent practices.

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings recognize all derivative instruments on the balance sheet at their
fair value. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective as, and that is-designated and qualifies
as, a-fair-value hedge (including foreign currency fair-value hedges), along with changes of the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded in current-period earnings. Changes
in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective as and that is designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge
(including foreign currency cash flow hedges), are recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) until earnings
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

are affected by the variability of cash flows of the hedged transaction. Any hedge ineffectiveness is included in
current-period earnings. In certain circumstances, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and/or Energy Holdings enter into
derivative contracts and do not designate them as fair value or cash flow hedges, in such cases, changes in fair value
are recorded in earnings.

Power

Additionally, Power has certain energy trading contracts that do not meet the definition of a derivative. Those
contracts are also carried at fair market value with changes recorded in current-period earnings. Upon adoption of
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 02-3, “Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk
Management Activities” (EITF 02-3) on January 1, 2003, Power will record these contracts at historical cost. See
Note 2. New Accounting Standards.

For additional information regarding Derivative Financial Instruments, see Note 12. Risk Management.
Revenue Recognition

PSE&G

PSE&G’s Operating Revenues are recorded based on services rendered to customers during each accounting
period. PSE&G records unbilled revenues for the estimated amount customers will be billed for services rendered
from the time meters were last read to the end of the respective accounting period. The unbilled revenue is estimated
each month based on weather factors, line losses and unaccounted for gas factors, estimated customer usage by class
and applicable customer rates based on regression analyses reflecting significant historical trends and experience.

Power

The majority of Power’s revenues relate to the Basic Generation Service (BGS), Basic Gas Supply Service
(BGSS) and other bilateral contracts which are accounted for on the accrual basis, as the energy is delivered. Power
also records revenues and energy costs for physical energy delivered to and received from the power pool. Power
also records margins from energy trading on a net basis as revenues pursuant to EITF 02-3 and SFAS 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133). See Note 12. Risk Management for
further discussion.

Energy Holdings

The majority of Resources’ revenues relate to its investments in leveraged leases and are accounted for under
SFAS 13 “Accounting for Leases” (SFAS 13). Income on leveraged leases is recognized by a method which
produces a constant rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the lease, net of the related deferred tax
liability, in the years in which the net investment is positive. Any gains or losses incurred as a result of a lease
termination are recorded as revenues as these events occur in the ordinary course of business of managing the
investment portfolio. In accordance with specialized accounting practices, Resources records revenue from the
changes in share prices of publicly-traded equity securities held within its leveraged buyout funds. See Note 8. Long-
Term Investments for further discussion.

Global records revenues from its investments in generation and distribution facilities. Certain of Global’s
investments are majority owned and controlled by Global and the revenues from these projects are recorded as
Global’s revenues. Other investments are less than majority owned and are accounted for under the equity or cost
methods as appropriate. Revenues for many of these investments are estimated on a monthly basis and trued up
to actual results in the next accounting month. Gains or losses incurred as a result of exiting one of these businesses
are typically recorded as a component of Operating Income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Depreciatior and Amortization

PSE&G

PSE&G calculates depreciation under the straight-line method based on estimated average remaining lives of
the several classes of depreciable property. These estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis and necessary
adjustments are made as approved by the BPU. The depreciation rate stated as a percentage of original cost of
depreciable property was 3.37% for 2002, 3.32% for 2001 and 3.52% for 2000.

Power

Power calculates depreciation on generation-related assets based on the assets’ estimated useful lives
determined based on planned operations. The estimated useful lives are from 3 years to 20 years for general plant.
The estimated useful lives for buildings and generating stations are as follows:

Class of Property Estimated Useful Life
Fossil Production.................. 30-55 years
Nuclear Generation................ 30-40 years
Pumped Storage ................... 45 years

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings calculates depreciation on property, plant and equipment under the straight-line method with
estimated useful lives from 3 years to 40 years.

Taxes Other than Income Taxes

PSE&G

Taxes Other than Income Taxes is comprised of the transitional energy facilities assessment (TEFA). TEFA
is collected from PSE&G customers and presented gross on PSE&G’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFDC) and Interest Capitalized During Construction
(IDC)

PSE&G

AFDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance the construction of new utility assets under
the guidance of SFAS 71. The amount of AFDC capitalized was reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations as a reduction of interest charges. The rates used for calculating AFDC in 2002, 2001, and 2000 were
8.80%, 6.71%, and 6.45%, respectively. In 2002, 2001, and 2000, PSE&G’s AFDC amounted to $1 million,
$2 million, and $1 million, respectively.

Power and Energy Holdings

IDC represents the cost of debt used to finance the construction of non-utility facilities. The amount of IDC
capitalized is reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a reduction of interest charges. Power’s
weighted average rates used for calculating IDC in 2002, 2001 and 2000 were 7.01%, 7.98% and 9.98%,
respectively. In 2002, 2001, and 2000, Power’s IDC amounted to $95 million, $63 million, and $14 million,
respectively. Energy Holdings’ weighted average rates used for calculating IDC in 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
9.06%, 8.05% and 7.93%, respectively. In 2002, 2001, and 2000, Energy Holdings’ IDC amounted to $13 million,
$16 million, and $21 million, respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW 81




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal income tax return and income taxes are allocated to
PSEG’s subsidiaries based on the taxable income or loss of each subsidiary. Investment tax credits were deferred
in prior years and are being amortized over the useful lives of the related property.

Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions

Energy Holdings

Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the year. Transaction gains and losses that
arise from exchange rate fluctuations on normal operating transactions denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency are included in earnings as incurred.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US Dollars at current exchange rates.
Resulting translation adjustments are reflected in OCI, net of taxes, as a separate component of member’s/
stockholders’ equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings
Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of working funds and highly liquid marketable securities
(commercial paper and money market funds) with an original maturity of three months or less.

Materials and Supplies and Fuel

PSE&G

PSE&G’s materials and supplies are carried at average cost in accordance with rate-based regulation.

Power and Energy Holdings

The carrying value of the materials and supplies and fuel for Power and Energy Holdings is valued at lower
of cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment

PSE&G

PSE&G’s additions to plant, property and equipment and replacements that are either retirement units or
property record units are capitalized at original cost. The cost of maintenance, repair and replacement of minor
items of property is charged to appropriate expense accounts as incurred. At the time units of depreciable property
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the original cost, adjusted for net salvage value, is charged to accumulated
depreciation.

Power and Energy Holdings

Power and Energy Holdings only capitalize costs which increase the capacity or extend the life of an existing
asset, represent a newly acquired or constructed asset or represent the replacement of a retired asset. The cost of
maintenance, repair and replacement of minor items of property is charged to appropriate expense accounts as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Environmental costs are capitalized if the costs mitigate or prevent future environmental contamination or if the costs
improve existing assets’ environmental safety or efficiency. All other environmental expenditures are expensed.

Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt and Debt Expense

PSE&G

PSE&G’s bond issuance costs and associated premiums and discounts are generally amortized over the life
of the debt issuance. In accordance with New Jersey Board of Public Utility (BPU) and Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) regulations, PSE&G’s costs to reacquire debt are deferred and amortized over the remaining
original life of the retired debt. When refinancing debt, the unamortized portion of the original debt issuance costs
of the debt being retired must be amortized over the life of the replacement debt. Gains and losses on reacquired
debt associated with PSE&G’s regulated operations will continue to be deferred and amortized to interest expense
over the period approved for ratemaking purposes.

Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds

Power

Funds in Power’s Nuclear Decommissioning Trust are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of the
trust funds are also reflected in the accrued liability for nuclear decommissioning. See Note 2. New Accounting
Standards for a discussion of SFAS 143.

Investments in Corporate Joint Ventures and Partnerships

Energy Holdings

Global’s and Resources’ interests in active joint ventures and partnerships are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting where their respective ownership interests are 50% or less and significant influence over joint
venture or partnership operating and management decisions exists. For investments in which significant influence
does not exist, the cost method of accounting is applied. Interest is capitalized on investments during the construction
and development of qualifying assets.

Resources carries its partnership investments in certain venture capital and leveraged buyout funds investing
in securities at fair value where market quotations and an established liquid market of underlying securities in the
portfolio are available. Fair value is determined based on the review of market price and volume data in conjunction
with PSEG’s invested liquid position in such securities. Changes in fair value are recorded in Operating Revenues
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Goodwill

PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings record the cost in excess of fair value of net assets (including tax attributes)
of companies acquired in purchase business transactions as goodwill.

PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings annually evaluate the recoverability of goodwill by estimating the fair
value of the businesses to which goodwill relates. PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings typically determine fair value
by estimating the future discounted cash flows. The discount rate used in determining discounted cash flows is a
rate corresponding to the cost of capital of the business to which the goodwill relates. Estimated cash flows are
then determined by disaggregating PSEG’s, Power’s and Energy Holdings’ respective business segments to an
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

operational and organizational level for which meaningful identifiable cash flows can be determined. When
estimated future discounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the net assets (tangible or identifiable
intangibles) and related goodwill, impairment losses of goodwill are charged to operations. Impairment losses,
limited to the carrying value of goodwill, represent the excess sum of the fair value of the net assets (tangible or
identifiable intangibles) and goodwill over the discounted cash flows of the business being evaluated. [n determining
the estimated future cash flows, PSEG, Power and Energy Holdings consider current and projected future levels
of income, as well as business trends, prospects and economic conditions.

For a discussion of business combinations and goodwill, see Note 2. New Accounting Standards and Note 9.
Purchase Business Combinations/Asset Acquisitions.

Capital Leases as Lessor

Energy Holdings

Resources, as lessor, leases property and equipment, through leveraged leases, with terms ranging from 4 to
45 years. The lease investments are recorded on a net basis by totaling the lease rents receivable over the lease
term and adding the residual value, if any, less unearned income and deferred taxes to be recognized over the lease
term. Leveraged leases are recorded net of non-recourse debt.

Deferred Project Costs

Power and Energy Holdings

Power and Energy Holdings capitalize all direct external and direct incremental internal costs related to project
development once a project reaches certain milestones. Once the project reaches financial closing, the deferred project
balance is transferred to the investment account. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives of
the related project assets. Such amortization commences upon the date of commercial operation. Development costs
related to unsuccessful projects are charged to expense. Deferred project costs are recorded in Other Assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Use of Estimates

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and
assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate
to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual
results may differ from estimated amounts.

Reclassifications
PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings
Certain reclassifications of amounts reported in prior periods have been made to conform with the current

presentation.

Note 2. New Accounting Standards

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142)
PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings '

On January 1, 2002, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 142. Under this standard,
PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings were required to complete an impairment analysis of goodwill before
June 30, 2002 and record any required impairment retroactive to January 1, 2002. Under SFAS 142, goodwill is
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Note 2. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

considered a nonamortizable asset and is subject to an annual review for impairment and an interim review when
certain events or changes in circumstances occur. The effect of no longer amortizing goodwill on an annual basis
was not material to PSEG’s, PSE&G’s or Power’s financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

In addition to goodwill, PSEG has consolidated intangible assets related to its defined benefit pension plans,
which is not subject to amortization for Power’s emissions allowances and for various access rights at Power’s
Albany station. PSEG’s total intangible assets were $206 million, including $114 million, $52 million and
$40 million related to defined benefit plans, emissions allowances and various access rights, respectively, as of
December 31, 2002. )

Power and Energy Holdings

Power and Energy Holdings evaluated the recoverability of the recorded amount of goodwill based on certain
operating and financial factors. Such impairment testing included discounted cash flow tests which require broad
assumptions and significant judgment to be exercised by management.

Energy Holdings

During the second quarter of 2002, Energy Holdings finalized its evaluation of the effect of SFAS 142 on the
recorded amount of goodwill. The total amount of goodwill impairments was $120 million, net of tax of $66 million
and was comprised of $36 million (after-tax) at Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de Entre Rios S.A.
(EDEERSA), an Argentine distribution company, $34 million (after-tax) at Rio Grande Energia (RGE), a Brazilian
distribution company of which Global owns 32%, $32 million (after-tax) at Energy Technologies and $18 million
(after-tax) at Tanir Bavi, a generating facility in India, which was 74% owned by Global. All of the goodwill related
to these companies, other than RGE, was fully impaired.

As of December 31, 2002, the remaining carrying value of Energy Holdings’ goodwill was $436 million, of
which $430 million was recorded in connection with Global’s acquisitions of Sociedad Austral de Electricidad S.A.
(SAESA), a distribution company in Chile, and Empresa de Electricidad de los Andes S.A. (Electroandes), a
generation company in Peru in August and December of 2001, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2001,
amortization expense related to goodwill was $3 million.

As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings’ pro-rata share of the remaining goodwill included on the balance
sheets of its equity method investees totaled $282 million. In accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, such goodwill is not consolidated on the balance sheet. Energy Holdings’ share of the amortization
expense related to such goodwill was $8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.

In addition to goodwill, Energy Holdings has an intangible asset related to its defined benefit pension plans,
which is not subject to amortization. This intangible asset totaled $5 million as of December 31, 2002.
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Power and Energy Holdings

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Power and Energy Holdings’ goodwill and pro-rata share of goodwill

in consolidated equity method projects was as follows:

As of December 31,

2002 2001
Consolidated Investments (Miltions)
Energy Holdings (1)
SAE S A ) ettt e $290 $315
BB E RS A () .ottt e e e e — 63
Blectroandes(d) . .o ottt e e e e 140 164
Elektrocieplownia Chorzow Sp. Z o.0. (ELCHO)................coiiiiit 6 6
Total Energy Holdings-Global.............. ..o 436 548
Power — Albany Steam Station (5).......c..oiiiiiinii 16 21
Total PSEG Consolidated Goodwill ..., 452 569
Pro-Rata Share of Equity Method Investments
Energy Holdings
RGE (6) o ittt e e e 60 142
Chilquinta Energia S.A. (Chilquinta) (7).............oooii i, 163 174
Luz del Sur S A A, oo e 34 34
Kalaeloa . ...t IR 25 25
Pro-Rata Share of Equity Investment Goodwill ............................. 282 375
Total PSEG Goodwill... .. ... . i s $734 $944
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(1) Goodwill for Tanir Bavi and Energy Technologies was fully impaired in 2002. For 2001, goodwill for
Tanir Bavi and Energy Technologies of $27 million and $53 million, respectively, was reclassed to Current
Assets of Discontinued Operations. See Note 5. Discontinued Operations for additional information.

(2) The decrease at SAESA relates to final purchase price adjustments that resulted in higher value allocated
to fixed assets.

(3) The decrease at EDEERSA relates to an impairment of $56 million under SFAS 142 and to purchase price
adjustments of $7 million made subsequent to December 31, 2001.

(4) The decrease at Electroandes relates to purchase price adjustments made subsequent to December 31, 2001
which resulted in higher value allocated to Property, Plant and Equipment.

(5) The decrease at Albany relates to a purchase price adjustment related to a contingent liability.

(6) The decrease at RGE relates to an impairment under SFAS 142 totaling $50 million and the devaluation
of the Brazilian Real amounting to $32 million.

(7) The decrease at Chilquinta relates to the devaluation of the Chilean Peso.
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Power

In addition to goodwill associated with Power’s Albany Station (see table above), Power has intangible assets
relating to its defined benefit pension plans, for its emissions allowances and for various access rights at the Albany
station, all of which are not subject to amortization. Power’s intangible asset relating to its defined benefit pension
plans totaled $33 and $5 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Power’s intangible assets relating
to its emissions allowances totaled $52 million and $2 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Power’s intangible assets relating to various access rights at its Albany Station totaled approximately $40 million
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. '

PSE&G

PSE&G has intangible assets relating to its defined benefit pension plans totaling $60 million and $7 million
as of December 31, 2002 and Dec_ember 31, 2001, respectively. These intangible assets are not subject to
amortization.

SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Dispdsal of Long-Lived Assets”
(SFAS 144) :

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

On January 1, 2002, SFAS 144, which provides guidance on the accounting for the impairment or disposat
of long-lived assets, became effective: For long-lived assets to be held and used, the new rules are similar to previous
guidance which required the recognition of an impairment when the undiscounted cash flows will not recover its
carrying amount. The impairment to be recognized is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
fair value of the asset. The computation of fair value now removes goodwill from consideration and incorporates
a probability-weighted cash flow estimation approach. The previous guidance provided in SFAS No. 121
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of” (SFAS 121) is
to be applied to assets that are to be disposed of by sale. Additionally, assets qualifying for discontinued operations
treatment have been expanded beyond the former major line of business or class of customer approach. Long-lived
assets to be disposed of by other than sale now recognize-impairment at the date of disposal, but are considered
assets to be held and used until that time. There was no impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of PSEG,
PSE&G, Power or Energy Holdings upon adoption of these rules. For additional information, see Note 4. Asset
Impairments. : ‘

SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations’ (SFAS 143)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings’

Effective January 1, 2003, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings will adopt SFAS 143. SFAS 143
addresses accounting and reporting for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets
and the associated asset retirement costs. A legal obligation is a liability that a party is required to settle as a result
of an existing or enacted law, statute, ordinance or contract. '

Under SFAS 143, a company must initially recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred and concurrently capitalize an asset retirement cost by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset by the same amount as the liability. A company shall subsequently
allocate that asset retirement cost to expense over its useful life. In periods subsequent to initial measurement, an
entity shall recognize changes in the liability resulting from the passage of time (accretion) or due to revisions to
either the timing or the amount of the originally estimated cash flows. Changes in the liability due to accretion will

FINANCIAL REVIEW 87




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 2. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

be charged to the Consolidated Statements of Operations, whereas changes due to the timing or amount of cashflows
shall be an adjustment to the carrying amount of the related asset.

PSE&G and Power

Power has performed a review of its potential obligations under SFAS 143 and believes that its quantifiable
obligations are primarily related to the decommissioning of its nuclear power plants. Prior to the adoption of SFAS
143, amounts collected from PSE&G customers that have been deposited into the Nuclear Decommissioning Trust
and realized and unrealized gains and losses in the trust were all recorded as changes in the NDT Fund with an
offsetting charge to the liability. Beginning January 1, 2003, amounts will be recorded in earnings or in OCI, as
appropriate. As of December 31, 2002, Power had a $766 million asset and liability recorded on its Consolidated
Balance Sheets for nuclear decommissioning.

In addition to the quantifiable obligations, Power identified certain legal obligations that meet the criteria of
SFAS 143, which at this time are not quantifiable. These obligations relate to certain industrial establishments
subject to the Industrial Site Recovery Act, underground storage tanks subject to the Spill Compensation and Control
Act, permits and authbrizations, the restoration of an area occupied by a reservoir when the reservoir is no longer
needed, an obligation to retire from operation, certain plants prior to the initial burning of fuel from a new plant
and the demolition of certain plants and the restoration of the sites when the plants are no longer in service.

In August 2002, PSE&G filed a petition requesting clarification from the BPU regarding the future cost
responsibility for nuclear decommissioning and whether: (a) PSE&G’s customers will continue to pay for such costs;
or (b) such customer responsibility will terminate at the end of the four-year transition period on July 31, 2003
and become the sole responsibility of Power. The outcome of this petition will affect the treatment of a material
portion of the liability recorded for Power’s nuclear decommissioning obligation. If the BPU determines that
PSE&G’s customers will continue to pay for these costs, the majority of the difference between the previously
recorded amount of the liability and the liability calculated under SFAS 143 will continue to be deferred on the
balance sheet. If the BPU determines that such customer responsibility terminates at the end of the transition period,
then the net effect of implementation will be recorded as a one-time benefit as a Cumulative Effect of a Change
in Accounting Principle. A decision is expected as part of PSE&G’s electric base rate case, which is expected to
be completed prior to July 2003. Although the outcome of this petition cannot be predicted, management believes
that the net effect of adopting this accounting standard should be recorded in earnings. Power also has $131 million
of liabilities, $7 million of which relates to legal obligations, recorded on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2002 related to the Cost of Removal assocfafed with its fossil generating stations. These potential
obligations are required to be reversed upon implementation of SFAS 143.

Therefore, upon adoption of this standard on January 1, 2003, PSEG and Power will record an adjustment
for a Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle in the Consolidated Statements of Operations by
reducing the existing liabilities to their present value. It is anticipated that the result will be a benefit to net income,
and therefore equity, in a range of $300 million to $400 million. Of this amount, $200 million to $300 million
relates to interests in certain nuclear units Power purchased from PSE&G which is subject to the BPU issue discussed
above, approximately $55 million relates to interests in certain nuclear units Power purchased from Atlantic City
Electric Company (ACE) and Delmarva Power and Light Company (DP&L) which is not subject to BPU approval
and approximately $70 million relates to the cost of removal liabilities for the fossil units being reversed.

The BPU could decide that the future cost for decommissioning the nuclear units rests with PSE&G’s
customers. If that is the case, the portion of the benefit to equity related to the nuclear units Power purchased from
PSE&G would be reversed and a regulatory liability would be established. The $55 million related to the nuclear
units purchased from ACE and DP&L and the $70 million related to the cost of removal liabilities for the fossil
units would be unaffected.
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PSE&G

At December 31, 2002, PSE&G had no legal liabilities, as contemplated under SFAS 143, recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets and therefore the effect of adoption will not result in an adjustment to the consolidated
statement of earnings. PSE&G does, however, have cost of removal liabilities embedded within Accumulated
Depreciation pursuant to SFAS 71. Since PSE&G is a regulated enterprise, these amounts will continue to be
recorded and presented in Accumulated Depreciation and will be disclosed in accordance with SFAS 143.

PSE&G has identified certain legal obligations that meet the criteria of SFAS 143 which at this time are not
quantifiable and therefore unable to be recorded. These obligations relate to certain industrial establishments subject
to the Industrial Site Recovery Act, underground storage tanks subject to the Spill Compensation and Control Act,
leases and licenses, and the requirement to seal natural gas pipelines at all sources of gas when the pipelines are
no longer in service.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings identified certain legal obligations that met the criteria of SFAS 143 and are not expected
to be material to the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical Corrections” (SFAS 145)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Effective January 1, 2002, PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 145. This Statement
rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishments of Debt,” (SFAS 4) and an amendment
of that Statement, SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking Fund Requirements” (SFAS
64). SFAS 4 required that gains and losses from extinguishments of debt that were included in the determination
of net income be aggregated, and if material, classified as an extraordinary item. Since the issuance of SFAS 4,
the use of debt extinguishments has become part of the risk management strategy of many companies, representing
a type of debt extinguishment that does not meet the criteria for classification as an extraordinary item. Based on
this trend, the FASB issued this rescission of SFAS 4 and SFAS 64. Accordingly, under SFAS 145, PSEG now
records these gains and losses in Other Income and Other Deductions, respectively. PSEG recorded pre-tax gains
of $13 million ($8 million after-tax) from the early retirement of debt as a component of Other Income for the period
ended December 31, 2002. Also, PSEG reclassified a pre-tax loss of $3 million ($2 million after-tax) from the early
retirement of debt to a component of Other Deductions for the period ended December 31, 2001.

SFAS 133

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

On January 1, 2001, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings adopted SFAS 133. SFAS 133 established
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments included
in other contracts, and for hedging activities. It requires an entity to recognize the fair value of derivative instruments
held as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. For cash flow hedging purposes, changes in the fair value of the
effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative are reported in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or as
a Regulatory Asset (Liability), net of tax. Amounts in accumulated OCI are ultimately recognized in earnings when
the related hedged forecasted transaction occurs. The change in the fair value of the ineffective portion of the gain
or loss on a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is recorded in earnings. Derivative instruments
that have not been designated as hedges are adjusted to fair value through earnings.
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Energy Holdings

Upon adoption, Energy Holdings recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accounting prmcnple of $9 million,
net of tax and a decrease to OCI of $15 million, respectively. ‘ :

EITF 02-3

PSE&G and Power

EITF 02-3 requires all gains and losses on energy trading derivatives to be reported on a net basis. Also, energy
trading contracts that are not derivatives will no longer be marked to market. Instead, settlement accounting will be
used. EITF 02-3 was effective for all new contracts executed after October 25, 2002 and will require a cumulative
effect adjustment to income in the first quarter of 2003 for all contracts executed prior to October 25, 2002. The vast
majority of Power’s energy contracts qualify as derivatives under SFAS 133 and will therefore continue to be marked
to market. Management believes the impact of adopting this EITF 02-3 will not be material to the financial statements.

Pursuant to EITF Issue No. 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent” (EITF
99-19), PSE&G (prior to the generation-related asset transfer in August 2000) and Power had been recording trading
revenues and trading related costs on a gross basis for physical energy and capacity sales and purchases. In
accordance with EITF 02-3, beginning in the third quarter of 2002, Power started reporting energy trading revenues
and energy trading costs on a net basis and have reclassified prior periods to conform with this net presentation.
As a result, both Operating Revenues and Energy Costs were reduced by approximately $1.9 billion, $2.3 billion
and $2.6 billion for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. This change in presentatlon
did not have an effect on tradmg margins, net income or cash flows.

Financial Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others” (FIN 45) o

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

FIN 45 enhances the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about
its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee,
although PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings do not anticipate the recording of such liabilities will be
material to their respective Consolidated Financial Statements. The initial recognition and initial measurement
provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods
ending after December 15, 2002. For further information regarding Power’s and Energy Holdings’ respective
guarantees, refer to Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities.

FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable 'Interest‘Entities (VIE)” (FIN 46)

PSEG, PSE&G Power and Energy Holdings

FIN 46 clarified the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements”,
to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. Because
a controlling financial interest in an entity may be achieved through arrangements that do not involve voting
interests, FIN 46 sets forth specific requirements with respect to consolidation, measurement and disclosure of such
relationships. Disclosure requirements for existing qualifying entities are effective for financial statements issued
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after January 31, 2003. All enterprises with VIEs created after February 1, 2003, shall apply the provisions of FIN
46 no later than the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003.

Other

PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

In connection with the January 2003 EITF meeting, the FASB was requested to reconsider an interpretation
of SFAS 133. The interpretation, which is contained in the Derivatives Implementation Group’s C-11 guidance,
relates to the pricing of contracts that include broad market indices. In particular, that guidance discusses whether
the pricing in a contract that contains broad market indices (e.g., CPI) could qualify as a normal purchase or sale
under SFAS 133. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are currently reevaluating which contracts, if any,
that have previously been designated as normal purchases or sales would now not qualify for this exception. PSEG,
PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are currently evaluating the effects that this guidance will have on their
respective results of operations, financial position and net cash flows.

Note 3. Change in Accounting Principle
PSE&G and Power

PSE&G and Power has each changed its method of accounting for the classification of assets and liabilities
arising from transactions related to energy trading contracts when the right of set-off exists, from a separate
presentation of assets and liabilities to a net presentation. PSE&G and Power believe that the right of set-off exists
when all of the following conditions are met:

s PSE&G or Power and its respective counterparty owes the other determinable amounts;

e PSE&G or Power have the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by its respective
counterparty;

e PSE&G or Power intend to set off; and
s the right of set-off is enforceable by law.

PSE&G and Power each believe that this change in method of accounting and classification is preferable and
more closely represents the economic substance of such transactions. Additionally, the new method reflects
PSE&G’s and Power’s existing practice of settling amounts net, and is consistent with the classification of trading
revenues and trading costs on a net basis on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, there was no effect on revenues, expenses, net income or
cash flows as a result of this change. Affected amounts on the Consolidated Balance Sheets have been reclassified
for all periods presented. The impact of this reclassification was a decrease as of December 31, 2001 in PSEG’s
current assets, noncurrent assets, current liabilities and noncurrent liabilities by approximately $266 million
($240 million related to Power and $26 million related to PSE&G), $17 million (primarily all related to Power),
$271 million ($240 million related to Power and $31 million related to PSE&G) and $12 million (a $17 million
decrease related to Power and a $5 million increase related to PSE&Q), respectively.

Note 4. Asset Impairments

Energy Holdings

As of December 31, 2001, Energy Holdings’ aggregate investment exposure in Argentina was $632 million,
including certain loss contingencies. These investments included a 90% owned distribution company, Empresa
Distribuidora de Electricidad de Entre Rios S.A. (EDEERSA); minority interests in three distribution companies,
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Empresa Distribuidora de Energia Norte S.A. (EDEN), Empresa Distribuidora de Energia Sur S.A. (EDES) and
Empresa Distribuidora La Plata S.A. (EDELAP); and two generating companies, Central Termica San Nicolas S.A.
(CTSN), and AES Parana S.C.A. (Parana) which were under contract for sale to certain subsidiaries of The AES
Corporation (AES). In June 2002, Energy Holdings determined that the carrying value of its Argentine investments
was impaired. The combination of the year-to-date operating losses, goodwill impairment at EDEERSA, write-
down of $497 million for all Argentine assets, and certain loss contingencies resulted in a pre-tax charge to earnings
of $623 million ($406 million after-tax). In connection with the write-down of Energy Holdings’ Argentine assets,
Energy Holdings recorded a net deferred tax asset of $217 million. Energy Holdings has reviewed this deferred
tax asset for recoverability and no reserve is required. For a discussion of certain contingencies related to Argentine
investments, see Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities.

The tables below provide pre-tax and after-tax impacts of the various impairment charges, results of operations
and accruals of loss contingencies recorded with respect to Energy Holdings’ investments in Argentina for the
periods ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,

(Pre-Tax) (After-Tax)

Years Ended Years Ended

December 31, December 31,
2002 2000 2002 2001

(Millions)

(Losses) Earnings Before Local Taxes—EDEERSA . . ............ S99 %21 $ 40) 313
Write-down of EDEERSA . . . ... ... ... . . . . . . 94) — (61) —
Write-down of Assets Held for Saleto AES . .. ................ 403) — (262) —
Loss Contingencies and Other. . ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... (11) —_ @) —
Goodwill Impairment-EDEERSA .. ............... ... ... ... _(6 — _ (36 _—
TOtal .« oo $(623)  $21  $(406)  $13

||
N

The asset impairments are described in more detail below.

EDEERSA

In January 2002, the Argentine Federal government enacted a temporary emergency law that imposed various
changes to the concession contracts in effect between electric distributors and local and federal regulators. The
Province of Entre Rios enjoined in the emergency law impacting operations at EDEERSA. The Argentine
government and regulators made unilateral decisions to abrogate key components of the tariff concessions related
to public utilities. In addition to the emergency law, the Province of Entre Rios unilaterally enacted other laws which
forced EDEERSA to accept provincial bonds, known as “federales”, as payment for electric service in lieu of
Argentine Pesos. Federales cannot be exchanged outside of the Entre Rios Province. In addition, restrictions were
imposed on EDEERSA’s ability to terminate service to a majority of customers in the event of nonpayment.

Such laws significantly restricted Global’s ability to control the operations of EDEERSA, as unilateral changes
enacted by the government restricted Global’s ability to manage its operations to reduce the financial losses incurred
as a result of such actions. In the second quarter of 2002, Global believed such temporary measures were likely
to be permanent in nature as a credible solution to the economic crisis in Argentina, including International Monetary
Fund (IMF) support, was not probable. The more significant provisions included in the initial emergency law remain
in effect. As a result of a loss of control of the financial and operational management of EDEERSA, the investment
is recorded in accordance with the equity method of accounting as of December 31, 2002. Global has no significant
exposure remaining related to EDEERSA as of December 31, 2002,

As of January 1, 2002, goodwill related to Energy Holdings’ investment in EDEERSA was approximately
$56 million and was included in Energy Holdings’ previously disclosed investment exposure. As part of the adoption
of SFAS 142, Energy Holdings determined that this goodwill was impaired and all of the goodwill was written-off
as of January 1, 2002. See Note 2. New Accounting Standards for a further discussion of the goodwill analysis.
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Based on actual and projected operating losses at EDEERSA and the continued economic uncertainty in
Argentina, Energy Holdings determined that it was necessary to test these assets for impairment. Such impairment
analyses were completed as of June 30, 2002. As a result of these analyses, Energy Holdings determined that these
assets were completely impaired under SFAS 144. Energy Holdings recorded total charges and losses of
$213 million, pre-tax, related to this investment for the year ended December 31, 2002. These pre-tax charges
consisted of goodwill impairment charges (calculated under SFAS 142) of $56 million, operating losses of
$59 million, of which $45 million was recorded in the first quarter of 2002, a write-off of the remaining $94 million
net asset balance pursuant to the SFAS 144 impairment analysis and loss contingencies and other items of $4 million.

The total after-tax charges and losses related to this investment were $139 million for the period ended December 31,
2002.

Energy Holdings’ share of the pre-tax (Losses) Earnings for EDEERSA are included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as indicated in the following table:

Years Ended
December 31,

2002(A) 2001(B)
(Millions)

Operating Revenues . . . . .. [P, : $ 19 $63
Operating Expenses. . . .. ............ e 14 41
Operating Income. . . . . [P 5 22
Other Losses — Foreign Currency Transaction Loss . ... ... (68) —
Minority Interest and Other . . . ... ... ................ 4 -
(Loss) Earnings before Taxes . .. ................. . 659 s2

(A) In the second quarter of 2002, as a result of a loss of control of EDEERSA, Energy Holdings accounted
for this investment in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

(B) Operating results for EDEERSA included $7 million of revenues recorded in accordance with the equity
method of accounting for the six months ended June 30, 2001. In the third quarter of 2001, Global recorded
EDEERSA as a consolidated entity as it was a majority-owned investment.

Stock Purchase Agreement

On August 24, 2001, Global entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with AES to sell its minority interests
in EDEN, EDES, EDELAP, CTSN and Parana, to certain subsidiaries of AES. In connection with the terms of the
Stock Purchase Agreement, Global accrued interest and other receivables of $17 million through February 6, 2002,
which were direct obligations of AES. On February 6, 2002, AES notified Global that it was terminating the Stock
Purchase Agreement. In the Notice of Termination, AES alleged that a Political Risk Event, within the meaning
of the Stock Purchase Agreement, had occurred by virtue of certain decrees of the Government of Argentina, thereby
giving AES the right to terminate the Stock Purchase Agreement. As discussed previously, Energy Holdings
recorded a Write-Down of Project Investments of $403 million, pre-tax, net of the reduction discussed below, for
the year ended December 31, 2002. Global filed suit in New York State Supreme Court for New York County against
AES to enforce its rights under the Stock Purchase Agreement. A settlement was reached in October 2002 between
the parties under which Global will transfer its minority ownership interest in EDEN, EDES, EDELAP, Parana and
CTSN to AES. AES paid Global $15 million under the settlement and, in addition, has issued promissory notes
which should yield an additional $15 million, plus interest at 12%, maturing through July 2003. In the fourth quarter
of 2002, Energy Holdings assessed the collectibility of the notes receivable and recognized $9 million of Operating
Income. This amount was recorded as a reduction in the Write-Down of Project Investments. In February 2003,
Energy Holdings received the first note installment totaling $5 million, plus interest.
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Energy Holdings

Energy Technologies’ Investments

Energy Technologies is primarily comprised of 11 heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) and
mechanical operating companies. In June 2002, Energy Holdings adopted a plan to sell its interests in the HVAC/
mechanical operating companies. The sale of these companies is expected to be completed by June 30, 2003. Energy
Holdings has retained the services of an investment-banking firm to market these companies to interested parties.
The HVAC/mechanical operating companies meet the criteria for classification as components of discontinued
operations and all prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

In addition to the pre-tax goodwill impairment of $53 million recorded in accordance with the adoption of
SFAS 142, Energy Holdings reviewed this investment for impairment in accordance with SFAS 144 and has further
reduced the carrying value of the 11 HVAC/mechanical operating companies to their fair value less costs to sell
and recorded a loss on disposal for the year ended December 31, 2002 of $21 million, net of $11 million in taxes.
Energy Holdings’ remaining investment position in Energy Technologies is approximately $56 million, of which
$32 million relates to deferred tax assets from discontinued operations and $12 million relates to certain
intercompany payables included in Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operations. For a discussion of these
intercompany payables included in the Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operations, see Note 22. Related-Party
Transactions.

Operating results of the HVAC/mechanical operating companies, less certain allocated costs from Energy
Holdings, have been reclassified into discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
results of operations of these discontinued operations for the periods ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, are displayed below:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Midlions)
Operating Revenues. . . .................... $378 $441 $316
Operating Loss . . . ... ... ... $ (30) $ 3D $ (20)
Loss Before Income Taxes . ... .............. $ (32) $ (34) $ (7
Net LoSS © v oo e e $ (21D $ (22) $ (12)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the HVAC/mechanical operating companies, as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, have been reclassified into Current Assets of Discontinued Operations and Current
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations, respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are summarized in
the following table:

As of December 31,

20062 2001
(Millions)

CUITENE ASSES .ottt ettt et e ettt aaeen $ 82 $152
NONCUITENE ASSEIS. ..\ttt it iaan s _25 _74
TOtal ASSEIS L.ttt ﬂ @
Current Liabilities. ..o i e $ 85 $ 76
Noncurrent Liabilities ....... .o iiee s 5 2
Long-Term Debt ... 3 1
Total Liabilities . . ...t $ 95 $79

ll
|
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Note 5. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Tanir Bavi

In the fourth.quérter of 2002, Global sold its 74% interest in Tanir Bavi, a 220 MW barge mounted, combined-
cycle generating facility in India. Tanir Bavi meets the criteria for classification as a component of discontinued
operations and all prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. Global reduced
the carrying value of Tanir Bavi to the contracted sales price of $45 million and recorded a loss on disposal of
$14 million (after-tax) for the year-ended December 31, 2002. The operating results of Tanir Bavi for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 yielded income of $5 million and $7 million (after-tax), respectively.

For information regarding the goodwill impairment associated with Tanir Bavi, see Note 2. New Accounting
Standards.

Global’s share of operating results of this discontinued operation are summarized in the following table:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 (A)
(Millions)
Operating Revenues . . .. ............ $61 $56
Operating Income. . . . .............. $23 $16
Income Before Income Taxes. . .. ...... $ 7 $14

NetIncome. . .................... $5 $7

(A) Commerical operations at Tanir Bavi began in 2001.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Tanir Bavi, as of December 31, 2001, have been reclassified
into Current Assets of Discontinued Operations and Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operations, respectively,
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The carrying amounts of the major classes of assets and liabilities of Tanir
Bavi, as of December 31, 2001, are summarized in the following tables:

As of
December 31, 2001
(Millions)

Current ASSEtS. . . . . . ... $ 37
Net Property, Plant and Equipment. ... ............ 190
Noncurrent ASSets . . ... .. v L. 30
Total ASSELS. . o vt vt L $257
Current Liabilities . ... ... ... ... ... .......... $ 45
Noncurrent Liabilities . . . .. .. ... ............... 19
Long-Term Debt .. ... ... .. ... ... .. .. ... 108
Total Liabilities . ............. P ' $172

Note 6. Regulatory Issues and Accounting Impacts of Deregulation

New Jersey Energy Master Plan Proceedings and Related Orders

PSE&G and Power

Following the enactment of the New Jersey Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act (Energy
Competition Act), the BPU issued its Final Order in 1999 relating to PSE&G’s rate unbundling, stranded costs and
restructuring proceedings (Final Order). This Final Order deregulated the electric generation business and set the
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Note 6. Regulatory Issues and Accounting Impacts of Deregulation (Continued)

stage to deregulate the gas supply business in New Jersey. As a result of this process, PSE&G transferred its
generation business to Power in August 2000 and the gas supply business to Power in May 2002. The electric
business was transferred at the BPU prescribed price of $2.4 billion, plus $343 million for the book value of the
related materials and supplies. PSE&G transferred its gas inventories and contracts to Power and its subsidiaries
in May 2002 for approximately $183 million.

Also in the Final Order, the BPU concluded that PSE&G should recover up to $2.9 billion (net of tax) of its
electric generation-related stranded costs through securitization of $2.4 billion, plus an estimated $125 million of
transaction costs, and an opportunity to recover up to $540 million (net of tax) of its unsecuritized generation-related
stranded costs on a net present value basis. The $540 million is subject to recovery through a market transition
charge (MTC) included in operating revenues through the transition period ending July 31, 2003. PSE&G remits
the MTC revenues to Power as part of the BGS contract as provided for by the Final Order.

On January 31, 2001, $2.5 billion of securitization bonds (non-recourse asset backed securities) were issued by
PSE&G Transition Funding LLC (Transition Funding), in eight classes with maturities ranging from 1 year to 15 years.
Also on January 31, 2001, PSE&G received payment from Power on its $2.8 billion promissory note used to finance
the transfer of PSE&G’s generation business. The proceeds from these transactions were used to pay for certain debt
issuance and related costs for securitization, retire a portion of PSE&G’s outstanding short-term debt, reduce PSE&G
common equity, loan funds to PSEG and make various short-term investments in accordance with the Final Order.

In order to properly recognize the recovery of the allowed unsecuritized stranded costs over the transition
period, PSE&G recorded a charge to net income of $88 million, pre-tax, or $52 million, after tax, in the third quarter
of 2000 for the cumulative amount of estimated collections in excess of the allowed unsecuritized stranded costs
from August 1, 1999 through September 30, 2000. As of December 31, 2002, the amount of estimated collections
in excess of the allowed unsecuritized stranded costs was $189 million. For additional information, see Note 7.
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. After deferrals, pre-tax MTC revenues recognized were $221 million in 1999,
$239 million in 2000, $196 million in 2001 and $98 million in 2002, In 2003, PSE&G expects to record
approximately $115 million in pre-tax MTC revenues.

Note 7. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

PSE&G

PSE&G prepares its financial statements in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 71. A regulated utility
is required to defer the recognition of costs (a regulatory asset) or the recognition of obligations (a regulatory
liability) if it is probable that, through the rate-making process, there will be a corresponding increase or decrease
in future rates. Accordingly, PSE&G has deferred certain costs, which will be amortized over various future periods.
These costs are deferred based on rate orders issued by the BPU or the FERC and PSE&G’s experience with prior
rate cases. As of December 31, 2002, approximately 87% of PSE&G’s regulatory assets were deferred based on
written rate orders. Regulatory assets recorded on a basis other than by an issued rate order have less certainty of
recovery since they can be disallowed in the future by regulatory authorities. However, PSE&G has experienced
no material disallowances in the past. PSE&G believes that all of its regulatory assets are probable of recovery.
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Note 7. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, PSE&G had deferred the following regulatory assets and
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

As of
December 31,
2002 2001 Recovery/Refund Period
(Millions}

Regulatory Assets
Stranded Costs To Be Recovered. . . . ............. $3,885 $4,105 Through December 2015(1)(2)
Deferred Income Taxes . .. .................... 328 302  Various
OPEB-Related Costs . . . .. .............u.... 193 212 Through December 2012(2)
Societal Benefits Charges (SBC). . . .............. — 4
Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation Costs ... ...... 115 87  Various(2)
Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt and Debt Expense . 86 92  Over remaining debt life(1)
Underrecovered Gas Costs . . . ... ... ... ... ..... 154 117  Through September 2004(1)
Unrealized Losses on Gas Contracts . ............. — 137
Unrealized Losses on Interest Rate Swap . . .... ... .. 66 18  Through December 2015(2)
Repair Allowance Taxes . . .................... 93 84  Through August 2004(2)(3)
Decontamination and Decommissioning Costs. . ... ... 21 25  Through December 2007
Plant and Regulatory Study Costs . . . ............. 25 32 Through December 2021(2)
Regulatory Restructuring Costs. . . . . ... .......... 26 27  Through July 2007(1)(3)
Total Regulatory Assets. . . .................... $4,992  $5,242
Regulatory Liabilities
Excess Depreciation Reserve .. ................. $ 171 $ 319 Through July 31, 2003(2)
Non-Utility Generation Transition Charge NTC). . . . . . 27 46  Through August 2004(1)(3)
SBC . 50 —  Through August 2004(1)(2)(3)
Other . ... . . . 4 3 Various(1)
Total Regulatory Liabilities . .. ................. $ 252 § 368

(1) Recovered/Refunded with interest
(2) Recoverable/Refundable per specific rate order
(3) Recovery/Refunding is pending the outcome of the current electric base rate or deferral case

All regulatory assets and liabilities are excluded from PSE&G’s rate base unless otherwise noted. The
descriptions below define certain regulatory items.

Stranded Costs To Be Recovered: This reflects deferred costs to be recovered through the securitization
transition charge that was authorized by the BPU. Funds collected through the securitization transition charge will
be used to make the future interest and principal payments on the transition bonds.

Deferred Income Taxes: This amount represents the portion of deferred income taxes that will be recovered
through future rates, based upon established regulatory practices, which permit the recovery of current taxes.
Accordingly, this regulatory asset is offset by a deferred tax liability and is expected to be recovered, without interest,
over the period the underlying book-tax timing differences reverse and become current taxes.

OPEB-Related Costs: Includes costs associated with the adoption of SFAS No. 106. “Employers’ Accounting
for Benefits Other Than Pensions” which were deferred in accordance with EITF Issue 92-12, “Accounting for
OPEB Costs by Rate Regulated Enterprises.”
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Note 7. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

SBC: The SBC, as authorized by the BPU and the Energy Competition Act, includes costs related to PSE&G’s
electric and gas business as follows: 1) the universal service fund; 2) nuclear plant decommissioning; 3) demand
side management (DSM) programs; 4) social programs which include consumer education; 5) electric bad debt
expenses; and 6) MTC overrecovery. All components except for MTC accrue interest.

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation Costs: Represents a three-year estimate of the environmental
investigation and remediation program costs that are probable of recovery in future rates.

Unamortized Loss on Reacquired Debt and Debt Expense: Represents bond issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and losses on reacquired long-term debt.

Underrecovered Gas Costs: Represents PSE&G’s gas costs in excess of the amount included in rates and
probable of recovery in the future. The current portion of the balance does not accrue interest.

NTC: This clause was established by the Energy Competition Act to account for above market costs related
to non-utility generation (NUG) contracts, as approved by the BPU. Costs or benefits associated with the
restructuring of these contracts are deferred. This clause also includes BGS costs in excess of current rates, as
approved by the BPU.

Unrealized Losses on Gas Contracts: This represents the recoverable portlon of unreahzed Iosses assoclated
with contracts used in PSE&G’s gas distribution business.

Unrealized Losses on Interest Rate Swap: This represents the costs related to Transition Funding’s interest
rate swap that will be recovered without interest over the life of Transition Funding’s transition bonds. This asset
is offset by a derivative liability on the balance sheet.

Repair Allowance Taxes: This represents tax, interest and carrying charges relatmg to disaliowed tax
deductions for repair allowance as authorized by the BPU.

Decontamination and Decommissioning Costs: These costs are related to PSE&G’s portion of the obligation
for nuclear decontamination and decommissioning costs of US Department of Energy nuclear sites dating back prior
to the generation asset transfer to Power in 2000.

Plant and Regulatory Study Costs: These are costs incurred by PSE&G required by the BPU related to
current and future operations, including safety, planning, management and construction.

Regulatory Restructuring Costs: These are costs related to the restructuring of the energy industry in New
Jersey through the Energy Competition Act and include such items as the system design work necessary to transition
PSE&G to a transmission and distribution only company, as well as costs incurred to transfer and establish the
generation function as a separate corporate entity.

Excess Depreciation Reserve: As required by the BPU, PSE&G reduced its depreciation reserve for its
electric distribution assets and recorded such amount as a regulatory liability.

Other Regulatory Liabilities: This includes the following: 1) amounts collected from customers in order for
Transition Funding to obtain a AAA rating on its transition bonds; and 2) amounts avatlable to fund consumer
education discounts.
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Note 8. Long-Term Investments

Energy Holdings:

Leveraged Leases . . .. .................

Partnerships:

General Partnerships . . ...............
Limited Partnerships . . ... ............

Total Partnerships. . ... ...... ... ...

Corporate Joint Ventures . ... ............
Securities. . .. ... ... e
Other Investments (A). . . ...............

Total Long-Term Investments of Energy

Holdings . .. ........ ... ... ... ... ...,
PSE&XG B) ......... ... ... .. ......
Power (C) ...... ... ... .. ... ........
Other Investments (D) . ...............

Total Long-Term Investments. . . .......

December 31,

2002
$2,844

43
441

484
1,004

2001

(Millions)
$2,784

44
615

659

1,115
6
50

4,614
112
36

6

$4,768

(A) Primarily relates to Demand Side Management (DSM) investments at Resources.

(B) Primarily relates to life insurance and supplemental benefits of $113 million and $102 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

(C) Amounts represent Sulfur Dioxide (SO,) and Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) emission credits held for future use.

(D) Amounts represent investments at PSEG (parent company).

Energy Holdings

Leveraged Leases

Energy Holdings’ net investment, through Resources, in leveraged leases is comprised of the following elements:
December 31,

Lease rents receivable . . ... ... ..

Estimated residual value of leased assets . . ...

Unearned and deferred income . . . .

Total investments in leveraged leases . . . . . .

Deferred taxes . .. ............

Net investment in leveraged leases

2002

$ 3,429
1,414
4,843
(1,999)
2,844

(1,325)

$ 1,519

2001
(Millions)
$ 3,644
1,414
5,058
(2,274)
2,784
(1,175)
$ 1,609
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Note 8. Long-Term Investments (Continued)

Resources’ pre-tax income and income tax effects related to investments in leveraged leases are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

(Millions)
Pre-taX INCOIME . . . . v vt i et it e e et e et e e e $251  $206 8163
Income tax effect on pre-tax income. . . ................. ... $92 $62 § 58
Amortization of investment tax credits . . ... ... .. ... . ... $ M $ M $ O

Resources’ initial investment in leveraged leases represents approximately 15% to 20% of the purchase price
of the leveraged leased property. The balance is provided by third-party financing in the form of non-recourse long-
term debt which is secured by the property.

In 2002, Resources invested $31 million in a leveraged lease financing of a district heating network leased to Linz
Gas/Warme GmbH, a district heating utility providing service to the residents of Linz, Austria, and the surrounding area.

In November 2002, Resources terminated its two lease transactions with affiliates of TXU-Europe, the
Peterborough and Kings Lynn facilities due to an uncured default under the lease financial covenants. Resources
received cash proceeds of $183 million, recognizing an after-tax gain of $4 million. As a result of these lease
terminations, Resources will pay income taxes of $115 million in 2003.

In 2001, Resources negotiated the early termination of nine leveraged leases and received cash proceeds of
$104 million, recognizing an after-tax gain of $10 million. As a result of these lease terminations, Resources paid
income taxes of $87 million in 2002.

In 2000, Resources negotiated the early termination of four leveraged leases and received cash proceeds of
$89 million, recognizing an after-tax gain of $24 million. As a result of these lease terminations, Resources paid
income taxes of $24 million in 2001. '

Partnership Investments and Corporate Joint Ventures

Energy Holdings’ partnership investments of $484 million and corporate joint ventures of approximately
$1 billion are those of Resources, Global and EGDC.

Investments in and Advances to Affiliates

Investments in net assets of affiliated companies accounted for under the ei]uity method of accounting by
Global amounted to $1.3 billion and $1.5 billion at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively. Daring
the three years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the amount of dividends from these investments was
$64 million, $51 million, and $107 million respectively. Global’s share of income and cash flow distribution
percentages currently range from 16% to 50%. Interest is earned on loans made to various projects. Such loans
earned rates of interest ranging from 7.5% to 20% during 2002 and 2001.
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Note 8. Long-Term Investments (Continued)

Summarized results of operations and financial position of all affiliates in which Global uses the equity method

of accounting are presented below:

Foreign  Domestic Total
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 (Miltions)
Condensed Statement of Operations Information
Revenue ... ... $1,125  $ 492  $1,617
Gross Profit . . . o e e e $ 413 § 149 § 3562
Minority INterest. . . . .. . v ot it e e $ 100 $§ — % Qo
NetInCOmE . . . .t s e e $ 148 § 6 § 154
As of December 31, 2002
Condensed Balance Sheet Information
Assets:
CUITent ASSELS . . o o vttt et e $ 494 § 110 $ 604
Property, Plant and Equipment . . .. ....... .. ... ... ... 1,597 1,193 2,790
Goodwill. . . ... 586 50 636
Other Noncurrent ASSELS . . . . . .ot vttt e e e e 489 24 513
Total ASSEtS . . o . o e $3,166  $1,377  $4,543
Liabilities: ‘
Current Liabilities. . . .. ... ... ... . e $ 464 $§ 56 § 520
Debt® L 868 641 1,509
Other Noncurrent Liabilities. . . ... .. .. ... ... ... ... . ... 183 72 255
Minority Interest. . . . . . ... . 43 — 43
Total Liabilities . . . . .. .. o 1,558 769 2,327
Equity. . . o e 1,608 608 2,216
Total Liabilities and Equity . ... .. ... ... .. .. ... . . $3,166 $1,377  $4,543
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Foreign  Domestic Total
(Millions)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Condensed Statement of Operations Information

Revenue $ 473
Gross Profit $ 165
Minority Interest $ —
Net Income $ 9N

As of December 31, 2001

Condensed Balance Sheet Information
Assets:

Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Goodwill

Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities

Other Noncurrent Liabilities. . . . .. ... ... 245 212 457
Minority Interest. . . . ... .. 25 — 25
Total Liabilities . . . . .. . ... 1,559 979 2,538
EqUity. . . oo 1,776 631 2,407
Total Liabilities and Equity .. ....... ... ... ... ... . . . . .. ... $3,335 $1,610 $4,945

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000
Condensed Statement of Operations Information

Revenue . ... . $1,334  § 452 $1,786
Gross Profit. . . .. oo $ 532 % 256 % 788
Minority Interest. . . . . .. $ 249 $ — § (249
NetINCOME . . . .o ottt e e e $ 190 $ 162 $ 352

*Debt is non-recourse to PSEG, Energy Holdings and Global

Other Investments

Resources also has limited partnership investments in two leveraged buyout funds, a collateralized bond
obligation structure, a clean air facility and solar electric generating systems. Resources’ total investment in limited
partnerships was $118 million, and $163 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Included in the limited partnership amounts above are interests in two leveraged buyout funds that hold publicly
traded securities, which are managed by KKR Associates L.P., (KKR). The book value of the investment in the
leveraged buyout funds was $93 million and $130 million as of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively. The largest single investment in the funds held indirectly by Resources is the investment in approximately
16,847,000 shares of common stock of Borden, Inc., having a book value of $48 million and $81 million as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Resources appliés fair value accounting to investments in the funds where publicly traded market prices are available
as described in Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Approximately $24 million and
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$34 million represent the fair value of Resources’ share of the publicly traded securities in the funds as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. For a discussion of other than temporary impairments of non-publicly traded equity
securities within certain leveraged buyout funds at Resources, see Note 12. Risk Management.

During January and February 2001, KKR sold its interest in FleetBoston Financial Corporation. Resources
received cash proceeds of $35 million and recorded a $4 million pre- -tax gain as a result of this transaction. In August
2001, KKR sold its interest in Gillette Corporation. Resources received cash proceeds of $30 million from the sale,
which had a book value of $31 million.

Note 9. Purchase Business Combinations/Asset Acquisitions

Power

On December 6, 2002, Power purchased Wisvest Connecticut LL.C, which owns the Bridgeport Harbor Station
(BHS), the New Haven Harbor Station (NHHS) and the related assets and liabilities, from Wisvest Corporation
(Wisvest), a subsidiary of Wisconsin Energy Corporation. The name of Wisvest Connecticut LLC was subsequently
changed to PSEG Power Connecticut LLC.

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $272 million, which consisted of approximately $269 million
of cash paid to Wisvest and approximately $3 million of direct acqulsmon costs necessary to conduct the transaction,
which were paid to third parties.

Power has not finalized the allocation of the purchase price as of December 31, 2002. As shown in the table
below, an estimation of this allocation was prepared and recorded as of December 6, 2002. Power Connecticut’s
results of operations were reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations from December 6, 2002 through
December 31, 2002.

As of December 6, 2002

(Millions)

Current ASSetS . . . .. oo vttt $ 26
Property, Plant and Equipment . . ... ..... 237
Intangible Assets .. ... . ... ... ... _ 44
Total Assets Acquired . . ... ... e - 307
Current Liabilities. . .. ............... - 16
Noncurrent Liabilities . . . ... .......... _ 19
Total Liabilities Assumed . . . ... ... ... _ 35
Net Assets Acquired . . .. ............. $272

Approximately $42 million of the intangible assets consisted of SO, allowances, which can be sold on the
open market or used to offset plant emissions. These allowances have an indefinite life.

Energy Holdings

In June 2002, Global completed a 35% acquisition of the 5S90MW (electric) and 618 MW (thermal) coal-fired
Skawina CHP Plant (Skawina), located in Poland, and purchased an additional approximate 15%, increasing its
ownership to approximately 50%. The purchase price of this ownership interest was $31 million and was allocated
$18 million to Current Assets, $51 million to Property, Plant and Equipment, $14 million to Current Liabilities,
$9 million to Noncurrent Liabilities and $15 million to minority interest.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, Global increased its interest in GWF Energy LLC (GWF Energy), which
includes three new gas-fired peaking plants located in California, to 76%. The partnership agreement stipulates that
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Note 9. Purchase Business Combinations/Asset Acquisitions (Continued)

the condition for control is indicated at 75% or greater ownership interest of the voting stock. Global’s investment
in GWF Energy was recorded in accordance with the equity method of accounting as of September 30, 2002.
Global’s investment in GWF Energy is recorded as a consolidated entity as of December 31, 2002 and for the three
months ended December 31, 2002. The partner in this investment, Harbinger GWF LLC, has the right to buy back
from Global up to one-half of the reduction of its equity ownership in GWF Energy from the 50% ownership level.
This right terminates at the earlier of project financing or September 30, 2003.

Note 19. Schedule of Consolidated Capital Stock and Other Securities

Qutstanding Current
Shares Redemption
At December 31, Price December 31, December 31,
2002 Per Share 2002 2001

(Millions)

PSEG Common Stock {no par) (A)
Authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
(at December 31, 2001, 205,839,018 shares) 225,267,347 $3,075 $2,618

PSEG Preferred Securities (B)
PSEG Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial
Interest in PSEG’s Subordinated Debentures (D) (F)

TA4T . . 9,000,000 — $ 225 $ 225

Floating Rate (LIBOR + 1.22%) . . ... ......... 150,000 — 150 150

T25% . . o e 6,000,000 — 150 150

875% (F) .. ... . e 7,200,000 — 180 —
Total Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial

Interest in PSEG’s Subordinated Debentures . ... . . . $ 705 $ 525

PSEG Participating Units
1025% (G) . oo oo 9,200,000 — $ 460 $ —
PSE&G Preferred Securities
PSE&G Cumulative Preferred Stock (C) without
Mandatory Redemption (D) $100 par value series

GO8T . o o 146,221 103.00 $ 15 $ 15
418% . e 116,958  103.00 12 12
430% . ... e 149,478  102.75 15 15
505% . ... 104,002  103.00 10 10
528% . 117,864  103.00 12 12
6.92% . . .. 160,711 — 16 16
Total Preferred Stock without Mandatory Redemption . S 80 $§ 80

PSE&G 8.00% Monthly Guaranteed Preferred
Beneficial Interest in Subordinated Debentures
OYE). . oo e 2,400,000 25.00 $ 60 $ 60

PSE&G 8.125% Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred
Beneficial Interest in PSE&G’s Subordinated
Debentures DYE). . . ... ..o 3,800,000 — $ 95 $ 95
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(A)

B)

©

D)

(E)

In 1999, PSEG’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 30 million shares of its common
stock in the open market. As of December 31, 2001, PSEG repurchased approximately 26.5 million shares
of common stock at a cost of approximately $997 million. No shares were repurchased in 2002. The
repurchased shares have been held as treasury stock or used for other corporate purposes.

In November 2002, PSEG issued 17.25 million shares of common stock for approximately $458 million,
with net proceeds of $443 million. In addition, in 2002, PSEG began issuing new shares under the
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (DRASPP) and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(ESPP), rather than purchasing them on the open market. For the year ended December 31, 2002, PSEG
issued approximately 2.2 million shares for approximately $78 million under these plans. Total authorized
and unissued shares of common stock available for issuance through PSEG’s DRASPP, ESPP and various
employee benefit plans amounted to 5,663,081.

PSEG has authorized 4 class of 50,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock without par value, none of which
is outstanding. .

At December 31, 2002, there were an aggregate of 6,704,766 shares of $100 par value and 10,000,000
shares of $25 par value Cumulative Preferred Stock which were authorized and unissued and which, upon
issuance, may or may not provide for mandatory sinking fund redemption. If dividends upon any shares
of Preferred Stock are in arrears in an amount equal to the annual dividend thereon, voting rights for the
election of a majority of PSE&G’s Board of Directors become operative and continue until all accumulated
and unpaid dividends thereon have been paid, whereupon all such voting rights cease, subject to being
revived from time to time. There are no arrearages in cumulative preferred stock and no voting rights for
preferred shares. No preferred stock agreement contains any liquidation preferences in excess of par or stated
values or any “deemed” liquidation events.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the annual dividend requirement of PSEG’s Trust Preferred Securities
(Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in PSEG’s Subordinated Debentures) including those issued in
connection with the Participating Units and their embedded costs was $101,330,00 and 5.99% and
$38,433,000 and 4.91%, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the annual dividend requirement and embedded dividend rate for
PSE&G's Preferred Stock without mandatory redemption was $3,987,867 and 5.03%, $10,127,383 and
5.03%, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the annual dividend requirement and embedded cost of the Monthly
Income Preferred Securities (Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in PSE&G’s Subordinated
Debentures) was $4,800,000 and 4.90%, $7,768,750 and 4.90%, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the annual dividend requirement of the Quarterly Income Preferred
Securities (Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in PSE&G’s Subordinated Debentures) and their
embedded costs were $7,718,750 and 4.97%, $16,439,584 and 4.97%, respectively.

PSE&G Capital L.P., PSE&G Capital Trust [ and PSE&G Capital Trust IT were formed and are controlled
by PSE&G for the purpose of issuing Monthly and Quarterly Income Preferred Securities (Monthly and
Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in PSE&G’s Subordinated Debentures). The proceeds
were loaned to PSE&G and are evidenced by PSE&G’s Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures. If
and for as long as payments on PSE&G’s Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures have been deferred,
or PSE&G has defaulted on the indentures related thereto or its guarantees thereof, PSE&G may not pay
any dividends on its common and preferred stock. The Subordinated Debentures and the indentures
constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by PSE&G of the Preferred Securities issued by the
partnership and the trusts.
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(F) Enterprise Capital Trust I, Enterprise Capital Trust II, Enterprise Capital Trust ITI, Enterprise Capital Trust
IV and PSEG Funding Trust IT were formed and are controlled by PSEG for the purpose of issuing Quarterly
Trust Preferred Securities (Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in PSEG’s Subordinated
Debentures). The proceeds were loaned to PSEG and are evidenced by Deferrable Interest Subordinated
Debentures. If and for as long as payments on the Deferrable Interest Subordinated Debentures have been
deferred, or PSEG had defaulted on the indentures related thereto or its guarantees thereof, PSEG may not
pay any dividends on its common and preferred stock. The Subordinated Debentures constitute PSEG’s full
and unconditional guarantee of the Preferred Securities issued by the trusts.

In December 2002, PSEG Funding Trust IT issued $180 million of 8.75% Trust Preferred Securities.

(G) In September 2002, PSEG Funding Trust I issued 9.2 million Participating Units with a stated amount
of $50 per unit. Each unit consists of a 6.25% trust preferred security due 2007 having a liquidation value
of $50, and a stock purchase contract obligating the purchasers to purchase shares of PSEG common stock
in an amount equal to $50 on November 16, 2005. In exchange for the obligations under the purchase
contract, the purchasers will receive quarterly contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 4.00%
until such date. The number of new shares issued on November 16, 2005 will depend upbn the average
closing price per share of PSEG common stock for the 20 consecutive trading days ending the third trading
day immediately preceding November 16, 2005. Based on the formula described in the purchase contract,
at that time PSEG will issue between 11,429,139 and 13,714,967 shares of its common stock. The net
proceeds from the sale of the Participating Units was $446.2 million. In connection with the issuance
of the Participating Units, PSEG recorded a $54 million reduction to equity associated with the stock
purchase contracts. '

PSEG applies SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share”, specifically the treasury stock method, when
accounting for the forward purchase contract associated with these participating units. If PSEG’s common
stock price were to exceed $40.25 per share, shares would be added to the diluted earnings per share
calculation. For additional information, see Note 18. Stock Options and Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Fair Value of Preferred Securities

The estimated fair values were determined using the market quotations or values of instruments with similar
terms, credit ratings, remaining maturities and redemptions as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of . As of
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Carrying ~ Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(Millions)
PSE&G Cumulative Preferred Stock .. ............. : $ 80 $ 59 $ 80 $ 66
Monthly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in ‘ , ‘ :
PSE&G’s Subordinated Debentures ... ........... $ 60 $ 62 $ 60 $ 60
Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in
PSE&G’s Subordinated Debentures ... ........... $ 95 $ 97 $ 95 $ 96
Quarterly Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interest in ‘
PSEG’s Subordinated Debentures. . .. .. .......... $705 $673 - 8525 $520
Participating Units in PSEG’s Subordinated Debentures . . $460 $459 $ — $ —
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Long-Term Debt

December 31,

Maturity 2002 2001
PSEG (Millions)
Senior Note-6.89% (A) . . oo o vt e 2009 $ 245 $ —
Floating Rate Notes—LIBOR plus 0.875% . ... ......... .. ..... 2002 —_ 275
Other . . . 3 —
Principal Amount Outstanding . .. ......... ... ... .......... 248 275
Amounts Due Within One Year (B). . ... ...... .. ... . ....... — (275)
Total Long-Term Debt of PSEG (Parent) . . . . .. [P $ 248 $ —
PSE&G
First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds:
6.125% . o o 2002 $ — $ 258
6.875%-8.875%. . . o e 2003 300 300
0.50% . o o 2004 286 286
0025% ..o 2005 125 125
.75 o 2006 147 147
0.25%0 . o 2007 113 113
6.75%~T.375% . . .« oo 2013-2017 330 330
6.45%-9.25% . . . . 2018-2022 139 139
520%-7.50% . ... ... P 2023-2027 434 434
545%—0.55% . . .o 2028-2032 499 499
500%-8.00% . ... ot 2033-2037 160 160
Medium-Term Notes:
SA25% (C). oo 2012 300 —
TA0% . . 2002 — 290
8I0%—-8.16% . . . . . o 2008-2012 60 60
TOA% . 2018-2022 9 9
TASD=TA8% . . . o oo e 2023-2027 39 39
Principal Amount Qutstanding . . . .. ...... ... .. ... . ... 2,941 3,189
Amounts Due WithinOne Year (B). . . ... ................... (300) (547)
Net Unamortized Discount. . . .. . .......... ... . ... ' (14) (16)
Total Long-Term Debt of PSE&G (Parent). . . ... ........... $2.627 $2,626
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December 31,

Maturity 2002 2001
Transition Funding (PSE&G) (Millions)
Securitization Bonds:
— $ 52
300 369
183 183
496 496
328 328
454 454
220 220
370 370
Principal Amount Outstanding 2,351 2,472
Amounts Due Within One Year (B) (129) (121)
Total Securitization Debt of Transition Funding $2,222 $2,351
Total PSE&G $4,849 $4,977
Power
Senior Notes:

B.88D . . e e 2006 $ 500 $ 500

6.95% (D) . . v oo 2012 600 —

I8 . o e 2011 800 800

B30 . o i 2031 500 500
Total Senior NOES . . . . vt it e e e $2,400 $1,800
Pollution Control Notes:

5000 . .o e 2012 $ 66 $ 66

5.50%0 . o e 2020 14 14

5 S . i e e 2027 19 19

S575% .« 2031 25 25
Total Pollution Control Notes . . . . .. ... ... it $ 124 $ 124
Non-recourse debt:

Variable (3.00% to 5.00%) . . . ... ... ... 2005 $ 800 $ 770
Principal Amount Qutstanding . . ... ..... ... .. ... .. ....... 3,324 2,694
Amounts Due WithinOne Year (B). . .. .......... ... .. ... ... — —
Net Unamortized Discount. . . .. ....... ... ... . ... .. ...... &) 9)

Total Long-Term Debt of Power. . . .. ................... $3,316 $2,685
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December 31,

Maturity 2002 2001
Energy Holdings (Millions)
Senior Notes:
0125% (E). . o o 2004 $ 279 3 300
B.625% (E)(F). . . o 2008 507 400
10.00% . .o 2009 400 400
850%(E) .+ o v 2011 544 550
Principal Amount Outstanding . .. .. .......... ... ... ..... 1,730 1,650
Net Unamortized Discount. . .. .. .. ... ... . ... ... . ....... ) (6)
Total Long-Term Debt of Energy Holdings (Parent). . . ... ..... $ 1,725 § 1,644
PSEG Capital (Energy Holdings)
Medium-Term Notes:
312%-T.72% . . . o 2002 $ — $ 228
0.25%0 . o 2003 252 252
Principal Amount Outstanding . .. .......... ... ... ... . ..., 252 480
Amounts Due Within One Year (B). . .. ........ ... .......... (252) (228)
Total Long-Term Debt of PSEG Capital ... ............... $ — § 232
Global (Energy Holdings)
Non-recourse Debt:
S547%-10385% . . o o e 2002 8 — & 14
519%—6.96% . . . .. 2003 67 38
SA9%—1322% . . oo 2004-2019 832 564
14.00%-Minority Shareholder Loan. . .. .. ................. 2027 — 10
Principal Amount Outstanding . .. ... ... .. .. ... . ... .. ... 399 626
Amounts Due Within One Year (B). . . . .. .. ... ... . ... ... .... (67) (14
Total Long-Term Debt of Global . . ............ ... .. ... $ 832 § 612
Resources (Energy Holdings)
8.60%—Bank Loan. . . ... .. ... .. .. 20012020 $ 22§ 23
Principal Amount Outstanding . .. ........... ... .. ... ..... 22 23
Amounts Due Within One Year (B) . ....................... (1) (1)
Total Long-Term Debt of Resources . . ... ......... ... ... $ 21 $ 22
Total Long-Term Debt of Energy Holdings . ............... $ 2,578 $ 2,530
Total PSEG Consolidated Long-Term Debt. . . ... ......... $10,991 $10,192

(A) In October 2002, PSEG closed on a $245 million private placement debt transaction with a five-year

average life, with the proceeds being used to reduce short-term debt.

(B) The aggregate principal amounts of mandatory requirements for sinking funds and maturities for each

of the five years following December 31, 2002 are as follows:

FINANCIAL REVIEW 109




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~ Continued

Note 11. Schedule of Consolidated Debt (Continued)

PSE&G Energy Holdings
Transition PSEG Energy PSEG
PSEG PSE&G Funding Power Holdings Capital Global Resources Total
(Millions)
$— $300 $ — $ — $252 $ 67
286 — — 41
125 — — — 47
147 — 500 — — 52
113 300 — — — 52

$971 $300 $1,300 $276 $252 $259

$ 620

700

(C) InSeptember 2002, PSE&G issued $300 million of 5.125% Medium-Term Notes due 2012, the proceeds
of which were used to repay $290 million of 7.19% Medium-Term Notes that matured.

(D) InJune 2002, Power issued $600 million of 6.95% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012. The proceeds were
used to repay short-term funding from PSEG, including amounts related to the Gas Contract Transfer
from PSE&G in May 2002.

(E) In 2002, Energy Holdings repurchased a combined total of $54 million of Senior Notes.

(F) In2002, Energy Holdings, in a private placement, sold $135 million of 8.625% Senior Notes due in 2008
and subsequently completed an exchange offer for these Senior Notes.

Short-Term Liquidity

PSEG

In order to support its short-term financing requirements, as well as those of Power and Services, PSEG has
revolving credit facilities that are used both as a source of short-term funding and to provide backup liquidity for
its $1 billion commercial paper program.

PSE&G

PSE&G maintains credit facilities to backup its $400 million commercial paper program.

Power

Power has a $50 million credit facility, but primarily relies on PSEG for its short-term financing needs.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings has credit facilities that are used both as a source of short-term funding and to issue letters
of credit.

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Heldings

As of December 31, 2002, PSEG had a total of approximately $2.5 billion of committed credit facilities, with
approximately $600 million drawn against such facilities resulting in $1.9 billion in available liquidity. In addition
to this amount, PSEG had access to certain uncommitted credit facilities. The following table summarizes the
various revolving credit facilities of PSEG and its subsidiaries and the liquidity available as of December 31, 2002.
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‘ Available
o Expiration Total Primary Usage at Liquidity at
Company Date Facility Purpose 12/31/02 12/31/02
(Millions)

PSEG:
364-day Credit Facility..... March 2003 $620 CP Support $300 $320
364-day Bilateral Facility .. March 2003 $ 75 CP Support § — § 75
5-year Credit Facility ...... March 2005 $280 CP Support $ — $280
3-year Credit Facility ...... December 2003 $350 CP Support/Funding $ — $350
Uncommitted Bilateral

Agreement............. . N/A * Funding 3101 N/A
PSE&G:
364-day Credit Facility..... June 2003 $200 CP Support $183 $ 17
3-year Credit Facility ...... June 2005 $200 CP Support $ — $200
Uncommitted Bilateral

Agreement............... N/A * Funding $ 41 N/A
Energy Holdings:
364-day Credit Facility..... May 2003 $200 Funding $ — $200
5-year Credit Facility ...... May 2004 $493 Funding § 74 $421
Uncommitted Bilateral

Agreement............... N/A * Funding $ — N/A
Power:

3-year Credit Facility ...... August 2005 $ 50 Funding $ 6 $ 44

*Availability varies based on market conditions.

As of December 31, 2002, PSEG’s consolidated total short-term debt outstanding was $762 million, including
$300 million of commercial paper and $101 million in loans outstanding under PSEG’s uncommitted bilateral
agreement, $183 million in commercial paper and $41 million in loans outstanding under PSE&G’s uncommitted
bilateral agreement and $137 million of non-recourse short-term financing at Global with various rates, primarily
consisting of amounts related to its investment in Electroandes. ‘

In addition, as shown in the above table, there was $74 million and $6 million outstanding in letters of credit
under the credit facilities of Energy Holdings and Power, respectively.

Fair Value of Debt

The estimated fair values were determined using the market quotations or values of instruments with similar
terms, credit ratings, remaining maturities and redemptions as of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively.
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December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

(Millions)

Long-Term Debt:
$ 248 $ 249 $ 275 $ 275
$2,898 $2,730 $2,773 $2,834
$2,927 $3,211 $3,173 $3,290
$2,351 $2,543 $2,472 $2,575
$3,316 $3,372 $2,685 $2,835

Because their maturities are less than one year, fair values approximate carrying amounts for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term debt and accounts payable.

Note 12. Risk Management

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

The operations of PSEG, PSE&G, Power, and Energy Holdings are exposed to market risks from changes in
commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices that could affect the results of
operations and financial conditions. PSEG manages its exposure to these market risks through its regular operating
and financing activities and, when deemed appropriate, hedges these risks through the use of derivative financial
instruments. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings use the term hedge to mean a strategy designed to manage
risks of volatility in prices or rate movements on certain assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions and by creating
a relationship in which gains or losses on derivative instruments are expected to counterbalance the losses or gains
on the assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions exposed to such market risks. Each of PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings use derivative instruments as risk management tools consistent with its respective business
plans and prudent business practices.

Energy Trading Contracts

Power

Power maintains a strategy of entering into trading positions to optimize the value of its portfolio of generation
assets, gas supply contracts and its electric and gas supply obligations. Power does not engage in the practice of
simultaneous trading for the purpose of increasing trading volume or revenue. Power engages in physical and
financial transactions in the electricity wholesale markets and executes an overall risk management strategy to
mitigate the effects of adverse movements in the fuel and electricity markets. Power actively trades energy and
energy-related products, including electricity, natural gas, electric capacity, fixed transmission rights, coal and
emission allowances, in the spot, forward and futures markets, primarily in Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland
Power Pool (PJM), and electricity in the Super Region, which extends from Maine to the Carolinas and the Atlantic
Coast to Indiana and natural gas in the producing region, the Henry Hub Basin, as well as the Super Region. These
contracts also involve financial transactions including swaps, options and futures.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, Power marked to market its energy trading contracts in accordance
with EITF 02-3 and SFAS 133, see Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. As of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, substantially all of these contracts had terms of two years or less. Wherever possible,
market values for these contracts were obtained from quoted market sources. For contracts where no quoted market
exists, modeling techniques were employed using assumptions reflective of current market rates, yield curves and
forward prices as applicable. Only one such contract which expires in 2003, is marked to a model and has an effect
on earnings. The effects on earnings of the contract that was marked to a model was immaterial.
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In prior periods, Power disclosed gains and losses related to certain activities within its trading segment.
Commencing with its change in segment reporting discussed in Note 19. Financial Information by Business
Segments, Power has excluded certain transactions, such as firm transmission rights and Basic Gas Supply Service
(BGSS) results, from this table and solely report gains and losses on transactions accounted for pursuant to EITF
02-3. There was no change in margins, net income or cash flows as a result of this change in presentation. Prior
periods have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, Power recorded net margins of $47 million,
$130 million and $73 million, respectively, as shown below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(Millions)
Realized Gains . .. ........ ... ... .. ...... $38 $163 $23
Unrealized Gains (Losses) . ................. 17 _(26) 55
Gross Margin . ......... .. ... ... ... 55 137 78
Broker Fees and Other Trading-Related Expense . . . _ 8 1 5
NetMargin........................... $47 3130 $73

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the cumulative unrealized gains related to these energy trading contracts
were approximately $24 million and $7 million, respectively. The contracts related to the majority of these gains
had terms of less than two years.

Power routinely enters into exchange-traded futures and options transactions for electricity and natural gas
as part of its operations. Generally, exchange-traded futures contracts require a deposit of margin cash, the amount
of which is subject to change based on market movement and in accordance with exchange rules. The amount of
Power’s margin deposits as of December 31, 2002 was approximately $9 million.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
Commodity Contracts

Power

The availability and price of energy commodities are subject to fluctuations from factors such as weather,
environmental policies, changes in supply and demand, state and federal regulatory policies and other events.

In order to hedge a portion of Power’s forecasted energy purchases to meet its electric supply requirements,
Power enters into forward purchase contracts, futures, options and swaps. These contracts, in conjunction with
owned electric generation capacity, are designed to cover estimated wholesale electric customer commitments.
Power has also forecasted the energy delivery from its generating stations based on the forward price curve
movement of energy and, as a result, entered into swaps, options and futures transactions to hedge the price of gas
to meet its gas purchases requirements for generation. These transactions qualified as cash flow hedges under SFAS
133. As of December 31, 2002 the fair value of these hedges was $5 million. Unrealized gains and losses associated
with these hedges of $3 million, net of tax, was charged to OCI for the year ended December 31, 2002. There was
no ineffectiveness associated with these hedges. These hedges will mature through 2003.

Also, prior to May 2002, PSE&G had entered into gas forwards, futures, options and swaps to hedge its forecasted
requirements for natural gas, which was required under an agreement with the BPU in 2001. Effective with the transfer
of PSE&G’s gas contracts to Power on May 1, 2002, Power acquired all of the derivatives entered into by PSE&G.
The use of derivatives to hedge the forecasted purchase of natural gas qualifed as a cash flow hedge. Gains or losses
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from these derivatives is recovered from customers as part of the monthly billing to PSE&G. Derivatives relating
to commercial and industrial customers is accounted for in accordance with SFAS 133 where appropriate. Gains or
losses on these derivatives are deferred and reported as a component of OCL There was no ineffectiveness or excluded
ineffectiveness realized on these hedges. As of December 31, 2002 Power had gas forwards, futures, options and swaps
to hedge forecasted requirements with a fair value of approximately $1.4 million. The maximum term of these contracts
is approximately one year. As of December 31, 2001, PSE&G had gas forwards, futures, options and-swaps to hedge
forecasted requirements with a fair value of approximately $(137) million.

Power also enters into certain other contracts which are derivatives, but do not qualify for hedge accounting
under SFAS 133, which was adopted effective January 1, 2001. Most of these contracts are option contracts on
gas purchases for generation requirements. Therefore, the changes in fair market value of these derivative contracts
are recorded in Energy Costs on the Consolidated Statement of Operations at the end of each reporting period. For
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, Power recorded gains on these contracts of $20 million and
$12 million, respectively, as shown below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001
(Miilions)
Realized Gains (Losses). . .. ........... $(D $23
Unrealized Gains (Losses) . ... ......... 21 (1D
Gross Margin ... ............ .. ... $20 $12

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the cumulative unrealized gains and losses related to these contracts were
approximately $20 million and $(7) million, respectively. The contracts related to the majority of these gains and
losses had terms of less than two years.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, substantially ali of these contracts had terms of two years or less and
were valued through market exchanges and, where necessary, broker quotes.

Interest Rates

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings are subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal
course of business. PSEG’s policy is to manage interest rate risk through the use of fixed rate debt, floating rate
debt and interest rate derivatives.

The fair value of interest rate swaps, designated and effective as cash flow hedges, are initially recorded in OCL
Reclassification of unrealized gains or losses on cash flow hedges of variable-rate debt instruments from OCI into
earnings occurs as interest payments are accrued on the debt instrument and generally offsets the change in the interest
accrued on the underlying variable rate debt. In order to test the effectiveness of such swaps, a hypothetical swap
is used to mirror all the critical terms of the underlying debt and utilize regression analysis to assess the effectiveness
of the actual swap at inception and on an ongoing basis. The assessment is done periodically to ensure the swaps
continue to be effective. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings determine the fair value of interest rate swaps
through counterparty valuations, internal valuations and broker quotes. There have been no material changes in the
techniques or models used in the valuation of interest rate swaps during the periods presented. There is minimal impact
of counterparty credit risk on the fair value of the hedges since each of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings’
policies require that its respective counterparties have investment grade credit ratings. ‘

Ineffectiveness may occur if the actual draw down of the debt and the notional amount of the swap during the
construction phase are different. The amount of ineffectiveness, if any, isrecorded in earnings at the end of the reporting
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period. The impact of ineffectiveness on net income should be minimal because the interest rate swaps and the
underlying debt are indexed to the same benchmark interest rate. Therefore, interest rate fluctuations should be offset.

The table below displays fair value, ineffectiveness and OCI information relating to PSEG, PSE&G, Power
and Energy Holdings’ interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2002 and 2001:

OCt
0C1 Losses Maturity of
Losses to be Longest
Fair Market Value Ineffectiveness Reclassed Reclassed Cash Flow
2002 2001 2002 2001 in 2002 in 2003 Hedge
(Millions)
PSEG ............... $ 2D 55 $— $— $6 $6 2008
PSE&G (A) ......... (66) (19) — — — — 2011
Power ............... €] 2 — 3) 2005
Energy Holdings ... (138) (73) — — 12 16 2018
$(234) $(95) $— $— $15 $22

|
|

(A) Amounts at PSE&G relate to an interest rate swap at Transition Funding, which is offset by a Regulatory
Asset of $66 million.

Equity Securities

Energy Holdings

During 2002, Resources recognized a $38 million (pre-tax) loss from other than temporary impairments of
non-publicly traded equity securities within certain leveraged buyout funds and other investments, which is included
in Operating Revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2002, Resources had
investments in leveraged buyout funds of approximately $93 million, of which $24 million was comprised of public
securities with available market prices and $69 million was comprised of non-publicly traded securities.
Comparably, as of December 31, 2001, Resources had investments in leveraged buyout funds of approximately
$130 million, of which $34 million was comprised of public securities with available market prices and $96 million
was comprised of non-publicly traded securities.

Foreign Currencies

Energy Holdings

As of December 31, 2002, net foreign currency devaluations have reduced the reported amount of Energy
Holdings’ total Member’s Equity by $307 million, of which $202 million and $103 million were caused by the
devaluation of the Brazilian Real and the Chilean Peso, respectively. For the net foreign currency devaluations for
the period ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, see Energy Holdings” Consolidated Statements of Member’s Equity.

Global holds a 60% ownership interest in Carthage Power Company (CPC), a Tunisian generation facility.
The Power Purchase Agreement (PPA), signed in 1999 and extending through 2022, contains an embedded
derivative that indexes the fixed Tunisian Dinar payments to US Dollar exchange rates. This embedded derivative
is the longest standing foreign currency hedge that is outstanding. The indexation portion of the PPA is considered
an embedded derivative and has been recognized and valued separately as a derivative instrument. As currencies
devalue/revalue in relation to the US Dollar, the derivative increases/decreases in value equal to the discounted
present value of additional units of foreign currency (measured in US Dollars) over the life of the PPA. This
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increased/decreased value is reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset/liability. To the extent that
such indexation is provided to hedge foreign currency debt exposure, the offsetting amount is recorded in OCI.
Amounts will be reclassified from OCI to earnings over the life of the debt. To the extent such indexation is provided
to hedge an equity return in US Dollars, the offsetting amount is recorded in earnings. As of December 31, 2002
and 2001, Global has recorded a derivative asset of $26 million and $35 million, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, Global recorded a loss of $7 miilion, after taxes and minority interest, related to this embedded
derivative, offsetting $8 million in foreign currency gains from the US Dollar debt at CPC. This was the only
ineffectiveness that was present for the year ended December 31, 2002 and was immaterial to earnings. As of
December 31, 2001, Global recorded a loss of $10 million to earnings, after tax and minority interest, of which
$9 million was recorded as a Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle.

In May 2002, Energy Holdings purchased foreign currency call options in order to hedge its average 2002
earnings denominated in Brazilian Reais and in Peruvian Nuevo Soles for the remainder of 2002. These options are
not considered hedges for accounting purposes under SFAS 133 and, as a result, changes in their fair value are recorded
directly to earnings. Global recorded a gain of $1 million related to Brazilian and Peruvian option contracts that expired
during 2002. In December 2002, Energy Holdings purchased foreign currency call options in order to hedge its average
2003 earnings denominated in Chilean Pesos and Peruvian Nuevo Soles for the entire 2003 year. Changes in the fair
value of these options are recorded directly to earnings. As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings had recorded
a derivative asset of $2 million related to these assets. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the impact on earnings
as a result of changes in fair value of these instruments was immaterial.

During 2001, Global purchased approximately 100% of a Chilean distribution company, Sociedad Austral de
Electricidad S.A. (SAESA). As a requirement to obtain certain debt financing necessary to fund the acquisition,
and in order to hedge against fluctuations in the US Dollar to Chilean Peso foreign exchange rates, Global entered
into two forward contracts with notional values of $75 million each to exchange Chilean Pesos for US Dollars.
These transactions expired in October 2002 but were renewed through January 2003. For accounting purposes, these
transactions were considered hedges, whereby changes in fair value were recorded to OCI, until July 2002, when
SAESA and its holding companies were restructured. Subsequent to July 2002, the changes in fair value of these
instruments were recorded to earnings, and serve to offset currency gains or losses on SAESA’s US Dollar
denominated debt. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Global had recorded a derivative asset of $3 million and
$4 million, respectively, and a permanent OCI balance related to the hedge of $6 million. For the period from July
2002 through December 2002, Global recorded an after-tax loss of $7 million related to this hedge, offset by after-tax
currency gains on the debt of approximately $8 million.

Global holds a 32% ownership interest in a Brazilian distribution company, Rio Grande Energia (RGE), whose
debt is denominated in US Dollars. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Global’s pro-rata share of such debt was
approximately $49.3 million and $60 million, respectively. In order to hedge the risk of fluctuations in the exchange
rate between the Brazilian Real and US Dollar associated with the principal payments due in May, June and July of
2003 through 2005, RGE entered into a series of nine cross currency interest rate swaps in January 2002. The
instruments convert the variable LIBOR-based principal payments to a variable CDI (the Brazilian inter-bank offered
rate) based payments. As a result, RGE has hedged its foreign currency exposure but is still at risk for variability
in the Brazilian CDI interest rate during the term of the instruments. Global’s share of the notional value of these
instruments totals approximately $15 million per year for the instruments maturing in 2003 and 2004 and totals
approximately $19 million per year for the instruments maturing in 2005. For accounting purposes, fluctuations in
the fair value of the interest rate component of these cross currency swaps is recorded directly to earnings.

The fair value of foreign currency derivatives, designated and effective as cash flow hedges, are initially
recorded in OCI. Reclassification of unrealized gains or losses on cash flow hedges from OClI into earnings generally
occurs when the hedged transaction is recorded in earnings and generally offsets the change in the value of the
hedged item. Energy Holdings estimates reclassifying less than $1 million of foreign exchange gains from foreign
currency cash flow hedges, including Energy Holdings’ pro-rata share from its equity method investees, from OCI
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to the Consolidated Statements of Operations over the next 12 months. For the period ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, Josses transferred from OCI to the Consolidated Statements of Operations were less than $1 million.

Credit Risk

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that would occur as a result of non-performance by counterparties pursuant
to the terms of their contractual obligations. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings have established credit
policies to minimize credit risk. These policies include an evaluation of potential counterparties’ financial condition
(including credit rating), collateral requirements under certain circumstances and the use of standardized agreements,
which may allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty.

Power

Through the BGS auctions, Power contracted to provide generating capacity to the direct suppliers of New
Jersey electric utilities commencing August 1, 2002. These bilateral contracts are subject to credit risk. This credit
risk relates to the ability of counterparties to meet their payment obligations for the power delivered under each
BGS contract. This risk is substantially higher than the risk associated with potential nonpayment by PSE&G under
the BGS contract that expired July 31, 2002. Any failure to collect these payments under the BGS contracts could
have a material impact on Power’s results of operations, cash flows and financial position.

Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Nuclear Insurance Coverages and Assessments

Power

Power is a member of an industry mutual insurance company, Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL).
NEIL provides the primary property and decontamination liability insurance at the Salem, Hope Creek and Peach
Bottom nuclear facilities. NEIL also provides excess property insurance through its decontamination liability,
decommissioning liability and excess property policy and replacement power coverage through its accidental outage
policy. NEIL policies may make retrospective premium assessments in case of adverse loss experience. Power’s
maximum potential liabilities under these assessments are included in the table and notes below. Certain provisions
in the NEIL policies provide that the insurer may suspend coverage with respect to all nuclear units on a site without
notice if the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) suspends or revokes the operating license for any unit on a
site, issues a shutdown order with respect to such unit or issues a confirmatory order keeping such unit shutdown.

The American Nuclear Insurers (ANI) and NEIL policies both include coverage for claims arising out of acts
of terrorism. The ANI policies are subject to an industry aggregate limit of $200 million, subject to one reinstatement
provided the reinstatement does not exceed the balance in the Industry Credit Rating Plan reserve fund. The NEIL
Policies are subject to an industry aggregate limit of $3.24 billion plus any amounts available through reinsurance
or indemnity.

The Price-Anderson Act sets the “limit of liability” for claims that could arise from an incident involving any
licensed nuclear facility in the United States. The “limit of liability” is based on the number of licensed nuclear
reactors and 1s adjusted at least every five years based on the Consumer Price Index. The current “limit of liability”
is $9.45 billion. All utilities owning a nuclear reactor, including Power, have provided for this exposure through
a combination of private insurance and mandatory participation in a financial protection pool, as established by
the Price-Anderson Act. Under the Price-Anderson Act, each party with an ownership interest in a nuclear reactor
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can be assessed its share of $88.1 million per reactor per incident, payable at $10 million per reactor per incident
per year. If the damages exceed the “limit of liability,” the President is to submit to Congress a plan for providing
additional compensation to the injured parties. Congress could impose further revenue raising measures on the
nuclear industry to pay claims. Power’s maximum aggregate assessment per incident is $277 million (based on
Power’s ownership interests in Hope Creek, Peach Bottom and Salem) and its maximum aggregate annual
assessment per incident is approximately $32 million. This does not include the $11 million that could be assessed
under the nuclear worker policies. Further, a decision by the US Supreme Court, not involving Power, has held
that the Price-Anderson Act did not preclude awards based on state law claims for punitive damages.

Power’s insurance coverages and maximum retrospective assessments for its nuclear operations are as follows:

. PSEG
Total Site Power LLC
Type and Source of Coverages Coverage  Assessments
(Mitlions)
Public and Nuclear Worker Liability (Primary Layer):
American Nuclear Insurers (ANI) . . . ... ... ... .. ... . ...... $ 200A) §$ 11
Nuclear Liability (Excess Layer):
Price-Anderson ACL. . . . .. e 9,249 (B) 277
Nuclear Liability Total . . . . ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... $9,449 (C) $288
Property Damage (Primary Layer):
Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL)
Primary (Salem/Hope Creek/Peach Bottom) . . .. .................. § 500 $ 20
Property Damage (Excess Layers):
NEIL II (Salem/Hope Creek/Peach Bottom) . .. .............. ... 600 8
NEIL Blanket Excess '
(Salem/Hope Creek/Peach Bottom) . . ... ... ... .. ... .. ..... 1,000 (D) 3
Property Damage Total (Per Site) . ... ............. ... ... ... $2,100 $ 31
Accidental Qutage: ,
NEIL I (Peach Bottom) . . . ....... ... ..., $ 245(E) $ 9
NEIL T (Salem) .. ... . e e 281 11
NEIL I (Hope Creek) ... ... . i, 490 9
Replacement Power Total . ... ... ... ... .. ..., $1,016 $ 29

ll

(A) The primary limit for Public Liability is a per site aggregate limit with no potential for assessment. The
Nuclear Worker Liability represents the potential liability from workers claiming exposure to the hazard
of nuclear radiation. This coverage is subject to an industry aggregate limit, includes annual automatic
reinstatement if the Industry Credit Rating Plan (ICRP) Reserve Fund exceeds $400 million, and has an
assessment potential under former canceled policies.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Nuclear Worker Liability and the Primary Layer of American Nuclear
Insurers was increased to $300 million.

(B) Retrospective premium program under the Price- Anderson liability provisions of the Atomic Energy Act
of 1954, as amended. Power is subject to retrospective assessment with respect to loss from an incident
at any licensed nuclear reactor in the United States. This retrospective assessment can be adjusted for
inflation every five years. The last adjustment was effective as of August 20, 1998. This retrospective
program is in excess over the Public and Nuclear Worker Liability primary layers.
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(C) -Limit of liability under the Price-Anderson Act for each nuclear incident.

(D) For property limits in excess of $1.1 billion, Power participates in a Blanket Limit policy where the
$1 billion limit is shared by Amergen, Exelon, and Power among the Braidwood, Byron, Clinton, Dresden,
La Salle, Limerick, Oyster Creek, Quad Cities, TMI-1 facilities owned by Amergen and Exelon and the
Peach Bottom, Salem and Hope Creek facilities. This limit is not subject to reinstatement in the event
of a loss. Participation in this program significantly reduces Power’s premium and the associated potential
assessment. '

(E) Peach Bottom has an aggregate indemnity limit based on a weekly indemnity of $2.3 million for 52 weeks
followed by 80% of the weekly indemnity for 68 weeks. Salem has an aggregate indemnity limit based
on a weekly indemnity of $2.5 million for 52 weeks followed by 80% of the weekly indemnity for 75
weeks. Hope Creek has an aggregate indemnity limit based on a weekly indemnity of $4.5 million for
52 weeks followed by 80% of the weekly indemnity for 71 weeks.

Old Dominion Electric Cooperative (ODEC)

PSE&G and Power

In 1995, PSE&G entered into a ten-year wholesale power contract with ODEC. The contract was transferred
to Power in conjunction with the generation asset transfer in 2000. The contract provides for PSE&G to supply
ODEC with capacity and energy for a bundled rate that includes a component to recover multiple transmission
charges (referred to as “pancaked transmission rates”).

In November 1997, FERC issued the PIM Restructuring Order, which required PSE&G to modify its contract
with ODEC to remove pancaked transmission rates. While PSE&G sought rehearing of this order, it was nonetheless
required to reduce its rate to ODEC by approximately $6 million per year, effective April 1, 1998. In 2000, FERC
issued its order denying PSE&G'’s request for rehearing. Thereafter, PSE&G appealed to the US Court of Appeals
for judicial review of the matter.

In July 2002, the Court ruled that FERC had not met its burden to justify modification of the ODEC contract.
On December 19, 2002, based on the Court ruling, FERC reversed its November 1997 order thereby reinstating
the original contract terms. This allows Power to collect amounts for April 1998 through December 2002 that would
not have otherwise been collected over the contract term. The difference in revenues between the contracted rate
and the FERC-ordered reduced rate is approximately $30 million, inclusive of back interest and represents a gain
contingency to Power. Power billed ODEC for this amount in January 2003 and will record this gain when realized.

Guaranteed Obligations

Power

Power has guaranteed certain commodity related transactions for its subsidiary, ER&T, which is involved in
energy marketing activities. These guarantees were provided to counterparties in order to facilitate physical and
financial agreements in gas, pipeline capacity, transportation, oil, electricity and related commodities and services.
These Power guarantees support the current exposure (net billed and unbilled energy plus mark-to-market value
on open positions), interest and other costs on sums due and payable by ER&T under these agreements. Guarantees
offered for trading and marketing cover the granting of lines of credit between entities and are often reciprocal in
nature. The exposure between counterparties can go either direction. If the exposure were one directional at year-end
with all contracts “out-of-the-money” for Power, then the maximum liability (face value) of the guarantees on
December 31, 2002 and 2001 would be $1.1 billion and $506 million, respectively. The probability of all contracts
at ER&T being simultaneously “out-of-the-money” given the nature of ER&T’s asset backed transactions is highly
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unlikely. For this reason, the current exposure at any point in time is a more meaningful representation of the liability
under these guarantees. The current exposure from such liabilities was $268 million and $153 million as of
December 31, 2002, and 2001, respectively. To the extent liabilities exist under the commodity related contracts
subject to these guarantees, such liabilities are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

"In addition, all Master Agreements and other supply contracts contain margin and/or other collateral
requirements that, as of December 31, 2002, could require Power to post additional collateral of approximately
$320 million if Power were to lose its investment grade credit rating.

As of December 31, 2002, letters of credit issued by Power were outstanding in the amount of approximately
$73 million in support of various contractual obligations.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings and/or Global have guaranteed certain obligations of Global’s subsidiaries or affiliates, including
the successful completion, performance or other obligations related to certain projects in an aggregate amount of
approximately $339 million as of December 31, 2002. The guarantees include a $61 million equity commitment for
ELCHO in Poland, a $55 million standby equity commitment for Skawina in Poland, $56 million of various guarantees
for Dhofar Power Company in Oman and a $25 million contingent guarantee related to debt service obligations of
Chilquinta Energia Finance L.L.C. in connection with electric distribution companies in Chile and Peru. Additional
guarantees consist of a $35 million leasing agreement guarantee for Prisma in Italy, $27 million in standby letters of
credit for SAESA (which were eliminated upon the refinancing at SAESA in January 2003) and various other guarantees
comprising the remaining $49 million. A substantial portion of such guarantees will be cancelled upon successful
completion, performance and/or refinancing of construction debt with non-recourse project debt.

In the normal course of business, Energy Technologies secures construction obligations with performance
bonds issued by insurance companies. Prior to January 2003, in the event that Energy Technologies’ tangible equity
was reduced to an amount less than $100 million, Energy Holdings would have been required to provide additional
support for the performance bonds. Tangible equity is defined as net equity less goodwill. As of December 31, 2002,
Energy Technologies’ tangible equity was $105 million. As of December 31, 2002, Energy Technologies had
$228 million of such bonds outstanding, of which $45 million was at risk in ongoing construction projects. The
performance bonds are not included in the $339 million of guaranteed obligations discussed above. In January 2003,
Energy Holdings provided an indemnification agreement and $31 million of letters of credit to replace the
$100 million capital retention agreement referred to above. These amounts are expected to decrease over time as
Energy Technologies completes the work in process or transfers ownership to other companies.

Environmental Matters
PSE&G and Power

Hazardous Waste

The New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) regulations concerning site investigation
and remediation require an ecological evaluation of potential injuries to natural resources in connection with a
remedial investigation of contaminated sites. The NJDEP is presently working with the energy industry to develop
procedures for implementing these regulations. These regulations may substantially increase the costs of remedial
investigations and remediations, where necessary, particularly at sites situated on surface water bodies. PSE&G,
Power and predecessor companies own or owned and/or operate or operated certain facilities situated on surface
water bodies, certain of which are currently the subject of remedial activities. The financial impact of these
regulations on these projects is not currently estimable. PSEG does not anticipate that the compliance with these
regulations will have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or net cash flows.
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PSE&G

PSE&G Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation Program

PSE&G is currently working with the NJDEP under a program (Remediation Program) to assess, investigate
and, if necessary, remediate environmental conditions at PSE&G’s former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites. To
date, 38 sites have been identified. The Remediation Program is periodically reviewed and revised by PSE&G based
on regulatory requirements, experience with the Remediation Program and available remediation technologies. The
long-term costs of the Remediation Program cannot be reasonably estimated, but experience to date indicates that
at least $20 million per vear could be incurred over a period of about 30 vears since inception of the program in 1988
and that the overall cost could be material. The costs for this remediation effort are recovered through the SBC.

As of December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s estimated liability for remediation costs through 2004 aggregated
$115 million. Expenditures beyond 2004 cannot be reasonably estimated.

Passaic River Site

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has determined that a nine mile stretch of the
Passaic River in the area of Newark, New Jersey is a “facility” within the meaning of that term under the Federal
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 and that, to date, at least thirteen
corporations, including PSE&G, may be potentially liable for performing required remedial actions to address
potential environmental pollution in the Passaic River “facility.”

In a separate matter, PSE&G and certain of its predecessors conducted industrial operations at properties within
the Passaic River facility. The operations included one operating electric generating station, one former generating
station and four former MGPs. PSE&G’s costs to clean up former MGPs are recoverable from utility customers
through the SBC. PSE&G has sold the site and obtained releases and indemnities for liabilities arising out of the
site in connection with the sale. PSE&G cannot predict what action, if any, the EPA or any third party may take
against PSE&G with respect to this matter, or in such an event, what costs may be incurred to address any such
claims. However, such costs may be material.

Power

Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)/New Source Review(NSR)

The EPA and the NJDEP issued a demand in March 2000 under the Federal Clean Air Act (CAA) requiring
information to assess whether projects completed since 1978 at the Hudson and Mercer coal burning units were
implemented in accordance with applicable PSD/NSR regulations. Power completed its response to the information
request in November 2000. In January 2002, Power reached an agreement with New Jersey and the federal
governments to resolve allegations of noncompliance with federal and State of New Jersey PSD/NSR regulations.
Under that agreement, over the course of 10 years, Power must install advanced air pollution controls that are
designed to reduce emissions of NOx, SO,, particulate matter and mercury. The estimated cost of the program at
the time of the settlement was $337 million to be incurred through 2011, Power also paid a $1.4 million civil penalty
and has agreed to spend up to $6 million on supplemental environmental projects. The agreement resolving the
NSR allegations concerning the Hudson and Mercer coal-fired units also resolved the dispute over Bergen 2
regarding the applicability of PSD requirements, and allowed construction of the unit to be completed and operation
to commence.

Power has recently notified the EPA and the NJDEP that it is evaluating the continued operation of the Hudson
coal unit beyond 2006, in light of changes in the energy and capacity markets and increases in the cost of pollution
contro] equipment and other necessary modifications. A decision is expected to be made in 2003 as to the Hudson
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unit’s continued operation. The related costs associated with these modification have not been included in Power’s
capital expenditure projections.

Industriél Site Recovery Act

Potential environmental liabilities related to subsurface contamination at certain generating stations have been
identified. The New Jersey statute that led to the identification is the Industrial Site Recovery Act (ISRA) that applies
to the sale of certain assets. In the second quarter of 1999, in anticipation of the transfer of PSE&G’s generation-
related assets to Power, a study was conducted to identify potential environmental liabilities and PSEG recorded
a $53 million liability related to these obligations, which is represented on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

New Generation and Development

Power

Power has revised its schedules for completion of several of its projects under development to provide better
sequencing of its construction program with anticipated market demand. This delay will allow Power to conserve
capital in 2003 and will allow it to take advantage of the expected recovery of the electric markets and their need
for capacity in 2005. ‘

Through an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary, Power is developing the Bethlehem Energy Center, a 763 MW
combined-cycle power plant that will replace the 376 MW Albany, NY Steam Station. Total costs for this project
are expected to be approximately $483 million with expenditures to date of approximately $170 million. Construction
began in 2002 with the expected completion date in 2005, at which time the existing station will be retired.

Power is constructing a 1,218 MW combined-cycle generation plant at Linden, New Jersey with costs estimated
at approximately $711 million and expenditures to date of approximately $564 million. Completion is expected
in 20085, at which time 451 MW of existing generating capacity at the site will be retired.

Power is constructing through indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries, two natural gas-fired combined cycle
electric generation plants in Waterford, Ohio (821 MW) and Lawrenceburg, Indiana (1,096 MW) at an estimated
aggregate total cost of $1.2 billion. Total expenditures to date on these projects have been approximately $1.0 billion.
The required estimated equity investment in these projects is approximately $400 million, with the remainder being
financed with non-recourse bank financing. As of December 31, 2002, approximately $275 million of equity has
been invested in these projects. In connection with these projects, ER&T has entered into a five-year tolling
agreement pursuant to which it is obligated to purchase the output of these facilities. Based on current prices, the
purchase price under this contract is currently above market. ER&T may terminate the agreement upon repayment
of the current financing scheduled for August 2005. Additional equity investments may be required if the proceeds
received from ER&T under this tolling agreement are not sufficient to cover the required payments under the bank
financing. The Waterford facility is currently scheduled to achieve commercial operation in June 2003. The
Lawrenceburg facility is currently scheduled to achieve commercial operation in November 2003.

Power also has contracts with outside parties to purchase upgraded turbines for the Salem Nuclear Generating
Station Units 1 and 2 and to purchase upgraded turbines and to purchase a power uprate for Hope Creek Generating
Station to increase its generating capacity. The contracts are subject to regulatory approval and the projects are
currently scheduled to be completed by 2004 for Salem Unit 1 and Hope Creek and 2006 for Salem Unit 2. Power’s
aggregate estimated costs for these projects are $210 million, with expenditures to date of approximately $40 million.

Power has commitments to purchase gas turbines and/or other services to meet its current plans to develop
additional generating capacity. The aggregate amount due under these commitments is approximately $480 million,
approximately $370 million of which is included in estimated costs for the projects discussed above. The
approximate $110 million remaining relates to obligations to purchase hardware and services that have not been
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designated to any specific projects. If Power does not contract to satisfy its commitment relating to the $110 million
in obligations by July 2003, it will be subject to penalties of up to $24 million.

Minimum Fuel Purchase Reguirements

Power

Power uses coal for its fossil electric generation stations. Power purchases coal through various contracts and

in the spot market. The total minimum purchase requirements included in these contracts amount to approximately
$75 million through 2003.

Power has several long-term purchase contracts with uranium suppliers, converters, enrichers and fabricators
to meet the currently projected fuel requirements for Salem and Hope Creek. On average, Power has various multi-
year requirements-based purchase commitments that total approximately $88 million per year to meet Salem and
Hope Creek fuel needs. Power has been advised by Exelon, the co-owner and operator of the Peach Bottom that
it has similar purchase contracts to satisfy the fuel requirements for Peach Bottom.

Nuclear Fuel Disposal

Power

After spent fuel is removed from a nuclear reactor, it is placed in temporary storage for cooling in a spent
fuel pool at the nuclear station site. Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 (NWPA), as amended, the Federal
government has entered into contracts with the operators of nuclear power plants for transportation and ultimate
disposal of the spent nuclear fuel. To pay for this service, nuclear plant owners are required to contribute to a Nuclear
Waste Fund at a rate of one mil ($0.001) per Kilowatt-hour (kWh) of nuclear generation ($21 million for 2002),
subject to such escalation as may be required to assure full cost recovery by the Federal government. Payments
made to the United States Department of Energy (DOE) for disposal costs are based on nuclear generation and
are included in Energy Costs in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Pursuant to NRC rules, spent nuclear fuel generated in any reactor can be stored in reactor facility storage
pools or in independent spent fuel storage installations located at reactor or away-from-reactor sites for at least 30
years beyond the licensed life for reactor operation (which may include the term of a revised or renewed license).
The availability of adequate spent fuel storage capacity is estimated through 2011 for Salem 1, 2015 for Salem
2 and 2007 for Hope Creek. Power presently expects to construct an on-site storage facility that would satisfy the
spent fuel storage needs of both Salem and Hope Creek through the end of the license life. This construction will
require certain regulatory approvals, the timely receipt of which cannot be assured. Exelon has advised us that it
has constructed an on-site storage facility at Peach Bottom that is now licensed and operational and can provide
storage capacity through the end of the current licenses for the two Peach Bottom units. Additional storage facilities
will need to be constructed if the licenses for these facilities are extended. If the DOE begins to take possession
of spent nuclear fuel, as discussed below, the need for additional storage capacity would be reduced.

Under the NWPA, the DOE was required to begin taking possession of the spent nuclear fuel by no later than
1998. The DOE has announced that it does not expect a facility to be available earlier than 2010. Exelon has advised
us that it had signed an agreement with the DOE applicable to Peach Bottom under which Exelon would be
reimbursed for costs incurred resulting from the DOE’s delay in accepting spent nuclear fuel. The agreement allows
Exelon to reduce the charges paid to the Nuclear Waste Fund to reflect costs reasonably incurred due to the DOE’s
delay. Past and future expenditures associated with Peach Bottom’s recently completed on-site dry storage facility
would be eligible for this reduction in DOE fees. Under this agreement, Power’s portion of Peach Bottom’s Nuclear
Waste Fund fees have been reduced by approximately $18 million through August 31, 2002, at which point the
credits were fully utilized and covered the cost of Exelon’s storage facility.
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In 2000, a group of eight utilities filed a petition against the DOE in the US Court of Appeal for the Eleventh
Circuit, seeking to set aside the receipt of credits by Exelon out of the Nuclear Waste Fund, as stipulated in the
Peach Bottom agreement. On September 24, 2002, the Court issued an opinion upholding the challenge by the
petitioners regarding the settlement agreement’s compensation provisions. Under the terms of the agreement, DOE
and Exelon are required to meet and discuss alternative funding sources for the settlement credits. Initial meetings
have occurred. The Eleventh Circuit’s opinion suggests that the federal judgment fund should be available as an
alternate source. The agreement provides that if such negotiations are unsuccessful, the agreement will be null and
void. Any payments required by Power resulting from a disallowance of the previously reduced fees would be
included in Energy Costs in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On September 26, 2001, Nuclear filed a complaint in the US Court of Federal Claims seeking damages caused
by the DOE not taking possession of spent nuclear fuel in 1998. No assurances can be given as to any damage
recovery or the ultimate availability of a disposal facility.

In October 2001, Power filed a complaint in the US Court of Federal Claims, along with a number of other
plaintiffs, seeking $28.2 million in relief from past overcharges by the DOE for enrichment services. No assurances
can be given as to any damage recovery.

In February 2002, President Bush announced that Yucca Mountain in Nevada would be the permanent disposal
facility for nuciear wastes. In April 2002, the Governor of Nevada submitted his veto to the siting decision and
in July 2002, Congress affirmed the President’s decision. The DOE must still license and construct the facility. No
assurances can be given regarding the final outcome of this matter.

Energy Holdings

Argentina

Global has certain contingent obligations that are likely to occur if certain projects in Argentina continue to
default on their debt and performance obligations. The estimated amount to cover this exposure is $7 million and
has been recorded as a component of Operating Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Under certain circumstances, Global could be obligated to settle its share (approximately $26 million) of a
project loan for EDELAP should it or the majority owner of the project, take certain actions including forcing or
permitting certain loan parties to declare bankruptcy. In addition, the guarantee can be triggered by transferring
the shares of certain loan parties without lender consent. Breach of this transfer covenant can be cured by delivering
certain pledge agreements relating to the ownership of loan parties to the lenders. Global could also be liable for
any incremental direct damages arising from the breach of these covenants. Given the likely cure of any breach
by the project sponsors, such a contingent obligation has a low probability of being triggered and, therefore, no
provision has been made in Global’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Under the terms of the settlement of
Global’s litigation with AES, AES is required to deliver pledge agreements that may be required under the loan
documents. For further information, see Note 4. Asset Impairments.

California

In May 2001, GWF Energy LLC (GWF Energy), a joint venture between Global and Harbinger GWF LLC
entered into a 10-year power purchase agreement (PPA) with the California Department of Water Resources
(CDWR) to provide approximately 340 MW of electric capacity to California from three new natural gas-fired
peaking plants, the Hanford, Henrietta and Tracy Peaker Plants. Total project cost for these plants is estimated at
approximately $345 million.

In 2002, GWF Energy entered into negotiations with the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and
the California Electricity Oversight Board (collectively the California Parties) resulting in the execution of (i) an
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amended-and restated PPA that has been affirmed. by the CPUC as “just and reasonable” and (ii) a settlement
agreement with the California Parties, the CDWR, the Governor of the State of California and the People of
California by and through the Attorney General.

The Hanford and Henrietta Peaker Plants were completed in August 2001 and in June 2002, respectively, and
the Tracy Peaker Plant, a 167 MW facility, is now under construction. The commercial operations date deadline
of the Tracy Peaker Plant is July 1, 2003 under the amended and restated PPA discussed above. As of December 31,
2002, Global’s equity investment in these plants was $228 million. Upon successful completion of project financing,
which is currently expected to occur in the second quarter of 2003, Global’s permanent equity investment in the
plants, including contingencies, is not expected to exceed $150 million. In the event financing does not occur,
Global’s investment in these plants could increase to approximately $293 million. Global’s ownership interest in
this project was 76% as of December 31, 2002. For a description of turbine loans and working capital loans from
Global to GWF Energy pending completion of project financing, see Note 22. Related-Party Transactions.

Chile

- Global owns SAESA, a group of companies that consists of four distribution companies and one transmission
company that provide electric service to customers in southern Chile. SAESA had a $150 million loan facility in
place that had an original maturity date of October 18, 2002 and is recorded as a component of Notes Payable and
Project Level Non-Recourse Debt on Energy Holdings” Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002.
The principal payment was not made as scheduled and the lending group agreed not to declare any payment defaults
or exercise any remedies with regard to that loan and accordingly a term sheet for an extension of the loan to April
2003 was agreed to. On January 17, 2003, SAESA issued bonds worth $114 million in the Chilean market. SAESA
divided the debt issue into a $61 million, 7-year bond with a coupon rate of 5.39% and another $54 million bond
maturing in 21 years at a rate of 6.6%. SAESA also signed a syndicated bank loan for $58 million. These funds

were used to repay the $150 million loan scheduled to mature in April 2003. In January 2003, Global contributed
an additional $55 million in equity and increased its investment in SAESA to $466 million.

Peru

In December 2001, Global acquired an interest in Electroandes, a 183 MW hydroelectric generation and
distribution company in Peru. Part of the purchase price was financed with a $100 million one year bridge loan
which.matured in December 2002. The loan facility provided that the maturity date could be extended for six months
if certain conditions were met. The loan was extended to June 2003 and a refinancing plan is underway.

India

Energy Holdings has a 20% interest in a 330 MW Naphtha/natural gas fired plant (PPN) in the Indian State
of Tamil Nadu. Energy Holdings’ investment exposure (investment less non-recourse debt) in this facility is
approximately $40 million. Power from the facility is sold under a long-term power purchase agreement with the
Tamil Nadu Electricity Board (TNEB) which sells the power to retail end-user customers. The TNEB has not been
able to make full payment to the plant for the purchase of energy under contract due to its overall poor liquidity

situation. The past due receivable at PPN as of December 31, 2002 at the project company is approximately
$57 million, Energy Holdings® share of which is approximately $8 million, net of a $3 million reserve.

Poland

In January 2002, Global acquired a 35% interest in the 590 MW (electric) and 618 MW (thermal) coal-fired
Skawina CHP Plant (Skawina), located in Poland and in June 2002 increased its ownership interest to approximately
50%. The transaction includes the obligation to purchase additional shares in 2003 that will bring Global’s aggregate
interest in Skawina to approximately 65% and the obligation to offer to purchase an additional 10% from Skawina’s
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Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

employees, increasing Global’s potential ownership interest to 75%. Global expended $31 million during 2002 for
its approximate 50% ownership interest and the total equity investmnent is expected to be approximately
$105 million, including contingencies and equity commitment guarantees.

Tumnisia

Global owns a 60% interest in Carthage Power Company (CPC), a 471 MW gas-fired combined-cycle electric
generation facility located in Rades, Tunisia. CPC has entered into a 20-year power purchase contract for the sale
of 100% of the output to Societe Tunisienne de I’ Electricite et du Gaz (STEG). The contract called for the plant to
be operational by November 24, 2001, however, due to delays in construction, this deadline was not met. STEG has
declared that it is entitled to liquidated damages at the rate of $67 thousand a day since November 24, 2001 in
accordance with the terms of the power purchase contract. CPC is contesting STEG’s claim and the two parties are
currently in negotiations to settle this dispute. The facility was built by Alstom Centrales Energetiques S.A., (Alstom)
an independent contractor, who was also obligated to complete construction by September 3, 2001. The facility
commenced operation on May 14, 2002. CPC believes it is entitled to liquidated damages from Alstom in amounts
greater than the claims by STEG. Such liquidated damages are secured by letters of credit totaling $30 million.

Minimum Lease Payments

PSEG, PSE&G and Energy Holdings

PSE&G, Services and Energy Holdings lease administrative office space under various operating leases. In
addition, PSE&G, Services and Energy Holdings expense the costs of renting various facilities for an immaterial
amount. Total future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2002 are:

After
2003 2094 2008 2006 2007 2007 Total
(Millions)
PSE&G ............. $3 $3 $3 $2 $2 $— $13
Services ............. 1 1 1 1 1 3 8
Energy Holdings ... _6 5 4 4 4 14 37
Total PSEG ......... & §_2 $=8 $7 $=7 §L_7 E__§

Power and PSE&G have entered into capital leases for administrative office space. The total future minimum
payments and present value of these capital leases as of December 31, 2002 are:

PSE&G  Power

(Millions)

2003, $ 6 $1
2004 . . e 6 1
2005 . e e e 6 1
2006, . .. e e 6 2
2007 . e 6 2
Thereafter . . . ... .. ... _50 12

Total minimum lease payments . ................... $ 80 $19

Less: Imputed Interest. . . ............. ... .. ... .......

o
—
[\

Present Value of net minimum lease payments . . .. ... ...

o5
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—
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Note 14. Nuclear Decommissioning Trust

Power

In accordance with Federal regulations, entities owning an interest in nuclear generating facilities are required
to determine the costs and funding methods necessary to decommission such facilities upon termination of
operation. As a general practice, each nuclear owner places funds in independent external trust accounts it maintains
to provide for decommissioning.

The ownership of the Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Funds was transferred to Nuclear with the transfer of
the generation-related assets from PSE&G to Power. Pursuant to the Final Order, PSE&G will collect approximately
$30 million annually through the SBC and will remit to Power an equivalent amount solely to fund the trust through
at least the end of the transition period, July 31, 2003. For information relating to cost responsibility for nuclear
decommissioning subsequent to July 31, 2003, see Note 2. New Accounting Standards. The fair market value of
these funds as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $766 million and $817 million, respectively.

Power maintains the external master nuclear decommissioning trust previously established by PSE&G. This
trust contains two separate funds: a qualified fund and a non-qualified fund. Séction 468A of the Internal Revenue
Code limits the amount of money that can be contributed into a “qualified” fund. Contributions made into a qualified
fund are tax deductible. In the most recent study the total cost of decommissioning, Power’s share of its five nuclear
units was estimated at approximately $1.8 billion in year-end 2002 dollars, excluding contingencies.

Note 15. Other Income and Deductions

Other Income

Energy Consolidated
PSE&G  Power  Holdings  Other (A) Total
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002: ‘ (Millions)
Interest Income . . ... ...... ... ... ... ... $ 17 $— $— $ 2 $19
Gain on Disposition of Property . ............ 10 — — — 10
Change in Derivative Fair Value .. ........... — — 12 — 12
Gain on Early Retrement of Debt . .. ... ... ... — 13 — 13
Other. .. ... ... .. 1 — i 2 )
Total Other Income . ... .................. $ 28 3— $25 $ 4 $57
For the Year Ended December 31, 2601:
Interest Income . . .. ... ... $104 $— $— £ (@67 $37
Gain on Disposition of Property . ............ 4 — — — 4
Other. . ....... . ... 3 — _ 6 - 9
Total Other Income . . .. ......... .. ....... $111 $— $6 $ (67) 350
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000:
Interest Income . . . .......... ... ... ... ... $164 $1 $— $(143) $22
Litigation Settlement . . . . ................. 6 — (6) 6
Minority Interest. . ... ................... — — — 1 |
Foreign Currency Gains . . . . ... ............ — — 3 — 3
Other. .. ....... . ... . ... ... . ... 3 — — 2 1
Total Other Income . .. ......... ... ... ...... $173 $ 7 33 3(150) $33

II
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Note 15. Other Income and Deductions (Continued)

Other Deductions
Energy Consolidated

PSE&G Power Holdings Other (A) Total

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002: (Millions)
Donations \ $—

70

© o9
vl o
%l o9
~J -3

Wl O© N

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Donations
Minority Interest
Foreign Currency Losses
Loss on Early Retirement of Debt

w3 “«2

—

I5 “

—

N = U3 O — W
N’

|

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000:
Donations

|DJT}
IwT}

&2
(VN ]
4
w

ll
|

{A) Other primarily consists of activity at PSEG (parent company), Services and intercompany eliminations.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 16. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of reported income tax expense with the amount computed by multiplying pre-tax income
by the statutory Federal income tax rate of 35% is as follows:

Net Income (Loss) .. .............. ...
Loss from Discontinued Operations,

(Including Loss on Disposal, Net of Tax-$27) . . ..

Cumulative Effect of a Change in
Accounting Principle, (Net of Tax-$66). .
Minority Interest in Earnings of Subsidiaries
Net Income before Retained Earnings
Adjustment and Minority Interests . . . . . ..
Preferred Dividends (net) . . ... ........

Net Income before Retained Earnings
Adjustment and Preferred Dividends. . . . . .

Income Taxes:
Federal — Current . . .. ............
Deferred ... ............
ITC ... .. o .

Total State . . ........

Foreign — Current. . .. ............
Deferred. . .............

Tax computed at the statutory rate. . . ... ...
Increase (decrease) attributable to flow through
of certain tax adjustments:
Plant Related Items . ... ...........
Amortization of investment tax credits . .

Tax Effects Attributable to Foreign
Operations . ....................
New Jersey Corporate Business Tax . ......

Subtotal . . . . ....... ... ......
Total income tax provisions . ... ..

Effective income tax rate . . . ... ........

Energy Consolidated
PSE&G Power Holdings Other Total
(Millions)

$ 201 $ 468 $(403) $ (2D $ 245
— — (51) — ShH
— — (120 — (120)
_ _ ) 2 —
201 468 (230) (23) 416
@ — (23) 20 (7N

$ 205 $ 468 $(207) $ (43) $ 423
$121  $184  $(108) $(29)  $ 168
44) 69 (23) 6 8
_ @ = _@ _= @
75 253 (133) (23) 172

17 41 1) ) 50

23 19 27) — 15
40 60 (28) ) 65
— — 1 — 1
— — 10 — 10
— — 11 — 11
115 313 (150) (30) 248
$320 $781 $357 $ (33 $671
$ 112 $273 $(125) 3 (29) $ 235
(15) — — — (15)
@ - @ - @
6) 1 2 (1) )
- - an - (11)
26 39 14 @ 47

3 40 (25) (5 13

$ 115 $ 313 $(150) $ 3O $ 248

359% 40.1% 420% 41.1% 37.0%
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Note 16. Income Taxes (Continued)

Energy Consolidated
Power Holdings  Other Total
(Millions)

Net Income (Loss) $394 $161 $ (15 770
Loss from Discontinued Operations, (Net of Tax-$8) . . . — (15) — (15)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle,

(Net of Tax—$8) 9 9
Minority Interest in Earnings of Subsidiaries (1) —
Net Income before Retained Earnings Adjustment and :
Minority Interests 168
Preferred Dividends (net) (22)-

Net Income before Retained Earnings Adjustment and
Preferred Dividends $ 190

Income Taxes:

Federal — Current $(100)
161
oY)
60
State — Current. . .. . ... . 42 17 9 “@ 64
Deferred. . .......... ... .. ... .... €))] 20 an @ (1)
Total State . .. ................ 33 37 ) 5 63
Foreign — Current. . ... .................... — — 1 —
Deferred. .. ........ . ... . .. .. .. — . — 6 —
Total Foreign . .. .............. — — 7 — 7
TOtal. . oo 89 250 65 (23) 381

Pre-tax InCOMe. . .. ... v et $324 $644 $255 $(39) $1,184

Tax computed at the statutory rate. . ........ e $113 $225 % 89 $(13) $ 414

Increase (decrease) attributable to flow through :

of certain tax adjustments: _

Plant Related Items . . .. ... ................. “An — — — 41)
Amortization of investment and energy tax credits . . . 2) — (H — 3)
Other. ... ... ... . .. . .. (2 1 2) (D - €))

Tax Effects Attributable to Foreign Operations . . .. ... .. — — (18) —_ (18)

New Jersey Corporate Business Tax .. .............. 21 . 24 (3) (9) 33

Subtotal . . ................. AP 24) 25 (24) (10) (33)
Total income tax provisions . .............. $ 89 $250 3 65 $(23) 3§ 381
274% 388% 254% 59.0% 32.2%

Effective income tax rate. . . . ........ ... . ...
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Note 16. Income Taxes (Continued)

Net Income (Loss) .. ...................

Loss from Discontinued Operations, (Net of

Tax-$5). . ...
Minority Interest in Earnings of Subsidiaries . . .

Net Income before Retained Earnings

Adjustment and Minority Interests . . . ... ...
Preferred securities (net). . . .............

Net Income before Retained Earnings

Adjustment and Preferred Dividends. . . . . ...

Income Taxes:

Federal — Current. . . .. .............

ITC ... ..

Deferred. . . ..............

Tax computed at the statutory rate. . . ........

Increase (decrease) attributable to flow through
of certain tax adjustments:

Plant Related Items . . . ..............

Tax Effects Attributable to Foreign Operations . . .
New Jersey Corporate Business Tax .........

Subtotal . . ...... ... . ... ..
Total income tax provisions ........

Effective income taxrate . . ... .. ... ........

Energy Consolidated
PSE&G (A) Power (A) Holdings Other (A) Total
(Millions)
$578 $ 313 $ 90 $(217) $ 764
— — (12) — (12)
_ — 1 (1) —
578 313 101 (216) 776
® — 24 24 2]
$ 587 $313 $ 125 $(240) $ 785
$ 261 $ 139 $(127) $(116) $ 157
50 25 169 (16) 228
M — €y — )
310 164 41 (132) 383
150 114 4 (109) 159
(53) a0 2 71 (50)
97 44 6 (38) 109
— — 4 — 4
— — 4 — 4
407 208 51 (170) 496
$994 $ 521 $176 $(410) $1,281
$ 348 $182 $ 61 $(143) $ 448
(15) — — — (15)
1) — 1) — (2)
17 4) 1 ®) 5
— — (14) —_ (14)
58 30 4 (18) 74
59 26 (10) 27 48
$ 407 $208 $ 51 $(170) $ 496
40.9% 39.9% 29.0% 41.5% 38.7%

(A) Included in Power’s results for 2000 are the results of PSE&G’s generation business prior to the
generation-related asset transfer in August 2000. For additional information see Note 19. Financial

Information by Business Segments.
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Note 16. Income Taxes (Continued)

PSEG, PSE&G, Power-and Energy Holdings

Each of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings provide deferred taxes at the enacted statutory tax rate
for all temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets
and liabilities irrespective of the treatment for rate-making purposes. Management believes that it is probable that
the accumulated tax benefits that previously have been treated as a flow-through item to PSE&G customers will
be recovered from PSE&G’s customers in the future. Accordingly, an offsetting regulatory asset was established.
As of December 31, 2002, PSE&G had a deferred tax liability and an offsetting regulatory asset of $328 million
representing the tax costs expected to be recovered through rates based upon established regulatory practices which
permit recovery of current taxes payable. This amount was determined using the enacted Federal income tax rate
of 35% and State income tax rate of 9%.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings’ effective tax rate differs from the statutory Federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due
to the imposition of state taxes and the fact that Global accounts for many of its foreign investments using the equity
method of accounting. Under such accounting method, Global reflects in revenues its pro-rata share of the
investment’s net income. The foreign income taxes are a component of each PSEG and Energy Holdings’ equity
in earnings rather than included as a component of the income tax provision.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 16. Income Taxes (Continued)

The following is an analysis of deferred income taxes:

Deferred Income Taxes
Assets:
Current (net)

Non-current:
Unrecovered Investment Tax Credits . .
Nuclear Decommussioning. . . . . . . .
SEAS 133 . . .. ... o
Other Comprehensive Income. . . . . .
New Jersey Corporate Business Tax . .

Investment Related Adjustments . . . .
Development Fees
Foreign Currency Translation

Contractual Liabilities and
Environmental Costs

Market Transition Charge

Total Non-current

Total Assets
Liabilities:
Non-current:

Plant Related Items. . . . ... ... ..
Securitization . .. ... ... ......
Leasing Activities. . . . ... .... ..
Partnership Activities. . . ... ... ..
Conservation Costs . . . ... ......
Pension Costs

Taxes Recoverable Through
Future Rates (net)

Income from Foreign Operation. . . . .
Other. . ..................
Total Non-current

Total Liabilities

Summary — Accumulated
Deferred Income Taxes:

Net Current Assets. . . . . . .. ... ...

PSE&G Power Energy Holdings Other Consolidated
2002 2000 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
(Millions)
$ 168 208 —$— 8% — § — $ $ $ 165 2

19 19 — — — _ - - 19 19
— — 26 25 — _ = = 26 25
— — 2 3 45 14 9 2 56 19
122 — 58 — 3 — 4 — 207 —_
380 407 125 137 ) 13 — - 500 531
99 83 — — — _ - = 99 83
—_ — 51 54 — —_ - — 51 54
— — — — 270 —_ = = 270 —
—_ _ — — 22 2t —  — 22 21
— — — — 34 29 — — 34 29
— — 35 35 — —_ = = 35 35
684 565 297 254 369 51 33 _ 2 1383 872
700 586 297 254 369 51 3 2 139 893
1,244 1,228 (276) (341) — — 5 3 973 890
1,545 1,594 — _ — — — — 1545 1,594
— — — — 1,298 1,146 — — 1298 1,146
— — — — 66 73 - — 66 73
10 24 — — — —_ = = 10 24
84 70 25 15 3) — 15 9 121 94
145 130 — — — _ = = 145 130
— — — — 42 4] — - 42 41
38 14 4 ] 1 6 4 _6 39 15
3,066 3,060 (255) (325) 1404 1,254 24 18 4239 4,007
3,066 3,060 (255) (325) 1404 1,254 24 18 4,239 4,007
16 21 — — — —_— = - 16 21
2382 2495 (552) (579) 1,035 1203 (9 16 2856 3,135
$2366 $2,474 $(552) $(579) $1,035 $1,203 &) $16 $2,840 $3,114

Il
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 17. Pension, Other Postretirement Benefit (OPEB) and SavingS Plans

PSEG sponsors several qualified and nonqualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans covering
PSEG, as well as its participating affiliates, current and former employees who meet certain eligibility criteria. The
following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the fair value of plan assets over each of the two years
in the period ended December 31, 2002 and a reconciliation of the funded status at the end of both years.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
Pension Benefits Qther Benefits

2002 2001 2002 2001
(Millions) (Millions)

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year $2676 $2494 $674 $703
Service Cost 69 63 18 16
Interest Cost 188 182 47 47
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 162 90 84 8
Benefits Paid (156) (153) (48) (40)
7 — — (60)
22 — 2 —
2,968 2,676 674

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Assets at Beginning of Year. . . ... ............. 2,228 2,376 40 28
Actual Return on Plan Assets . . .. ........ ... ... .. (192) (85) 3) (1)
Employer Contributions . . . . ... ... ... .. .. 240 90 61 53
Benefits Paid . . ... ... ... ... ... (156) (153) (48) (40)
Business Combinations. . . . ...... .. .. ... .. . . L. 11 — 1 —
Fair Value of Assetsat Endof Year. ... ................... 2,131 2,228 51 40
Reconciliation of Funded Status:
Funded Status. . .. ... ... . . e (837) (448)  (726)  (634)
Unrecognized Net . .. ... ...t i
Transition Obligation. . .. ...... ... ... .. ... . ..... 5 12 248 276
Prior Service Cost. . . .. ... .. 104 114 — —
(Gain) Loss . . . . ..o 1,003 456 (25) (120)
Net Amount Recognized. . . . ........ ... ... .. ... ... .... $ 275 $ 134 $(503) $478)
Amounts Recognized in Statement of Financial Position:
Prepaid Benefit Cost . . . ....... ... .. i $ 3 $160 $ — $ —
Accrued Cost . ... ... L (343) (53) (503) (478)
Intangible Asset .. ... ... . .. L. 114 20 N/A N/A
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (pre-tax) . . ......... 501 7 N/A N/A
Net Amount Recognized. . . ... . oo oi it $ 275 § 134  $(503) $478)

Separate Disclosure for Pension Plans With Accumulated Benefit
Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets:

Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year. . . ... ............ $2946 $ 76
Accumulated Benefit Obligation at End of Year. .. ... ......... $2451 $ 61
Fair Value of Assetsat Endof Year. . . . ................... $2,113 3% 8
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Note 17. Pension, Other Postretirement Benefit (OPEB) and Savings Plans (Continued)

The pension benefits table above provides information relating to the funded status of all qualified and
nonqualified pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans on an aggregate basis.

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
(Millions) (Millions)
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost: v
Service COSt . .. v i $ 69 $ 63 $60 $ 19 $ 16 $§ 12
Interest Cost . . ... 188 182 173 47 47 54
Expected Return on Plan Assets . . .............. (206) (211) (21) (€G] 3) 3)
Amortization of Net '
Transition Obligation. . ... ................. 8 8 8 27 27 31
Prior Service Cost. . . ... ... ... ... ..., ... o 16 14 — — 2
(Gain)/Loss . .. .............. e 13 — 1 4 6) 3)
Net Periodic Benefit Cost . .. ................. $ 89 §$ 58 $ 35 $ 8 §$ 8 §$ 93
Components of Total Benefit Expense: ‘
Net Periodic Benefit Cost .. . ................. $ 8 $58 $35 § 8 $ 8 $ 93
Effect of Regulatory Asset. . . ................. — — — 19 19 19
Total Benefit Expense Including Effect of
Regulatory ASSEt. . .. oot $ 8 § 58 § 35 $ 104 $ 100 $ 112
Components of Other Comprehensive Income:
Decrease in Intangible Asset . ... .......... oo 53095 8 3 8% 1
Increase in Additional Minimum Liability . ... .. ... 589 1 (@3]
Other Comprehensive Income (pre-tax) . .. ........ $494 § 4 $ (1) NA N/A N/A
Weighted-Average Assumptions. as of December 31:
DiscountRate .. ............... ... ........ 6.75% 7.25% 7.50% 6795% 725% 7.50%
Expected Return on Plan Assets . ... ........... ~ 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of Compensation Increase. . .. ... .......... 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69%
Rate of Increase in Health Benefit Costs
Administrative Expense . . ... .......... ... .. 500% 5.00% 5.00%
Dental Costs. . . ... ..ot i e 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Pre-65 Medical Costs
Immediate Rate. . . ..................... : 9.00% 9.50% 10.00%
Ultimate Rate . . .. ................1.... 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Year Ultimate Rate Reached .. ............. 2008 2008 2008
Post-65 Medical Costs
Immediate Rate. . . . .................... 7.00% 7.50% 8.00%
Ultimate Rate . . .. ........ ... .......... 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Year Ultimate Rate Reached . .. ............ 2004 2004 2004
Effect of a Change in the Assumed Rate of Increase in s
Health Benefit Costs:
Effect of a 1% Increase On
Total of Service Cost and Interest Cost. . ... ... 47 4.6 4.5
Postretirement Benefit Obligation. . .. ... .. ... 45.7 454 48.5
Effect of a 1% Decrease On
Total of Service Cost and Interest Cost. ..... .. 4.0) 3.9 (3.8)
Postretirement Benefit Obligation. . .. ... ... .. (38.9) (39.1) (41.4)
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Note 17. Pension, Other Postretirement Benefit (OPEB) and Savings Plans (Continued)

401K Plans

PSEG sponsors two defined contribution plans. Eligible represented employees of PSE&G, Power and Services
participate in the PSEG Employee Savings Plan (Savings Plan), while eligible non-represented employees of
PSE&G, Power, Energy Holdings and Services participate in the PSEG Thrift and Tax-Deferred Savings Plan (Thrift
Plan). These plans are 401(k) plans to which eligible employees may contribute up to 50% of their compensation.
Employee contributions up to 7% for Savings Plan participants and up to 8% for Thrift Plan participants are matched
with employer contributions of cash or PSEG common stock equal to 50% of such employee contributions. For
periods prior to March 1, 2002, employer contributions, related to participant contributions in excess of 5% and
up to 7%, were made in shares of PSEG common stock for Savings Plan participants. For periods prior to March 1,
2002, Employer contributions, related to participant contributions in excess of 6% and up to 8%, were made in
shares of PSEG common stock for Thrift Plan participants. The shares for these contributions were purchased in
the open market. Beginning on March 1, 2002, and thereafter, all Employer contributions will be made in cash to
each plan. The amount expensed for Employer matching contributions to the plans was approximately $25 million,
$24 million, and $22 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

PSE&G, Power, Energy Holdings and Services eligible employees participate in non-contributory pension and
OPEB plans sponsored by PSEG and administered by Services. In addition, represented and nonrepresented
employees are eligible for participation in PSEG’s two defined contribution plans described above.

PSE&G

PSE&G’s pension costs amounted to $46 million, $30 million and $17 million for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. For 2002, this amount represented approximately 52% of PSEG’s total consolidated
pension costs. PSE&G’s Thrift Plan and Savings Plan matching costs amounted to approximately $13 million,
$12 million and $11 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. PSE&G’s OPEB
costs amounted to $95 million, $95 million, and $109 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively. For 2002, this amount represented approximately 92% of PSEG’s total consolidated OPEB costs.

Power

Power’s pension costs amounted to $26 million, $16 million and $9 million for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. For 2002, this amount represented approximately 29% of PSEG’s total
consolidated pension costs. Power’s Thrift Plan and Savings Plan matching costs amounted to approximately
$8 million, $8 million and $8 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Power’s
OPEB costs amounted to $6 million, $4 million, and $2 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively. For 2002, this amount represented approximately 6% of PSEG’s total consolidated OPEB costs.

Energy Holdings

Energy Holdings’ pension costs amounted to $2 million and $1 million for the years ended December 31,2002
and 2001, respectively. For 2002, this amount represented approximately 4% of PSEG’s total consolidated pension
costs. Energy Holdings’ Thrift Plan and Savings Plan matching costs amounted to approximately $1 million for
each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Energy Holdings OPEB costs amounted to less than
$1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

136




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 18. Stock Options and Employee Stock Purchase Plan
PSEG

Stock Options

Under PSEG’s 1989 Long-Term Incentive Plan (1989 LTIP) and its 2001 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2001
LTIP), non-qualified options to acquire shares of common stock may be granted to officers and other key employees
of PSEG, PSE&G, Power, Energy Holdings and Services selected by the Organization and Compensation
Committee of PSEG’s Board of Directors, the plan’s administrative committee (Committee). In addition, certain
key executives have received option grants under the 1989 LTIP in connection with their employment agreements.
Payment by option holders upon exercise of an option may be made in cash or, with the consent of the Committee,
by delivering previously acquired shares of PSEG common stock. In instances where an optionee tenders shares
acquired from a grant previously exercised that were held for a period of less than six months, an expense will
be recorded for the difference between the fair market value at exercise date and the option price. Options are
exercisable over a period of time designated by the Committee (but not prior to one year from the date of grant)
and are subject to such other terms and conditions as the Committee determines. Vesting schedules may be

accelerated upon the occurrence of certain events, such as a change in control. Options may not be transferred during
the lifetime of a holder.

The 1989 LTIP currently provides for the issuance of up to 8,000,000 options to purchase shares of common
stock. At December 31, 2002, there were 3,817,717 options available for future grants under the 1989 LTIP.

The 2001 LTIP currently provides for the issuance of up to 15,000,000 options to purchase shares of common
stock. At December 31, 2002, there were 9,241,500 options available for future grants under the 2001 LTIP.

PSEG purchases shares on the open market to meet the exercise of stock options. The difference between the
cost of the shares (generally purchased on the date of exercise) and the exercise price of the options has been reflected
in Stockholders’ Equity except where otherwise discussed.

Changes in common shares under option for the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31, 2002
are summarized as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Options  Exercise Price _ Options _ Exercise Price _ Options _ Exercise Price

Beginning of year . ........... 7,652,463  $41.22 5,186,099  $40.38 2,561,883  $34.60
Granted . ........... ... ..., 1,890,000 31.62 2,833,000 41.84 2,745,500 45.33
Exercised . ................. (157,332) 36.28 (303,135) 32.83 (110,684) 29.87
Canceled .................. (192,500) 41.94 (63,501)  41.27 (10,600) 31.23
End of year . ............... 9,192,631  39.32 7,652,463 4122 5186099 40.38
Exercisable at end of year . . ... .. 4,542,165  $40.24 2,767,830  $39.19 1,170,278  $34.91
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year $ 437 $ 7.22 $ 873
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The following table provides information about options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Range of Cutstanding at Remaining Exercise ~ Exercisable at Exercise
Exercise Prices December 31, 2002 Contractual Life Price December 31,2002 Price
$25.03-$30.02 _ 173,300 5.0 years $29.56 173,300 $29.56
$30.03-$35.03 2,930,331 8.9 years 32.05 1,070,331 . 3313
$35.04-$40.03 690,500 6.0 years 39.31 690,500 39.31
$40.04-$45.04 3,169,000 8.6 years 41.83 1,306,716 42.16
$45.05-$50.05 2,229,500 8.1 years 46.06 1,301,318 46.07

$25.03-$50.05 9,192,631 8.3 years $39.32 4,542,165 .$40.24

For this purpose, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively: expected volatility of 30.24%, 28.22% and 26.63%, risk free interest rates of 2.82%, 4.40% and 6.06%,
expected lives of 4.0 years, 4.2 years and 4.4 years, respectively. There was a dividend yield of 6.84% in 2002,
5.18% in 2001 and 4.77% in 2000.

PSEG applies APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations
in accounting for stock-based compensation plans, which are described below. Accordingly, no compensation cost
has been recognized for fixed stock option grants since the exercise price of the stock options equaled the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Had compensation costs for stock option grants been determined
based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under these plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123 “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” there would have been a charge to net income of approximately $10.4 million,
$9.6 million and $3.6 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, with a $(0.05), $(0.05) and $(0.02) impact
on earnings per share in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if PSEG had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(Miliions)

Net Income, as reported . ....... e P $245 $ 770 $ 764
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based method

for all awards, net of related tax effects .. . ......... (10) (10) 4)
Pro forma Net Income .. ...................... - $235 $760 $ 760
Earnings per share: : '

Basic and Diluted — asreported . .. ............. $1.17 $3.70 $3.55

Basic and Diluted — pro forma ................ $1.12  $3.65  $3.53

Diluted Earning Per Share

Diluted earning per share assumes the issuance of potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the
period and the repurchase of common shares that would have occurred with proceeds from the assumed issuance.

These potentially dilutive instruments include stock options, vesting of non-vested stock awards, and certain
convertible preferred securities.
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As shown in the tables above, as of December 31, 2002, options to purchase approximately 9.2 million shares
of common stock at an average price of $39.32 per share were outstanding during 2002. These securities were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS because these options’ exercise price was greater than the average market
price of common shares, thus making these securities anti-dilutive.

Stock Compensation

Executive Officers

In June 1998, the Committee granted 150,000 shares of restricted common stock to a key executive. An
additional 60,000 shares of restricted stock was granted to this executive in November 2001. These shares are
subject to restrictions on transfer and subject to risk of forfeiture until earned by continued employment. The shares
vest on a staggered schedule beginning on March 31, 2002 and become fully vested on March 31, 2007. The
unearned compensation related to this restricted stock grant as of December 31, 2002 is approximately $4 million
and is included in retained earnings on the consolidated balance sheets.

In addition, in July 2001, the Committee granted 100,000 shares of restricted common stock to another key
executive. These shares are subject to restrictions on transfer and subject to risk of forfeiture until earned by
continued employment. The shares vest at one-third per year and become fully vested on July 1, 2004. The unearned
compensation related to this restricted stock grant as of December 31, 2002 is approximately $2 million and is
included in retained earnings on the consolidated balance sheets.

QOutside Directors

During 2002, a director who was not an officer of PSEG or its subsidiaries and affiliates was paid an annual
retainer of $30,000 and a fee of $1,500 for attendance at any Board or committee meeting, inspection trip,
conference or other similar activity relating to PSEG or PSE&G. This amount was raised to $40,000 effective for
2003. Pursuant to the Compensation Plan for Qutside Directors, a certain percentage, currently fifty percent, of
the annual retainer is paid in PSEG Common Stock. No additional retainer is paid for service as a director of PSE&G.
Each Committee Chair received an additional annual retainer of $3,000, increased for 2003 to $5,000 except for
the Chair of the Audit Committee, who will receive $10,000. In addition, beginning in 2003, each member of the
Audit Committee will receive an annual retainer of $5,000. In January 2003, PSEG amended the Compensation
Plan for Outside Directors pursuant to which 100,000 shares of Common Stock may be awarded to directors of
PSEG who are not employees of PSEG or its subsidiaries.

PSEG also maintains a Stock Plan for Outside Directors pursuant to which directors of PSEG who are not
employees of PSEG or its subsidiaries receive shares of restricted stock for each year of service as a director. For
2002, this amount was 600 shares, increased to 800 shares for 2003. The restrictions on the stock granted under
the Stock Plan for Outside Directors provide that the shares are subject to forfeiture if the director leaves service
at any time prior to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders following his or her 70th birthday. This restriction would
be deemed to have been satisfied if the director’s service were terminated after a “‘change in control” as defined
in the Plan or if the director were to die in office. PSEG also has the ability to waive these restrictions for good
cause shown. Restricted stock may not be sold or otherwise transferred prior to the lapse of the restrictions.
Dividends on shares held subject to restrictions are paid directly to the director, and the director has the right to
vote the shares. The fair value of these shares is recorded as compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. In January 2003, PSEG adopted the Stock Plan for Outside Directors pursuant to which 100,000
shares of Common Stock may be awarded as restricted stock to directors of PSEG who are not employees of PSEG
or its subsidiaries.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

PSEG maintains an employee stock purchase plan for all eligible employees of PSEG, PSE&G, Power, Energy
Holdings and Services. Under the plan, shares of the common stock may be purchased at 95% of the fair market
value through payroll deductions. Employees may purchase shares having a value not exceeding 10% of their base
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pay. During 2002, 2001, and 2000, employees purchased 104,627, 85,552, and 101,986 shares at an average price
of $36.41, $44.02, and $37.06 per share, respectively. At December 31, 2002, 169,456 shares were available for
future issuance under this plan. In January 2003, an additional 2,000,000 shares were authorized for this plan.

Note 19. Financial Information by Business Segments

Basis of Organization

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

The reportable segments were determined by management in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (SFAS 131). These segments were determined based
on how management measures the performance based on segment net income, as illustrated in the following table,
and how it allocates resources to each business.

The majority of operations within the business segment Energy Technologies were reclassified into discontinued
operations during 2002. The DSM investments, which were the only remaining continuing operations of Energy
Technologies, were transferred to Resources effective December 31, 2002. Therefore, Energy Technologies is no
longer reported as a separate segment. The amounts related to Energy Technologies are included in Energy Holdings’
Other Activities and all prior periods have been restated to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Power

Power earns revenues by selling energy, capacity and ancillary services on a wholesale basis under contract
to power marketers and to load serving entities (LSEs) and by bidding the energy, capacity and ancillary services
of Power into the market. Power also enters into trading contracts for energy capacity, firm transmission rights,
gas, emission allowances and other energy related contracts to optimize the value of its portfolio of generating assets
and its electric and gas supply obligations.

Power’s business has evolved during 2002. With the transfer of the BGSS contract to Power and the
commencement of the new BGS contracts with wholesale electric suppliers, Power’s business has become a fully
integrated wholesale energy supply business. As a result of that evolution of Power’s business, trading activities
changed from a stand-alone operation to a function that has become fully integrated with the wholesale energy supply
business and primarily serves to optimize the value of that business. Therefore, upon review and in accordance with
SFAS 131, PSEG determined that Power’s generation and trading components no longer meet the definition of separate
operating segments for financial reporting purposes and PSEG has reported Power’s financial position and results of
operations as one segment. All prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

PSE&G

PSE&G earns revenue from its tariffs under which it provides electric transmission and electric and gas
distribution services to residential, commercial and industrial customers in New Jersey. The rates charged for electric
transmission are regulated by FERC while the rates charged for electric and gas distribution are regulated by the
BPU. Revenues are also earned from a variety of other activities such as sundry sales, the appliance service business,
wholesale transmission services and other miscellaneous services.

Energy Holdings
Global

Global earns revenues from its investment in and operation of projects in the generation and distribution of
energy, both domestically and internationally. Global has ownership interests in four distribution companies
(excluding those in Argentina which were fully impaired during 2002) which serve approximately 2.9 million
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customers and has developed or acquired interests in electric generation facilities which sell energy, capacity and
ancillary services to numerous customers. The generation plants sell power under long-term agreements as well
as on a merchant basis while the distribution companies are rate-regulated enterprises.

Resources

Resources earns revenues from its passive investments in leveraged leases, limited partnerships, leveraged
buyout funds and marketable securities. Over 75% of Resources’ investments are in energy industry related
leveraged leases. DSM Investments were transferred to Resources on December 31, 2002 and earn revenues
primarily from monthly payments from utilities, representing shared electricity savings from the installation of
energy efficient equipment. Resources operates both domestically and internationally, however, revenues from all
international investments are denominated in US dollars.

Other

Energy Holdings’ other activities include amounts applicable to Energy Holdings (parent company), the
HVAC/operating companies of Energy Technologies, which were reclassified into discontinued operations in 2002,
and EGDC. The net losses primarily relate to financing and certain administrative and general costs at the Energy
Holdings parent corporation.

Other

PSEG’s other activities include amounts applicable to PSEG (parent corporation), and intercompany
eliminations, primarily relating to intercompany transactions between Power and PSE&G. No gains or losses are
recorded on any intercompany transactions, rather, all intercompany transactions are at cost or, in the case of the
BGS and BGSS contracts between Power and PSE&G, at rates prescribed by the BPU. For a further discussion
of the intercompany transactions between Power and PSE&G, see Note 22. Related-Party Transactions. The net
losses primarily relate to financing and certain administrative and general costs at the PSEG parent corporation.

Information related to the segments of PSEG’s and its subsidiaries is detailed below:

Energy Holdings Consolidated
Power PSE&G Resources Global Other  Other Total
(Millions)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002:

Total Operating Revenues . . . . . ............ $3,670 $5919 $247 $501 $ 1 $(1,948)  $8390
Depreciation and Amortization . . . ... ... ... .. 108 409 5 29 1 19 571
Operating Income (Loss). . . . . o v v v v oo v v v 903 713 213 (296) (12) 5 1,526
InterestIncome . . . .. .. . ... ... — 17 — — — 2 19
Net Interest Charges . . . . . v v v v v v e v e e e n e 122 406 99 115 — 41 783
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes . . . . ... .... 781 320 121 465) (13) (80) 664
Income Taxes. . .. .. ... 313 115 37 (184) 3) (30) 248

FINANCIAL REVIEW 14]




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Note 19. Financial Information by Business Segments (Continued)

Energy Holdings Consolidated
Power PSE&G Resources Global Other  Other Total
{Millions)

Equity in Eamings of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries . . . 58 59
Income (Loss) Before Discontinued Operations and

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

Principle (285) (8 44 416
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 9 @2 — (18]
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

Principle : — — (88) (32) — (120)
Segment Eamings (Loss) 201 78 (399) (82) @b 245
As of December 31, 2002:
Total Assets $6,964 $12429 $3,086 $3,802 $(50) $ (489) $25,742
Investments in Equity Method Subsidiaries — $ 118 $1300 $20 $§ — $ 1438
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002;
Gross Additions to Long-Lived Assets $1318 § 472 $ 37 $ 5719 $ 4 S (64) $ 2338
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Total Operating Revenues . . . .. ............ $2452 $6091 $ 241 $ 396 $ 1 $(2,126) $ 7,055
Depreciation and Amortization . . . . ... ... . ... 95 370 4 1l 1 15 496
Operating Income. . . . . . ... ............. 787 691 211 243 (13) 3) 1,916
Interest InCome . . . . .. oo v v — 104 — - - (67) 37
Net Interest Charges . . . .. ............... 143 450 100 78 2 (51 722
Income Before Income Taxes . . . . ... ........ 644 324 111 153 %) (66) 1,157
Income TAXES . .« v v v oo e e e 250 89 34 35 4) 23) 381
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries . . . — — 55 143 — — 198

Income (Loss) Before Discontinued Operations and
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

Prnciple . . . .. .. .. 394 230 77 117 ) 37 776
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations . . . . . . — — — 7 (22) — (15)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting

Principle . . ... ... .. .. ... . L. ... — — — 9 — — 9
Segment Earnings (Loss). . . . . ... ... .. ... .. 394 230 71 116  (26) (15) 770
As of December 31, 2001:

Total ASSetS. . .« o $5,239 $12,927 $3,085 $4,074 $280 $ (449) $25,156
Investments in Equity Method Subsidiaries. . . . . . . . $ —$ — $163 $1541 $19 $ — $1723
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001:

Gross Additions to Long-Lived Assets . . . . ... ... $1614 $ 395 $ 462 $1,249 $3L) $ 16 $ 3,705
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(A) Energy Holdings Consolidated
Power (A) PSE&G Resources Global Other Other Total

For the Year Ended December 31, 2000: (Millions)
Total Operating Revenues . ... ........... $2,275  $4644  $233  $169 §$70 $(870) $6,521
Depreciation and Amortization . .. ......... 136 209 5 1 — (D 350
Operating Income . . .................. 712 8369 207 120 (17 16 1,907
Interest Income . .. ............... ... . 1 164 — — —  (143) 22
Net Interest Charges . . .. ............... 198 348 79 54 1 (109) 571
Income Before Income Taxes . . ... ........ _ 521 638 128 69 1) (63) 1,272
Income Taxes. ... ............. e 208 260 47 12 8) (23) 496
Equity in Eamings of Unconsolidated

Subsidiaries. . . .. ... ............... — —_ 13 157 — — 170
Income (Loss) Before Discontinued Operations . . 313 369 81 58 (13) (32) 776
Loss from Discontinued Operations . . . . ... .. —_ — — — (12) — (12)
Segment Earnings (Loss) . . . .. ........... 313 369 75 40  (25) 8) 764

(A) Included in the Power segment for 2000 are the results of the generation business of PSE&G prior to
the asset transfer in August 2000. These results through July 31, 2000 are included in PSE&G’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2000. Because Power’s historical
information was derived from historical financial statements of PSE&G, these amounts are also included
on Power’s Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2000. For segment
reporting purposes, these amounts are appropriately classified as Power. Amounts relating to the
generation business of PSE&G prior to the asset transfer to Power in August 2000 were as follows:

(Millions)
Operating Revenues . ... ........... $1,243
Operating Expenses . .. ............
Energy Costs .. ..... PP 410
Operations and Maintenance . . . . .. .. 357
Depreciation and Amortization . ... .. 77
Total Operating Expenses . . . ... .. 844
Operating Income . . . . ............. 399
Other Income . . . ............... 6
Interest Expense .. ... ........... (49)
Income Taxes . .......... e (147
NetIncome .. ................... $§ 209
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Geographic information for PSEG is disclosed below. The foreign assets and operations noted below were

made solely through Energy Holdings.

Revenues (A)

Assets (B)

December 31,

December 31,

2002 2001 2000

2002 2001

(Millions)

(Millions)

$7,864 36,687 $6,333
526 368 188

$8,390 §7,055 $6,521

$21,556  $20,392
4,186 4,764

$25,7142  $25,156

Identifiable assets in foreign countries include:

$ 880
Netherlands 911
Argentina 737

520

Tunisia
India (C)
Poland
Brazil

$4,186

(A) Revenues are attributed to countries based on the locations of the investments. Global’s revenue includes
its share of the net income from joint ventures recorded under the equity method of accounting.

(B) Total assets are net of foreign currency translation adjustment of $(340) million (pre-tax) as of
December 31, 2002 and $(285) million (pre-tax) as of December 31, 2001.

(C) Approximately $257 million at December 31, 2001 relates to Tanir Bavi, which was discontinued as of
June 30, 2002 and was sold in October 2002.

As of December 31, 2002, Global and Resources had approximately $2.9 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively
of international assets. As of December 31, 2002, foreign assets represented 16% and 61% of PSEG’s and Energy
Holdings’ consolidated assets, respectively, and the revenues related to those foreign assets contributed 6% and
70% to PSEG’s and Energy Holdings’ consolidated revenues, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2002.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Information related to Property, Plant and Equipment as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 is detailed below:

PSEG

Consolidated

Fossil Production
Nuclear Production
Nuclear Fuel in Service
Construction Work in Progress

(Millions)

$ 599 § —

466 —

§ 3,066
215
527

2,528

Total Generation

1,065 —

6,336

Transmission and Distribution:
Electric Transmission
Electric Distribution
Gas Transmission
Gas Distribution
Construction Work in Progress
Plant Held for Future Use

329 —

1,243
4,775
74
3,271
47
18
91

356 —

9,519

113 100

707

$1,534  $100

$16,562

Fossil Production
Nuclear Production
Nuclear Fuel in Service
Construction Work in Progress

312 —

$ 1,944
154

486
1,999

Total Generation

400 —

4,583

Transmission and Distribution:
Electric Transmission
Electric Distribution
Gas Transmission
Gas Distribution
Construction Work in Progress
Plant Held for Future Use

577 —

1,201
4,831
74
3,121
58
20
89

609 —

9,394

172 111

723

$1,181  $111

$14,700
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PSE&G and Power

PSE&G and Power have ownership interests in and are responsible for providing their share of the necessary
financing for the following jointly owned facilities. All amounts reflect the share of PSE&G’s and Power’s jointly
owned projects and the corresponding direct expenses are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
as operating expenses.

Ownership Accumulated
December 31, 2002 Interest Plant Depreciation
(Millions, where Applicable)
Power:
Coal Generating
Conemaugh . ......... 0o, 22.50% $203 $ 76
Keystone . . ......... i 22.84% $155 $ 56
Nuclear Generating :
Peach Bottom. ... ........................ 50.00% $225 $105
Salem .. ... . 57.41% £324 $177
Nuclear Support Facilities. . .. ................ Various $ 34 $ 13
Pumped Storage Facilities
Yards Creek . . . ... ... ... ... . . ... ... 50.00% $ 28 $ 16
Merrill Creek Reservoir . .. ... ..o i oo in i v 13.91% $ 2 $ —
PSE&G:
Transmission Facilities .. ... .................. Various $ 80 $ 33
Linden SNGPlant . .............. ... ........ 90.00% $ 5 $ 5
December 31, 2001
Power:
Coal Generating
Conemaugh . ...... ..., 22.50% $199 $ 70
Keystone . ... ..ot 22.84% $128 $ 51
Nuclear Generating
PeachBottom. .. ......... ... ... .. ....... 50.00% $263 $156
Salem . ..., . e 57.41% $257 $161
Nuclear Support Facilities. . . .. ............... Various $ 32 $ 9
Pumped Storage Facilities
Yards Creek . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ..... 50.00% $ 28 $ 12
Merrill Creek Reservoir . .. .................. 13.91% $ 2 $ —
PSE&G:
Transmission Facilities ... .......... ... ....... Various $ 80 %30
Linden SNGPlant .. .............. .. v 90.00% $ 5 $ 4
Power

Power holds undivided ownership interests in the jointly owned facilities above, excluding related nuclear fuel
and inventories. Power is entitled to shares of the generating capability and output of each unit equal to its respective
ownership interests. Power also pays its ownership share of additional construction costs, fuel inventory purchases
and operating expenses. Power’s share of expenses for the jointly owned facilities is included in the appropriate
expense category.

Power’s subsidiary, PSEG Nuclear LLC (Nuclear) co-owns Salem and Peach Bottom with Exelon Generation
Company, LLC. Nuclear is the owner-operator of Salem and Exelon Generation Company, LLC is the operator of
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Peach Bottom. A committee appointed by the co-owners reviews/approves major planning, financing and budgetary
(capital and operating) decisions. Operating decisions within the above guidelines are made by the owner-operator.

Reliant Resources is a co-owner and the operator for Keystone Generating Station and Conemaungh Generating
Station. A committee appointed by all co-owners makes all planning, financing and budgetary (capital and
operating) decisions. Operating decisions within the above guidelines are made by Reliant Resources.

Power is a co-owner in the Yards Creek Pumped Storage Generation Facility. First Energy is also a co-owner
and the operator of this facility. First Energy submits separate capital and Operations and Maintenance budgets,
subject to the approval of Power.

Power is a minority owner in the Merrill Creek Reservoir. Merrill Creek Reservoir is the owner-operator of
this facility. The operator submits separate capital and Operations and Maintenance budgets, subject to the approval
of the non-operating owners.

All owners receive revenues, Operations and Maintenance and capital allocations based on their ownership
percentages. Each owner is responsible for any financing with respect to its pro rata share of capital expenditures.

Note 21. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The information shown below, in the opinion of PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings, includes all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals, necessary to a fair presentation of such amounts.

Calendar Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

PSEG Consolidated: (Miltions, where Applicable)
Operating Revenues . . . .. .............. $1,914 $2,186 $1469 $1,216 $2,328 $1,615 $2,679 $2,038
Operating Income . . .................. 538 586 (129) 415 529 429 588 486
Income before Discontinued Operations

and Cumulative Effect of a Change in

Accounting Principle. . . .. ..., ... ... . 181 256 (227) 153 207 175 255 192
Income (loss) from Discontinued Operations . . . . ¢))] G 37 (10) 3) ) (10) 2
Cumulative Effect of a Change in

Accounting Principle. . . .. ............ (120) 9 — — — — — —
Net Income (Loss) . . .. ... oo i i 60 261 (264) 143 204 172 245 194
Eamings per Share (Basic and Diluted) . . . . . . . 0.29 125 (1.28) 0.68 0.99 0.83 1.14 0.95
‘Weighted Average Common Shares and Potential

Dilutive Effect of Stock Options Outstanding . . 206 208 207 209 207 208 216 208
PSE&G:
Operating Revenues . . .. ............... $1,659 $1,952 $1,230 $1,311 $1.405 $1,395 $1,625 $1433
OperatingIncome . ................... 210 247 107 146 184 159 212 139
NetIncome . ....................... 68 112 8 32 56 65 73 26
Earnings Available to PSEG. . ... ......... 67 09 - 7 31 55 65 72 25
Power:
Operating Revenues . . . .. .............. $ 577 $ 612 $ 693 $ 322 $1,092 $ 685 $1,308 $§ 833
Operating Income . . . ... .............. 228 236 172 201 241 173 262 177
NetIncome . ....................... 120 102 33 104 121 87 144 101
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Calendar Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Energy Holdings: :
Operating Revenues $166 $128 $166 $94 3212 $159  $205  $257
Operating Income 101 104 411 70 103 94 112 173
Income before Discontinued Operations

and Cumulative Effect of a Change in

Accounting Principle 55 (310) 27
(Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations . . . 4) 37 (10)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in

Accounting Principle 9 — —
Net (Loss) Income 60 (347) 17
{(Loss) Earnings Available to PSEG 54 (352) 12

Note 22. Related-Party Transactions

Affiliate Loans

These transactions were properly recognized on each company’s stand-alone financial statements and were
eliminated when preparing PSEG’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

PSEG and PSE&G

On January 31, 2001, PSE&G loaned approximately $1.1 billion to PSEG at 14.23% per annum and recorded
interest income of approximately $33 million relating to the loan in 2001. PSEG repaid the loan on April 16, 2001.
PSE&G also returned approximately $2.3 billion of capital to PSEG on January 31, 2001 utilizing proceeds from the
$2.5 billion securitization transaction and the generation asset transfer, as required by the Final Order, as part of the
recapitalization. For additional information, see Note 6. Regulatory Issues and Accounting Impacts of Deregulation.

PSEG and Power

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Power had a payable to PSEG of approximately $239 million and
$164 million, respectively, for short-term funding needs. Interest expense related to these borrowings was $4 million
and $23 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

PSEG and Energy Holdings

As of December 31, 2002, Energy Holdings had a receivable due from PSEG of $62 million. Interest Income
related to this borrowing was immaterial.

Changes in Capitalization

PSE&G
PSE&G paid a common stock dividend of approximately $305 million to PSEG in 2002.

Power

During 2002, PSEG invested $200 million of additional equity in Power, the proceeds of which were used
to repay short-term debt and fund additional investments.
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Energy Holdings

During 2002, PSEG invested $400 million of additional equity in Energy Holdings, the proceeds of which
were used to repay short-term debt and fund additional investments.

Tax Sharing Agreement

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

PSEG files a consolidated Federal income tax return with its affiliated companies. A tax allocation agreement
exists between PSEG and its affiliated companies. The general operation of these agreements is that the subsidiary
company will compute its taxable income on a stand-alone basis. If the result is a net tax liability, such amount
shall be paid to PSEG. If there are net operating losses and/or tax credits, the subsidiary shall receive payment for
the tax savings from PSEG to the extent that PSEG is able to utilize those benefits.

Power and Energy Holdings

Foster Wheeler Lid.

Certain contracts were entered into with subsidiaries of Foster Wheeler Ltd. E. James Ferland, PSEG Chairman
of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, serves on the Board of Directors of Foster Wheeler Ltd. Richard
J. Swift, who serves on PSEG’s Board of Directors, was the President and Chief Executive Officer of Foster Wheeler
Ltd. at the time the contracts were entered into. The original contracts were for approximately $369 million of
engineering, procurement and construction services related to the development of certain generating facilities for
Power, Global and Services, $129 million of which was rendered in 2002. As of December 31, 2002, the aggregate
open commitment under the contracts is approximately $69 million, of which $6 million, $62 million and $1 million
relates to Power, Global and Services, respectively. PSEG believes that the contracts were entered into on
commercial terms no more favorable than those available in an arms-length transaction from other parties and the
pricing is consistent with that available from other third parties.

Equipment Purchases and Sales

Global purchased equipment from Power totaling $47 million and $30 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
These amounts were sold at book value, thus no gain or loss was recorded on these transactions. As of December 31,
2002 and 2001, there were no outstanding receivables or payables related to such sales.

PSE&G and Power

Transfer of Electric Generating Assets

In August 2000, PSE&G transferred its electric generating assets to Power in exchange for a $2.786 billion
Promissory Note. Interest on the Promissory Note was payable at an annual rate of 14.23%, which represented
PSE&G’s weighted average cost of capital. For the year ended, December 31, 2000, PSE&G recorded interest
income of approximately $143 million relating to the Promissory Note. For the period from January 1, 2001 to
January 31, 2001, PSE&G recorded interest income of approximately $34 million relating to the Promissory Note.
Power repaid the Promissory Note on January 31, 2001.

Effective with the transfer of the electric generation business, Power charges PSE&G for the MTC and the
energy and capacity provided to meet its BGS requirements. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, PSE&G was charged by Power approximately $1.2 billion, $2 billion and $0.8 billion, respectively, for the
MTC and BGS. As of December 31, 2002, and 2001, PSE&G’s payable to Power (or Power’s receivable) relating
to these costs was approximately $2 million and $158 million, respectively.
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For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, PSE&G sold energy and capacity to Power at the
market price of approximately $77 million, $158 million and $78 million, which PSE&G purchased under various
NUG contracts at costs above market prices. As of December 31, 2002 PSE&G had no receivable (or Power’s
payable) related to these purchases as compared to the $7 million receivable as of December 31, 2001. As a result
of the Final Order, PSE&G has established an NTC to recover the above market costs related to these NUG contracts.
The difference between PSE&G’s costs and recovery of costs through the NTC and sales to Power, which are priced
at the locational marginal price (LMP) set by the PIM ISO for energy and at wholesale market prices for capacity,
is deferred as a regulatory asset.

These transactions were properly recognized on each company’s stand-alone financial statements and were
eliminated when preparing PSEG’s Consolidated Financial Statements. No gains or losses are recorded on any
intercompany transactions, rather, all intercompany transactions are at cost or, in the case of the BGS and BGSS
contracts between Power and PSE&G, at rates prescribed by the BPU.

Under the BGS contract, which terminated on July 31, 2002, Power sold energy directly to PSE&G, which
in turn sold this energy to its customers. For the new BGS contract period beginning August 1, 2002, Power entered
into contracts with third parties who are direct suppliers of New Jersey’s EDCs and PSE&G purchases the energy
for its customers’ needs from such direct suppliers. Due to this change in the BGS model, these revenues and
expenses were no longer recorded as intercompany revenues and expenses and were no longer eliminated in
consolidation after August 1, 2002.

Transfer of Gas Supply Contracts and Gas Inventory

Effective May 1, 2002, PSE&G transferred its gas supply contracts and gas inventory requirements to Power
for approximately $183 million. On the same date, PSE&G entered into a requirements contract with Power under
which Power provides the gas supply services needed to meet PSE&G’s BGSS requirements. The coniract term
ends March 31, 2004 and PSE&G has a three-year renewal option. As part of the agreement, PSE&G is providing
Power the use of its peak shaving facilities at cost.

From May 1, 2002 through December 31, 2002, Power billed PSE&G approximately $703 million for BGSS.
As of December 31, 2002, PSE&G’s payable to Power related to the BGSS contract was approximately $241 million.

PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings

Services provides and bills administrative services to PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy Holdings as follows:

Services billed for the Payable to Services as of
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2002 2001 2002 2001
(Millions)

PSEG . ... . . $ 13 $ — $1 $—
PSE&G. . . ... $200 $235 $16 $26
Power. . ... $119 $130 $2 $14
Energy Holdings. . .. ....... ... .. ... ... ...... $ 22 $ 23 $3 $3

These transactions were properly recognized on each company’s stand-alone financial statements and were
eliminated when preparing PSEG’s Consolidated Financial Statements. PSEG, PSE&G, Power and Energy
Holdings believe that the costs of services provided by Services approximates market value for such services.
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Energy Holdings

Operation and Maintenance and Development Fees

Global provides operating, maintenance and other services to and receives management and guaranty fees from
various joint ventures and partnerships in which it is an investor. Fees related to the development and construction
of certain projects are deferred and recognized when earned. Income from these services of $3 million, $3 million,
and $12 million, were included in Operating Revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Affiliate Payables due to PSEG from Energy Technologies

As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, Energy Technologies had recorded affiliate payables due
to PSEG and its associated companies, other than Energy Holdings, of $12 million and $6 million, respectively.
The amounts are recorded as a component of Current Liabilities of Discontinued Operations on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Energy Technologies will repay the balance of the intercompany payable of $12 million prior to
or upon the sale of the HVAC/mechanical operating companies.

Loans to TIE

Global and its partner, Panda Energy International, Inc., through Texas Independent Energy, L.P. (TIE), a 50/50
joint venture, owns and operates two electric generation facilities in Texas. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Global’s
investments in the TIE partnership include $73 million and $165 million, respectively, of loans that earn interest at an
annual rate of 12% that are expected to be repaid over the next 10 years. The loan structure was put in place to provide
Global with a preferential cash and earnings flow from the projects after third-party debt service. Global received $101
million of loan repayments, including interest, and invested $51 million of equity in the TIE investments for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Global’s share of interest earned was $10 million. However, only 50% of the interest received
is being recorded as income as the interest related to Global’s 50% ownership share is being eliminated in consolidation.

Loans to GWF Energy

Global provided GWF Energy approximately $98 million of secured loans to finance the purchase of turbines.
The turbine loans were interest bearing and the rates ranged from 12% to 15% per annum. The first instaliment payment
began May 31, 2002 and as of December 31, 2002, the loans were repaid in accordance with the loan agreement.

Global had also provided GWF Energy up to $74 million of working capital loans to fund construction costs pending
completion of project financing. Such loans earned interest at 20% per annum and were convertible into equity at Global’s
option. During 2002, Global converted $71 million of such working capital loans to equity, which increased Global’s
ownership of GWF Energy to 76%. The partnership agreement stipulates that the condition for control is indicated at
75% or greater ownership interest of the voting stock. Accordingly, Global’s investment in GWF Energy is recorded
as a consolidated entity as of December 31, 2002 and for the three months ended December 31, 2002, Harbinger GWF
LLC has the right to buy back from Global up to one-half of the reduction of its equity ownership in GWF Energy from
the 50% ownership level. Such right terminates at the earlier of project financing or September 30, 2003. The loan
structures were put in place to provide Global with a preferential cash and earnings distribution from GWF Energy similar
to Global’s subordinated loans from TIE. For a discussion of the commercial dates of operation and issues of the
construction process with respect to these three plants, see Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities.

Transfer of Asset Management Group (AMG) from Energy Technologies to Resources

As of December 31, 2002, Energy Technologies contributed its equity investment in the capital stock of AMG,
which includes various DSM investments, to Resources. The aggregate book value, which approximated fair value,
of the stock contributed was $42 million. As of December 31, 2002, AMG has total assets of $45 million and
earnings of $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
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PSEG AT A GLANCE

PSEG

E. James Ferland
Chairman of the Board,

President and Chief Executive Officer

PARENT COMPANY

PSEG is a publicly traded (NYSE:PEG) diversified energy company
located in Newark, New jersey. It has total assets of $25.7 billion.

PSEG

Power

Frank Cassidy
President

 PSEG
Fossil
Thomas R. Smith
President

PSEG

Nuclear

Harold W. Keiser
President and
Chief Nuclear Officer

> PSEG

5 Recou
Energy Resources

& Trade

Steven R. Teitelman
President

PSEG Fossil operates and maintains the company's gas, coal and oil-
powered generation plants. It currently has 9,638 megawatts {mw)

of installed capacity.

generating stations.

PSEG Energy Resources & Trade is the integrated marketing and
trading arm of PSEG Power. it markets the output of PSEG Power's
generation assets, manages the economics/risks of securing
power supply, acquires and hedges fuel, economically dispatches
plants, manages gas supply and storage contracts, and trades

energy-related products.

PSEG Muclear manages PSEG Power's 3,417 mw of nuclear power,
including operating the Hope Creek, Salem 1 and Salem 2 nuclear

PSEG
Energy Holdings

Robert |. Dougherty, |r.
President

PSEG

Globai

Michae! J. Thamson
President

PSEG

Resourees

Eileen A. Moran
President

PSEG Global develops, acquires, owns and operates power pro-
duction and distribution facilities throughout the world. Currently
the company has approximately 2,500 mw of installed capacity

and serves approximately 2.9 million customers through its energy

distribution companies.

PSEG Resources manages a strong, diversified portiolio of mostly
energy-related leveraged leases.

PSEG

Alfred C. Koeppe
President

PUBLIC SERVICE
ELZCTRIC AND
GAS COMPANY

PSE&G has delivered gas and electricity safely and reliably to New
Jersey customers for 100 years. It currently has 2 million electric
and 1.6 million gas customers in a 2,600 square-mile diagonal
corridor across New |ersey. PSE&G is one of the largest combined
gas and electric utilities in the U.S.

Making Things Work, PSEG's First Century, commemorates our 100 year anniversary in a 120 page, illustrated, limited edition book.
Send a check for $15 payable to PSEG Anniversary to: 100th Anniversary, Mail Code P3B, PSEG Services Corporation, P.O. Box 1171, Newark, N} 07101-1171.
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